
CITY OF BELTON 
CITY COUNCIL 

PUBLIC HEARING AND REGULAR MEETING 
TUESDAY, DECEMBER 13,2016-7:00 P.M. 

CITY HALL ANNEX 
520 MAIN STREET 

AGENDA 

I. CALL PUBLIC HEARING TO ORDER 

A. A public hearing to receive public input on the proposed amendments to the Grand Hill 
Community Improvement District and authorization for special assessments. 

II. ADJOURN PUBLIC HEARING 

III. CALL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER 

IV. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE- COUNCILMAN FLETCHER 

V. ROLLCALL 

VI. CONSENT AGENDA 

One motion, non-debatable, to approve the "recommendations" noted. Any member of the 
Council may ask for an item to be taken from the consent agenda for discussion and separate 
action. 

A. Motion approving the minutes of the November 22, 2016, City Council regular meeting. 

Page 6 

B. Motion to cancel the December 27 regular City Council meeting. 

VII. PERSONAL APPEARANCES 

VIII. ORDINANCES 

A. Motion approving final reading of Bill No. 2016-117: 
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING AND APPROVll'JG A CLINICAL AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN THE JUNIOR COLLEGE DISTRICT OF METROPOLITAN KANSAS 
CITY, MISSOURI, AKA TYIETROPOLITAN CONIMUNITY COLLEGE, AND CITY 
OF BELTON, THROUGH ITS FIRE DEPARTMENT, TO PROVIDE PROTOCOLS 
AND REQUIREMENTS DIRECTING THE EMERGENCY MEDICAL TECHNICIAN 
AND PARAMEDIC STUDENT CLINICAL EDUCATION EXPERIENCE. 

Copies of the proposed ordinances & resolutions are available for public inspection at the City Clerk's office, 
506 Main Street, Belton, MO. 64012. 



B. Motion approving final reading of Bill No. 2016-119: 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BELTON, MISSOURI. CALLING FOR AND 
ESTABLISHING THE DATE OF THE GENERAL CITY ELECTION FOR 
MUNICIPAL OFFICERS TO BE HELD ON APRIL 4, 2017. 

C. Motion approving final reading of Bill No. 2016-120: 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BELTON, MISSOURI AUTHORIZING AND 
APPROVING THE CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING CONTRACT WITH WILSON 
& COMPANY, INC., ENGINEERS & ARCHITECTS FOR CONSTRUCTION 
RELATED SERVICES FOR THE 1551H STREET WIDENING PROrECT lN THE 
NOT-TO-EXCEED AMOUNT OF $44,000. 

D. Motion approving final reading of Bill No. 2016-121: 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BELTON, MISSOURI AUTHORIZING AND 
APPROVING THE CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING CONTRACT WITH 
TERRACON CONSULTANTS, INC. FOR CONSTRUCTION RELATED SERVICES 
FOR THE 1551H STREET WIDENING PROJECT IN THE NOT-TO-EXCEED 
AMOUNT OF 40,000. 

E. Motion approving first reading of Bill No. 2016-122: 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BELTON. MISSOURI AUTHORIZING AND 
APPROVING AN AGREEMENT AWARD TO VF ANDERSON BUILDERS. LLC 
FOR THE STP 3322 (409) 155TH STREET WIDENING PROJECT IN THE AMOUNT 
OF $2,933,388.35. 

Page 10 

F. Motion approving first reading of Bill No. 2016-123: 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BELTON, MISSOURI AUTHORIZING AND 
APPROVING AN AGREEMENT AWARD TO A & B CONSTRUCTION, LTD., FOR 
THE CONSTRUCTION OF THE STORAGE FABRIC BUILDING FOR 
COWOSTING OPERATION IN A NOT-TO-EXCEED AMOUNT OF $23.717.00. 

Page 20 

G. Motion approving both readings of Bill No. 2016-124: 
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A RENTAL AGREEMENT WITI-I BERRY 
COMPANIES, INC., DIBIA KC BOBCAT OF OLATHE, KANSAS TO LEASE A 
BOBCAT S590 LOADER WITH 68 INCH LP SMOOTH BUCKET FOR USE IN AND 
AROUND THE BELTON PARKS SYSTEM AND PROVIDING ACCESS TO 
INSURANCE COVERAGE THROUGH THE CITY'S EQUIPMENT POLICY. 

Page 37 

Copies of the proposed ordinances & resolutions are avaUable for public inspection at the City Clerk's office, 
506 Main Street, Belton, MO. 64012. 



H. Motion approving first reading of Bill No. 2016-125: 
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING AN AGREEMENT FOR SIGNING INSTALLED 
AND MAINTAINED BY BELTON PARKS AND RECREATION FOR THE TREE 
CITY USA SIGN ON MISSOURI DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION RIGHT
OF-WAY. 

Page 58 

I. Motion approving first reading of Bill No. 2016-126: 
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A SECOND AMENDMENT TO THE 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY 
OF BELTON. MISSOURI AND THE BELTON-CASS REGIONAL 
TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT DISTRJCT. 

Page 69 

J. Motion approving first reading of Bill No. 2016-127: 
AN ORDINANCE TO ENABLE BELTON, MISSOURI TO JOIN SHOW ME PACE, 
PURSUANT TO SECTIONS §67.2800 TO §67.2835. RSMO. THE "PROPERTY 
ASSESSMENT CLEAN ENERGY ACT," AND STATING THE TERMS UNDER 
WHICH THE CITY WILL CONDUCT ACTIVITIES AS A MEMBER OF SUCH 
DISTRICT. 

Page 80 

K. Motion approving both readings of Bill No. 2016-128: 
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING A COOPERATIVE 
AGREEMENT AND MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN THE 
CITY OF BELTON, MISSOURI AND THE CITY OF RAYMORE, MISSOURI TO 
SUPPORT CONVEYANCE OF CERTAIN RIGHTS OF CONTROL TO THE NORTH 
SIDE OF HIGHWAY 58 BETWEEN THE CENTERLINE OF CLINT DRIVE AND 
DEAN A VENUE AND TilE CENTERLINE OF KENTUCKY ROAD FROM THE 
MISSOURI DEPARTivfENT OF TRANSPORTATION TO THE CITY OF RAYMORE, 
MISSOURI. 

Page 89 

L. Motion approving first reading of Bill No. 2016-129: 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BELTON, MISSOURI AUTHORIZING AND 
APPROVING A PROPOSAL WITH EVOQUA WATER TECHNOLOGIES CORP. 
FOR REMOTE MONITORING AND ALARM SYSTEM SERVICES AT THE 
WASTEWATER TREAT}..1ENT FACILITY. 

Page 105 

Copies of the proposed ordinances & resolutions are ava1lable for public inspection at the City Clerk's office, 
506 Main Street, Belton, MO. 64012. 



M. Motion approving first reading of Bill No. 2016-130: 
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING THE PETITION TO AMEND THE FIRST 
AMENDED PETITION TO ESTABLISH THE GRAND HllL COMMUNITY 
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT GENERALLY LOCATED EAST OF THE SOUTH 
OUTER ROAD OF INTERSTATE 49 ALONG GRAND STREET AND HILL STREET, 
ALL IN THE CITY OF BELTON, MISSOURI; AUTHORIZING COLLECTION OF 
SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS ON PROPERTIES LOCATED IN THE DISTRICT; AND 
DIRECTING THE CITY CLERK TO REPORT THE AMENDMENT AND 
AUTHORIZATION TO ASSESS A SPECIAL ASSESSMENT TO THE MISSOURI 
DEPARTMENT OF ECONOMIC DEVELOP:MENT. 

Page 116 

IX. RESOLUTIONS 

A. Motion approving Resolution R2016-40: 
A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE MIDWEST PUBLIC RISK OF MISSOURI 2016 
BYLAW REVISIONS. 

Page 148 

B. Motion approving Resolution R2016-41: 
A RESOLUTION APPROVING A PLEDGE OF SUPPORT FOR THE SHOW-ME 
HEROES PROGRAM ADMINISTERED BY THE MISSOURI DEPARTMENT OF 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT. DIVISION OF WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT. 

Page 176 

X. CITY COUNCIL LIAISON REPORTS 

XI. MAYOR'S COMMUNICATIONS 

XII. CITY MANAGER'S REPORT 

XIII. MOTIONS 

XIV. OTHER BUSINESS 

A. Solid WaSte RFP I Ballot? 

XV. Motion to enter Executive Session to discuss matters pertaining to Legal Actions, according 
to Missouri Statute 610.021.1, and that the record be closed. 

XVI. ADJOURN 

Copies of the proposed ordinances & resolutions are avlftlable for public inspection at the City Clerk's office, 
506 Main Street, Belton, MO. 64012. 



SECTION VI . 
·A 

5 

.. 



MINUTES OF THE 
BELTON CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

NOVEMBER 22, 2016 
CITY HALL ANNEX, 520 MAIN STREET 

BELTON, MISSOURI 

Mayor Davis called the meeting to order at 7:00P.M. 

Councilman Savage led the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag. 

Councilmembers present: Mayor Jeff Davis, Councilmen Ryan Finn, Jeff Fletcher, Gary Lathrop, 
Bob Newell, Lorrie Peek, Tim Savage, Chet Trutzel and Dean VanWinkle; also present: Ron 
Trivitt, City Manager; Megan McGuire, City Attorney; Aaron March, Special Counsel with 
White Goss Law Firm; and Andrea Cunningham, Executive Secretary. 

CONSENT AGENDA: 

Councilman Lathrop moved to approve the consent agenda consisting of a motion approving 
the minutes of the November 8, 2016, City Council regular meeting; and a motion 
approving the October 2016 Municipal Police Judge's Report. Councilman Savage seconded. 
All voted in favor. Consent agenda approved. 

ORDINANCES: 

Andrea Cunningham, Executive Secretary, gave the final reading of Bill No. 2010-92: 
APPROVING AND DESIGNATING REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT 4 OF THE Y 
IDGHWAY MARKET PLACE TAX INCREMENT FINANCING REDEVELOPMENT 
PLAN AS A REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT AND ADOPTING TAX INCREMENT 
FINANCING THEREIN. Presented by Councilman Lathrop, seconded by Councilman Savage. 
Aaron March with White Goss Law Firm Special Council was present to speak to this ordinance. 
This ordinance was first introduced on December 14, 2010. State statute says a multiple phase 
TIF project must have all ordinances for all phases introduced within 14-90 days of the close of 
the public hearing. The phase ordinances are held until they are ready to move forward. This 
particular ordinance is the Arvest Bank phase. It has been completed. Mr. March would 
recommend the City Council approve this ordinance. The Council was polled and the following 
vote recorded; Ayes: 9, Councilmen Newell, Savage, Peek, Fletcher, Mayor Davis, Councilmen 
Trutzel, VanWinkle, Lathrop, and Finn; Noes: None; Absent: None. Bill No. 2010-92 was 
declared passed and in full force and effect as Ordinance No. 2016- 4284, subject to Mayoral 
veto. 

Ms. Cunningham gave the final reading of Bill No. 2016-112: AN ORDINANCE 
APPROVING A PUBLIC SERVICE AGREEMENT WITH OATS, INC. Presented by 
Councilman Newell, seconded by Councilman Finn. The Council was polled and the following 
vote recorded; Ayes: 9, Councilmen Peek, Finn, Trutzel, Fletcher, Mayor Davis, VanWinkle, 
Newell, Lathrop and Savage; Noes: None; Absent: None. Bill No. 2016-112 was declared passed 
and in full force and effect as Ordinance No. 2016-4282, subject to Mayoral veto. 

Ms. Cunningham read Bill No. 2016-116: AN ORDINANCE EXTENDING AND 
AMENDING THE FARM LEASE AGREEMENT WITH DANNY CHEVALIER TO 



CONTINUE LEASING THE CITY PROPERTY ADJACENT TO MARKEY ROAD FOR 
PLANTING, CULTIVATING AND HARVESTING AGRICULTURAL CROPS. Presented 
by Councilman Trutzel, seconded by Councilman Fletcher. It is approximately 51 acres. 
Councilman Peek said she commented at the May 10, 2016, Council meeting that the lease rate 
was low compared to the average per acre rate and she still contends it is too low. After checking 
around, she found that the average rate per acre per year is $150. If it were put out for bid we 
could make more than the approximate $39 per acre Danny Chevalier pays. Megan McGuire said 
Mr. Chevalier has had the contract for seven years, with the rate increasing each year. We did an 
amendment on this lease in 2013 and also asked Mr. Chevalier to clean up some debris. He 
would like to have the contract for one more year. We have put it out for bid in the past and she 
recommends putting it out for bid again next year. Mr. Chevalier and Brad Foster had already 
tentatively negotiated the price of $2000 for this coming year. Councilmen Peek and Savage 
would recommend we put this out for bid this year. Vote on the first reading was recorded: Ayes: 
None; Noes: 9; Absent: None. First reading failed. 

Ms. Cunningham read Bill No. 2016-117: AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING AND 
APPROVING A CLINICAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE JUNIOR COLLEGE 
DISTRICT OF METROPOLITAN KANSAS CITY, MISSOURI, AKA METROPOLITAN 
COMMUNITY COLLEGE, AND CITY OF BELTON, THROUGH ITS FIRE 
DEPARTMENT, TO PROVIDE PROTOCOLS AND REQIDREMENTS DIRECTING 
THE EMERGENCY MEDICAL TECHNICIAN AND PARAMEDIC STUDENT 
CLINICAL EDUCATION EXPERIENCE. Presented by Councilman Lathrop, seconded by 
Councilman Savage. Fire Chief Larkey and Training Chief Sapp said this is a continuation of an 
agreement we already have. Ms. McGuire made a few changes. This agreement allows MCC 
students to ride with the Belton Fire Department and complete some of their clinical 
requirements and certifications. Vote on the first reading was recorded with all voting in favor. 
First reading passed. 

Ms. Cunningham read Bill No. 2016-118: AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE CITY 
OF BELTON, MISSOURI TO APPROVE THE AGREEMENT WITH LAN-TEL 
COMMUNICATIONS AND UNDER-GROUND SERVICES, INC. TO CONNECT A 
FIBER CABLE AT THE POLICE STATION. Presented by Councilman Trutzel, seconded by 
Councilman Peek. Chief Larkey said this bid is a little more than originally presented to the 
Council a few months ago because they found a wire had been cut at the Police Station and it will 
need to be repaired. All voted in favor of the first reading. Councilman Newell moved to hear 
the final reading. Councilman Fletcher seconded. All voted in favor. The final reading was read. 
Presented by Councilman Lathrop, seconded by Councilman Finn. The Council was polled and 
the following vote recorded; Ayes: 9, Councilmen Savage, Finn, Newell, Fletcher, Mayor Davis, 
Councilmen Lathrop, Trutzel, VanWinkle, and Peek; Noes: None; Absent: None. Bill No. 2016-
118 was declared passed and in full force and effect as Ordinance No. 2016-4283, subject to 
Mayoral veto. 

Ms. Cunningham read Bill No. 2016-119: AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BELTON, 
MISSOURI, CALLING FOR AND ESTABLISIDNG THE DATE OF THE GENERAL 
CITY ELECTION FOR MUNICIPAL OFFICERS TO BE HELD ON APRIL 4, 2017. 
Presented by Councilman Fletcher, seconded by Councilman Trutzel. Ms. McGuire pointed out 
that there was a scrivener's error in the articles the ordinance references. It did not change the 
content of the ordinance and it has been fixed. Vote on the first reading was recorded with all 
voting in favor. First reading passed. 

7 



Ms. Cwmingham read Bill No. 2016-120: AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BELTON, 
MISSOURI AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING THE CONSTRUCTION 
ENGINEERING CONTRACT WITH WILSON & COMPANY, INC., ENGINEERS & 
ARCHITECTS FOR CONSTRUCTION RELATED SERVICES FOR THE 155TH 
STREET WIDENING PROJECT IN THE NOT-TO-EXCEED AMOUNT OF $44,000. 
Presented by Councilman Savage, seconded by Councilman Peek. Kate Patras, Assistant City 
Engineer, said we had a preliminary engineering agreement in 2014. It has been supplemented 
with Wilson & Company for final design in 2015. This agreement today is for construction 
engineering services. Vote on the first reading was recorded with all voting in favor. First reading 
passed. 

Ms. Cunningham read Bill No. 2016-121: AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BELTON, 
MISSOURI AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING THE CONSTRUCTION 
ENGINEERING CONTRACT WITH TERRACON CONSULTANTS, INC. FOR 
CONSTRUCTION RELATED SERVICES FOR THE 155TH STREET WIDENING 
PROJECT IN THE NOT-TO-EXCEED AMOUNT OF $40,000. Presented by Councilman 
Trutzel, seconded by Councilman Savage. Councilman Lathrop pointed out the contract says "it 
is expected that Grandview and Belton will share the cost." Ms. Patras said she is still working 
with MoDOT to get an 80% reimbursement on the contract. She should hear from them in about 
two weeks. Our bids on the project came in low. In that case, Grandview and Belton will be 
splitting the contract costs evenly. Vote on the first reading was recorded with all voting in favor. 
First reading passed. 

CITY COUNCIL LIAISON REPORTS: 

Councilman Peek said the Park Board is working on their FY18 budget. They're also working 
with MoDOT for a Tree City sign on the city limits sign. 

MAYOR'S COMMUNICATIONS: 

Mayor Davis announced the Mayor's Christmas Tree Lighting Ceremony will be at Memorial 
Station, November 28, 5:30P.M. Santa will arrive at 6:20P.M. Bring your canned goods; it's a 
good outreach for the community. 

OTHER BUSINESS: 

Councilman Lathrop said AT&T is putting in fiber on Cambridge and they have exceeded the 
ROW and the area is tom up. Ms. Patras said they have a ROW permit and they are connecting 
over to the Traditions property. She will send an inspector to look at it. 

Councilman Lathrop said there's also AT&T work begin done on Mullen. It appears to not be 
consistent with our road widening plans and they may have to move the lines. Ms. Patras has 
communicated our Mullen road widening plans with them. They are aware and were given some 
options, but they decided to continue as planned. They will be responsible for moving the line 
later, if necessary. It is something Ms. Patras and Ms. McGuire have already talked about. 

Being no further business, Councilman Lathrop moved to adjourn at 7:32 P.M. Councilman 
Fletcher seconded. All voted in favor. Meeting adjourned. 

~(2~ 
Andrea Cunningham, Executive Secretary 8 Jeff Davis, Mayor 



SECTION VIII 
E 

9 



BILL NO. 2016-122 ORDINANCE NO. 2016-

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BELTON, MISSOURI AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING AN 
AGREEMENT AWARD TO VF ANDERSON BUILDERS, LLC FOR THE STP 3322 (409) 155m 
STREET WIDENING PROJECT IN THE AMOUNT OF $2,933,388.35. 

WHEREAS, on September 10, 2013, the City entered into an Intergovernmental Cooperation 
Agreement with the City of Grandview, Missouri for administering the 155th Street Project per Ordinance 
No. 20 13-3948; and 

WHEREAS, Belton and Grandview have been working collaboratively on the 155th Street 
Widening Project; and 

WHEREAS, on June 10, 2014, City Council approved a Design Professional Service Agreement 
with Wilson & Company for the 155th Street Widening Project per Ordinance No. 2014-4003; and 

WHEREAS, on April 28, 2015, City Council approved Supplemental Agreement No. 1 with 
Wilson & Company to complete engineering services for the 155th Street Widening Project per Resolution 
2015-21; and 

WHEREAS, on May 26, 2015, City Council approved the Missouri Highways and Transportation 
Commission STP-Urban Program Agreement for the 155th Street Improvements Project per Ordinance 
No. 2015-4100. This standard funding agreement awarded the funds up to $4,375,800.00 to the City of 
Belton to administer the project; and 

WHEREAS on August 25, 2015 City Council approved agreements with Valbridge Property 
Advisors, DM Millin & Associates, and Orrick & Erskine in order to provide appraisals, review 
appraisals and negotiations for the property acquisition necessary for the project per Ordinance No. 2015-
413q, _9rdinance No. 2015-4131, and Ordinance No. 2015-4132; and 

WHEREAS, on August 25, 2015, City Council approved the condemnation ordinance per 
Ordinance No. 2015-4133; and 

WHEREAS, on November 10, 2015, staff determined there needed to be modifications to the 
original condemnation ordinance and City Council approved the condemnation ordinance repealing and 
amending the original condemnation ordinance per Ordinance No. 2015-4150; and 

WHEREAS, on April 12, 2016, City Council approved a Professional Services Agreement with 
Wilson & Company for the design of the 155th Street Sanitary Sewer Extension Project per Ordinance No. 
2016-4206. While the sanitary sewer project is separate from the street widening project, the 
improvements are co-dependent and important to the overall corridor; and 

WHEREAS, on August 23, 2016, City Council approved the Demolition Service Agreement with 
Doubled D, Inc. doing business as Dale Brothers for the STP 3322 (409) 155th Street Improvements
Residential Demolition Project in the not-to-exceed amount of$45,811.80 per Ordinance No. 2016-4261; 
and 

{10480 /62693; 559285. } to 



WHEREAS, on November 8, 2016, City Council approved a Construction Agreement with 
Pyramid Excavation & Construction, Inc. for the 155th Street Sanitary sewer Extension Project in the not
to-exceed amount of$239,087 per Ordinance No. 2016-4273; and 

WHEREAS, the City advertised the STP 3322 (409) 155th Street Widening Project on October 
13, 2016 and publicly opened and read aloud the bids on November 3, 2016. Seven contractors submitted 
bids on the project and the apparent low bidder was VF Anderson Builders, LLC. On November 16,2016, 
the City sent a letter to MoDOT requesting concurrence in the bid award to VF Anderson Builders, LLC, 
and on November 22,2016, MoDOT sent a letter concurring with the City's recommendation; and 

WHEREAS, staff recommends City Council authorize and approve an agreement award to VF 
Anderson Builders, LLC for the STP 3322 (409) 155th Street Widening Project in the amount of 
$2,933,388.35; the agreement is attached to this ordinance as Exhibit A. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BELTON, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1. That this ordinance authorizing and approving an Agreement award to VF Anderson 
Builders LLC for the STP 3322 (409) 155th Street Widening Project in the amount of 
$2,933,388.35 is hereby approved for purposes described above. 

SECTION 2. This ordinance shall take effect and be in full force from and after its passage and 
approval. 

SECTION 4. That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are hereby 
repealed. 

READ FOR THE FIRST TIME: December 13, 2016 

-READ FOR THE SE~OND-TIME AND PASSED: 

Mayor Jeff Davis 

Approved this ___ day of _ ___ , 2016. 

ATTEST: 

Patricia Ledford, City Clerk 
City of Belton, Missouri 

{10480 I 62693; 559285. } 2 
11 

Mayor Jeff Davis 



STATE OF MISSOURI) 
CITY OF BELTON ) SS 
COUNTY OF CASS ) 

I, Patricia A. Ledford, City Clerk, do hereby certify that I have been duly appointed City Clerk of the City 
of Belton and that the foregoing ordinance was regularly introduced for first reading at a meeting of the 
City Council held on the 13th day of December, 2016, and thereafter adopted as Ordinance No. 2016-
--of the City of Belton, Missouri, at a regular meeting of the City Council held on the __ day of 
_ ____ ___, 2016, after the second reading thereof by the following vote, to-wit: 

AYES: COUNCILMEN: 

NOES: COUNCILMEN: 

ABSENT: COUNCILMEN: 

{10480 /62693; 559285. } 3 
12 

Patricia A. Ledford, City Clerk 
of the City of Belton, Missouri 



CITY OF BEL TON • CITY COUNCIL INFORMATION FORM 
PUBliC WORKS 

AGENDA DATE: December 13,2016 

COUNCIL: [8J Regular Meeting 0 Work Session 

DIVISION: Engineering 

0 Special Session 

[8J Ordinance 0 Resolution 0 Consent Item 0 Change Order 0 Motion 
~ Agreement l J Discussion l J FYI!Update [ ] Presentation [8J Both Readings 

ISSUE/RECOMMENDATION: 
Award the Agreement for the STP 3322 (409) 155th Street Widening Project to VF Anderson Builders, 
LLC. 

This project was advertised on October 13, 2016 and bids were opened and publicly read aloud at City 
Hall Annex on November 3, 2016. Quality Assurance Plans were not requested for this project in 
accordance with MoDOT requirements. City staff reviewed the bids and requested concurrence from 
MoDOT to award the contract to the apparent low bidder, VF Anderson Builders, LLC. MoDOT 
approved the concurrence request by the City in a letter dated November 22, 2016. 

The summary of bids received is illustrated below: 

Total (Base Bid 
+Bid AltA+ 

Contractor Base Bid Bid AltA Bid AltB Bid Alt B) 
VF Anderson Builders LLC $2,704,504.45 $130,518.90 $98,365.00 $2,933,388.35 
Radmacher Brothers 
ExcJ!,va~g - - _.$),9.58,.863.50 ~$122~ 731 .80 $138~932"-.80 _t3,220,52~JO _ 
Miles Excavating $3,180,628.82 $128,901.25 $181,330.88 $3,490,860.95 
Pyramid Excavating and 
Construction $3,222,350.95 $122,368.10 $98,966.00 $3,443,685.05 

Midwest Heavy $3,244,43 7. 85 $121,632.10 $150,010.00 $3,516,079.95 
JMFahey $3,330,985.45 $105,849.35 $138,145.87 $3,574,980.67 
Amino Brothers $3,479,488.50 $133,414.70 $139,154.20 $3,752,057.40 
Engineer's Estimate $4,684,644.00 $251,751.50 $103,396.00 $5,039,791.50 

PROPOSED CITY COUNCIL MOTION: 
At the December 13, 2016 regular City Council meeting, approve the first reading of an ordinance 
authorizing and approving an Agreement Award to VF Anderson Builders, LLC for the STP 3322 (409) 
155th Street Widening Project in the amount of$2,933,388.35. 

BACKGROUND: 
The 155th Street Project has been in the works since at least 2012 when an application was submitted for 
the Surface Transportation Program (STP) funding source through Mid-America Regional Council 
(MARC) and MoDOT. In 2013, the Cities of Belton and Grandview were notified that they were 
awarded the funding and entered into an intergovernmental agreement in order to identify 
!:\Agenda Items\2016\121316\155th Street Contract Award\1. 155th Street Contract Award Council Info Sheet RS 
12.13.16.doc 13 



responsibilities for administering the project. In 2014, City Council entered into the preliminary design 
engineering contract with Wilson & Company. In 2015, City Council entered into: the final design 
engineering contract with Wilson & Company, property acquisition agreements, and started acquiring 
property necessary for the improvements. In 2016, the project progressed a,nd design was complete, all 
property was acquired, three residential parcels were demolished, and the project was advertised for bid. 
Construction is anticipated to begin in January of 2017 and the project is expected to be complete in 
December 2017. 

IMPACT/ANALYSIS: 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 

Contractor: VF Anderson Builders, LLC 
Amount of Request/Contract: $ 2,933,388.35 
Amount Budgeted: $ 4,570,000.00 
Funding Source: 442-5412-495-7117 
Additional Funds: $ nla 
Funding Source: nla 
Encumbered: $ nla 
Funds Remaining: $ 1,636,611.65 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION, ACTION, AND DATE: 
At the December 13, 2016 regular City Council meeting, approve the first reading of an ordinance 
authorizing and approving an Agreement Award to VF Anderson Builders, LLC for the STP 3322 (409) 
155th Street Widening Project in the amount of$2,933,388.35. 

LIST OF REFERENCE DOCUMENTS ATTACHED: 
Ordinance 
Construction Agreement 

!:\Agenda Items\2016\121316\155th Street Contract Award\1. I 55th Street Contract Award Council Info Sheet RS 
12.13.16.doc 14 



AGREEMENT 

Contract Number ~ST!..!.P_,3~3~2=2(~4!..l:!:0""-9)~.--_________ _ 

Project Title _ _,15=5 T_H....::So:...:.T_,_,R=EEf:::....:....._,_,W~ID=-E::::N..:..:!I.:..:N~G.___ ______ _ 

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into on this date------------
between VF Anderson Builders LLC 
(CONTRACTOR) as principal, and BELTON, MISSOURI, a Charter City in the State of Missouri, 
(OWNER). 

OWNER and CONTRACTOR, for and in consideration of mutual covenants hereinafter set forth, 
agree and bind themselves and their respective heirs, executors, administrators, successors and 
assigns as follows: 

Sec. 1. CONTRACTOR shall complete the Work as specified or indicated in the Contract 
Documents. CONTRACTOR shall furnish all materials, supplies, equipment, and labor and pay 
labor of all laborers, subcontractors, teamsters, truck drivers, teams and wagons employed, and 
owners of equipment used on the Work. 

Sec. 2. The Contract Documents shall consist of the following component parts. 

155TH STREET WIDENING PLANS 
Addenda 1 Dated 1 0/28/2016 
Adden aa --:-:-:::-.Da ea T073UZ01"6 - -- - --- - w 

Addenda -3- Dated 11/01/2016 
Addenda 4 Dated 11/02/2016 
Introductory Information 

Table of Contents 
List of Drawings 

Bidding Requirements 
Bidder's Affidavit 
Invitation to Bid 
Instructions to Bidders 
Quality Assurance Plan Specification 
Bid Form and Unit Prices 
Bid Bond 

Contracting Requirements 
Agreement 
Performance and Maintenance Bond 
Payment Bond 
Insurance Certificate 
Affidavit of Enrollment in Federal Work Authorization Program and E-Verify 
Certificate of Owner's Attorney 

REV: 09-2015 Belton Contract Guidebook 00500-1 of 4 

15 



General Contract Conditions 
Supplementary Conditions 
Missouri Prevailing Wage Info and Forms 
Annual Wage Order No. 23 
Missouri Revised Statutes and Code of State Regulations 
Missouri Project Exemption Certificate 
Request for Interpretation 
Change Order 

Notice to Proceed 
Notice of Award 

Technical Specifications 
Refer to City of Belton and APWA Standard Specifications and Design Criteria 

Appendix 
Appendix A - ADA Checklist 
Appendix 8- Geotechnical Report 

Sec. 3. OWNER shall pay CONTRACfOR for completion of the Work in accordance with the 
Contract Documents an amount equal to the sum of the amounts determined below (the 
Contract Price) Two milllion, nine hundred thirty three thousand, three hundred eighty 

eight dollars and thirty five cents ($2,933,388.35). 

Sec. 4. CONTRACfOR agrees to begin the Work promptly upon the date stated in the "Notice 
to Proceed" and to complete the Work within the times specified in the Contract Documents, 
unless further time is granted by OWNER. 

Sec. __ 5. CONIRACfOR agrees and _guarantees that the Work herein mentioned shall be 
constructed without further compensation than that provided for in the Contract Documents. 
The acceptance of the Work done hereunder and payment therefore shall not be held to 
prevent the maintenance of an action on CONTRACfOR's bonds for failure to construct said 
Work in accordance with the Contract Documents. 

Sec. 6. Retainage under this AGREEMENT, if any, shall be specified in the Contract Documents. 

Sec. 7. CONTRACfOR agrees and guarantees to make good, at its own expense and in 
accordance with the instructions of OWNER, any and all faulty or defective material or 
workmanship which may appear in the Work in accordance with and during the period stated 
by the Contract Documents. 

Sec. 8. CONTRACfOR, and as necessary and appropriate it's Surety, guarantees to: 1) well and 
truly perform the covenants contained in the Contract Documents, and 2) pay for the Work and 
all materials, labor of all laborers, Subcontractors, teamsters, truck drivers, teams and wagons 
employed, and owners of equipment used on the Work, and for all materials used herein. If the 
cost of the Work including the cost of performing and furnishing labor, or of furnishing or 
incorporating equipment and materials is not paid in full by CONTRACTOR, then 
CONTRACTOR'S Surety will pay for said Work including labor, use of equipment and materials, 

REV: 09-2015 Belton Contract Guidebook 00500-2 of 4 

16 



or any part thereof which is not paid by CONTRACTOR, within the time stated and in 
accordance with the conditions provided in Surety's Payment Bond, which is attached and 
incorporated herein by reference. This provision shall entitle any and all laborers, truck drivers, 
teamsters and owners of trucks, teams and wagons who may do Work, and parties who may 
furnish equipment or materials, on or for the improvement to be made under this AGREEMENT, 
to sue and recover from Surety the amount due or unpaid to them by CONTRACTOR. 
CONTRACTOR, and as necessary and appropriate it's Surety, shall well and faithfully perform 
each and all the terms and agreements in the Contract Documents. 

Sec. 9. CONTRACTOR, and as necessary and appropriate it's Surety, agrees that no change, 
extension of time, alteration or additions to the terms of the Contract Documents or to the 
Work to be performed thereunder, not including Work to be performed beyond the sum of the 
Contract Price, shall in any way affect Surety's obligations on it's Bonds. Regarding Work 
beyond the sum of the Contract Price, CONTRACTOR shall notify Surety of said Work. Work 
beyond the sum of the Contract Price shall not be approved by OWNER unless and until 
CONTRACTOR'S Surety provides written approval to OWNER and CONTRACTOR. 

Sec. 10. The OWNER and CONTRACTOR hereto agree that this AGREEMENT in all things shall 
be governed by the laws of the State of Missouri. 

Sec. 11. The CONTRACTOR, and their subcontractor(s) if any, agrees to comply with all 
applicable federal and state laws and regulations, non-discrimination employment requirements, 
labor requirements, occupational safety requirements, and local ordinances. 

Sec. 12. All of the provisions of this AGREEMENT shall be severable. In the event that any 
provision of this AGREEMENT is found by a court of competent jurisdiction to be 
unconstitutional or unlawful, the remaining provisions of this AGREEMENT shall be valid unless 
the court finds the valid provisions of this AGREEMENT are so essentially and inseparably 
connected with and so dependent upon the invalid provisions that it cannot be presumed that 
the parties to this AGREEMENT could have included the valid provisions without the invalid 

-- ------------ P- tQYi__s_i.o_o_s;c_OLUoJe:-sscth.e: c_o_wr:t_finds.Jhat::tlle valid:: J"'rD.Y.~siensvstanding :alone, are iA~apabl~ef 
being performed in accordance with the intentions of the parties. 

Sec. 13. The CONTRACTOR expressly warrants that they have employed no third person or 
party to solicit or obtain this AGREEMENT on their behalf. Breach of this warranty shall 
constitute adequate cause for the annulment of this AGREEMENT by the OWNER. 

Sec. 14. This AGREEMENT shall be binding upon all Parties hereto and their respective heirs, 
executors, administrators, successors, and assigns. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, CONTRACTOR and OWNER's authorized representative have 
hereunto set their hands and seals respectively, in execution of this Contract. 

REV: 09-2015 

CONTRACTOR 
Name, address, e-mail address and facsimile number of 
CONTRACTOR 

VF Anderson Builders LLC 
15707 E 215th Street 
Peculiar MO 64078 
Tel (816) 935-9552 
Fax (816) 817-2747 

Belton Contract Guidebook 00500-3 of 4 

17 



I hereby certify that I have authority to execute 
this document on behalf of CONTRACTOR. 

By: ____________________________ ___ 
Printed Name: ____________________ _ 
Title: ____ ______________ _ 

Attested By: ----------------------
Printed Name: _ _____________ _ 
Title: ________ _________ _ 

(Attach corporate seal if applicable) 

BELTON, MISSOURI 
Address and facsimile number of City department 
Public Works Department 
City Hall Annex 
520 Main Street 
Belton. Missouri 64012 
Fax: (816) 322-6973 

By: _ _ ___ _______________________ _ 
Printed Name:-=J=e ...... ff_,D=a,_,_v·=ls ___________ ______ _ 
Title: Mayor 

_Attested B_y: 
Printed Name: Patti Ledford 
Title: City Clerk 

(Attach Seal) 

I hereby certify that there is a balance, otherwise unencumbered, to the credit of the 
appropriation to which the foregoing expenditure is to be charged, and a cash balance, 
otherwise unencumbered, in the treasury, to the credit of the fund from which payment is to be 
made, each sufficient to meet the obligation hereby incurred. 

By: __________________ _ 

Printed Name: Sheila Ernzen 
Title: Finance Director. Cily of Belton. MO 

REV: 09-2015 Belton Contract Guidebook 00500-4 of 4 

18 



SECTION VIII 
F 

19 



BILL NO. 2016-123 ORDINANCE NO. 2016-

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BELTON, MISSOURI AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING AN 
AGREEMENT AWARD TO A & B CONSTRUCTION, LTD. FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF THE 
STORAGE FABRIC BUILDING FOR COMPOSTING OPERATION IN A NOT-TO-EXCEED 
AMOUNT OF $23,717.00. 

WHEREAS, on May 10, 2016, City Council approved Ordinance No. 2016-4220 authorizing and 
approving the Abatement Order on Consent (AOC) No. 2016-WPCB-1348 with the Department of 
Natural Resources regarding sanitary sewer overflows on September 27, 2013 and August 20, 2014; and 

WHEREAS, the AOC includes four major components as provided in Ordinance No. 2016-4220 
and the exhibits attached. One component is the completion of the Supplemental Environmental Project 
(SEP) Plan to implement a composting program for sludge generated at the WWTF; and 

WHEREAS, on July 12, 2016, City Council approved Resolution No. 2016-28 approving Task 
Agreement #1 with Bums & McDonnell Engineering Company, Inc. in a not-to-exceed amount of 
$45,000 to perform evaluation and engineering for the City's new composting program; and 

WHEREAS, the evaluation and engineering by Bums & McDonnell Engineering Company, Inc. 
is underway; and 

WHEREAS, the City initially advertised for a Pole Bam structure and held a bid opening on 
October 31, 2016. One contractor, Morton Buildings, submitted a bid in the amount of$27, 921.00; and 

WHERAS, the City revised the project specifications and advertised for a Storage Fabric 
building, similar to the existing structure currently used by the Public Works Transportation Division. 
The bid opening was held on November 17, 2016 and two contractors submitted bids: A & B 
Construction, LTD at $23,717.00, and ClearSpan Fabric Structures International, Inc. at $34,711.00; and 

WHEREAS, staff recommends City Council authorize and approve an agreement award to A & B 
Construction, LTD for the construction of the Storage Fabric Building for Composting Operation in the 
amount of$23,717.00; the agreement is attached to this ordinance as Exhibit A. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BELTON, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1. That this ordinance authorizing and approving an Agreement award to A & B 
Construction, LTD for the construction of the Storage Fabric Building for Composting 
Operation in the amount of$23,717.00 is hereby approved for purposes described above. 

SECTION 2. This ordinance shall take effect and be in full force from and after its passage and 
approval. 

SECTION 3. That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are hereby 
repealed. 

{10480 I 62693; 559285. } 
~0 



READ FOR THE FIRST TIME: December 13,2016 

READ FOR THE SECOND TIME AND PASSED: 

Mayor Jeff Davis 

Approved this ___ day of ___ ____j 2016. 

ATTEST: 

Patricia Ledford, City Clerk 
City of Belton, Missouri 

STATE OF MISSOURI) 
CITY OF BELTON ) SS 
COUNTY OF CASS ) 

Mayor Jeff Davis 

I, Patricia A. Ledford, City Clerk, do hereby certify that I have been duly appointed City Clerk of the City 
of Belton and that the foregoing ordinance was regularly introduced for first reading at a meeting of the 
City Council held on the 13th day of December, 2016, and thereafter adopted as Ordinance No. 2016-

-__ -of the-Gity-0f-Belten,~Miss€>uri,-at a~r-egHlar=meeting"of~t-he- City -GounGil-held-{)n-the =-- day-O-f<=--~~ 

_____ __, 2016, after the second reading thereof by the following vote, to-wit: 

AYES: COUNCILMEN: 

NOES: COUNCILMEN: 

ABSENT: COUNCILMEN: 

{10480 I 62693; 559285. } 

Patricia A. Ledford, City Clerk 
of the City of Belton, Missouri 



CITY OF BEL TON • CITY COUNCIL INFORMATION FORM 
PUBliC WORKS 

AGENDA DATE: December 13, 2016 DIVISION: Public Works 

COUNCIL: IZ! Regular Meeting D Work Session D Special Session 

IZ! Ordinance D Resolution D Consent Item D Change Order D Motion 
IZJ Agreement [ ] Discussion l J FYI!Update l ] Presentation l J Both Readings 

ISSUEIRECO:MMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval of a Minor Construction Service Agreement with A & B Construction, LTD. 
for the construction of the Storage Fabric Building for Composting Operation in a not-to-exceed amount 
of$23,717.00. 

PROPOSED CITY COUNCIL MOTION: 
At the December 13, 2016 City Council Regular Session, authorize and approve the first reading of the 
Minor Construction Service Agreement with A & B Construction, LTD., for the construction of the 
Storage Fabric Building for Composting Operation in a not-to-exceed amount of$23,717.00. 

BACKGROUND: 
At the April 26, 2016 and May 10, 2016 City Council Regular Sessions, staff provided information to 
Council about the Abatement Order of Consent (AOC), an agreement between the City and the Missouri 
Department of Natural Resources (DNR), which was the result of Notices of Violations from two 
Sanitary Sewer Overflow (SSO) events. 

Tpis Ordinan~e N_()_~--~0 ~ e?.=4220 _was aJ)pr_(_)y_ed __ Qy __ ~~~ond __ r_~C\ding ~t $.~-- Mlt_y __ lQ!_}Q} 6 City Coun~i~ 
Regular Session. As detailed in the ordinance, the AOC includes four major components. One 
component is the completion of the Supplemental Environmental Project (SEP) Plan to implement a 
composting program for sludge generated at the WWTF. 

At the July 12, 2016 City Council Regular Session, a resolution and task agreement with Burns & 
McDonnell to perform evaluation and engineering for the City's composting program in a not-to-exceed 
amount of$45,000, was approved by Resolution No. 2016-28. 

The approval of the minor construction service agreement for the construction of the storage fabric 
building is the next step in the process of implementing the composting program. The storage fabric 
building recommended will provide storage for sludge prior to beginning the composting process. This 
building can be incorporated into any future biosolids program the City chooses to pursue. The asphalt 
pad and walls for this structure will be constructed in-house to reduce costs. 

Originally, staff advertised for a pole barn structure, but later determined that a storage fabric building 
would better suit the City's needs. Advantages of the storage fabric building compared to the pole are 
related to the interior height (fabric building allows room for a dump truck to fully extend) and side wall 
structure (side walls will be constructed with blocks opposed to sheet metal). In addition, the storage 
fabric building can be relocated at a later date if the needs of the City's operation were to change. Both 
of the bidding results are provided as follows. 
I: \Agenda Items\2016\121316\Composting Building Award\1. ~mposting Building Agreement Award RS 12.13.16.doc 



Pole Barn 
Bid Opening 
Morton Buildings 

Storage Fabric Building 
Bid Opening 
A & B Construction, LTD 

October 31,2016 
$27,921 

November 17,2016 
$23,717 

Clearspan Fabric Structures International, Inc. $34,711 

IMPACT/ANALYSIS: 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 

Contractor: A & B Construction, LTD 
Amount of Request/Contract: $ 23,717 
Amount Budgeted: $ 122,000 
Funding Source: 660-0000-400-2020 
Encumbered: $ 54,406.81 
Funds Remaining: $ 67,593.19 

A summary table of project expenses is provided below. To date, approximately $26,000 has been paid 
to Burns & McDonnell for engineering services and $11,000 has been spent for preparation of the 
asphalt pad and sediment ponds. Per the AOC, the composting facility will be in operation by June 30, 
2017. 

TOTAL PROJECT EXPENSES 
Description Total Amount Fund 

General Fund- Public Works-

Engineering $45,000 
Engineering Line Item: 

- - - - ~ -.,., 01_0~00-400-3025 = 

Construction (rounded) 
Building $24,000 Wastewater Fund, Services, Plant 
Asphalt Pad $25,000 Maintenance Line Item: 
Sediment Ponds $15,000 
Misc. Items $3,000 660-0000-400-2020 
Total $67,000 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION, ACTION, AND DATE: 
At the December 13, 2016 City Council Regular Session, authorize and approve the first reading of the 
Minor Construction Service Agreement with A & B Construction, LTD., for the construction of the 
Storage Fabric Building for Composting Operation in a not-to-exceed amount of $23,717.00. 

LIST OF REFERENCE DOCUMENTS ATTACHED: 
Ordinance 
Agreement 

1:\Agenda Items\2016\121316\Composting Building Award\ I. Bbmposting Building Agreement Award RS 12.13.16.doc 



(I) 
PUBLIC WUIS 

CITY OF BEL TON 
PUBLIC WORKS 
DEPARTMENT 
506 Main Street 

Belton, MO 64012 
(816) 322-1885 

FAX (816) 322-5031 

MINOR CONSTRUCTION SERVICE AGREEMENT 

THIS Agreement ("Agreement") is by and between the Cit)t of Belton, Missouri, a 
constitutional charter city ("CITY"), and A & B Construction, L TO , a 
-:----~-:---:--------------' authorized to conduct business in Missouri and 
located at ("CONTRACTOR"; CITY and 
CONTRACTOR each a "Party", and collectively the "Parties"). 

WHEREAS, CITY requires minor construction services to construct a building for to be 
used for composting operations on the City's Wastewater Treatment Campus as further described 
herein (the "Services"); 

WHEREAS, CONTRACTOR is prepared to provide said Services and shall give 
consultation to CITY during the performance of said Services; 

NOW THEREFORE, CITY and CONTRACTOR in consideration of the mutual covenants 
contained in this Agreement, agree as follows: 

ARTICLE 1 - EFFECTIVE DATE 
The effective date of this Agreement shall be---------- ("Effective Date"). 

- -AR~fGI;;E2---SERVIGES-~0-BE PERFQRME9-8-Y-GQN-"'FRAG~0R - -
CONTRACTOR shall furnish all labor, materials, equipment, and services necessary to 
construct a building on-site at the City's Wastewater Treatment Facility Campus in compliance with 
the specifications provided in 00150 Storage Fabric Building Specifications and as illustrated in 
00160 Site Map, which is maintained by the Public Works Department, and CONTRACTOR 
represents that it is equipped, competent, and able to perform, and that it will perform all 
services hereinafter set forth in a diligent, competent, and workmanlike manner as described 
herein. CONTRACTOR, as opposed to sub-contractors of CONTRACTOR, must perform at 
feast sixty percent (60%) of the Services described herein, throughout the term of this 
Agreement. 

ARTICLE 3- PERIOD OF SERVICE 
See Article 30 for details on schedule requirements. 

ARTICLE 4- COMPENSATION 
It is expressly understood that in no event will compensation be paid to the CONTRACTOR 
under the terms of this contract for the services set forth in Article 2, and for reimbursement of 
authorized expenses, unless and until costs for a specific task are provided by the 

City of Belton, Missouri Minor Construction Service Agreement 

24 

Page 1 of 12 

EXHIBIT 



CONTRACTOR and approved by the City. If additional services are requested by the City, the 
CONTRACTOR will prepare and submit to the City an estimate of the total cost associated with 
such additional services. The City will review and approve in writing such cost estimate for 
additional services, and the total compensation and reimbursement to be paid by the City to the 
CONTRACTOR for such approved additional services shall not exceed the approved amount. 

Invoices shall be submitted by the CONTRACTOR to the CITY for payment covering services 
performed. The CITY's payment terms are net thirty (30) days from the CITY's receipt of a 
complete invoice with supporting materials. Inadequate documentation to support the charges 
shall be remedied by CONTRACTOR within ten (10) days, and CITY shall make payment within 
thirty (30) days from its receipt of remedial documentation. CITY in its sole discretion shall 
determine adequacy of documentation for payment of any invoice. No payment made under this 
Agreement shall be proof of satisfactory performance of the Agreement, either wholly or in part, 
and no payment shall be construed as acceptance of deficient or unsatisfactory work. 

The CITY is exempt from the State of Missouri sales and use taxes on purchases made directly 
for the CITY. CONTRACTOR shall not include any sales or use taxes on transactions between 
the CONTRACTOR and CITY. 

CONTRACTOR shall provide proof of compliance with the CITY'S tax ordinances as a condition 
precedent to the CITY making any payments under this Agreement. 

ARTICLE 5- PERMITS AND LICENSES 
The CONTRACTOR, and any sub-contractor hired by the CONTRACTOR, shall procure a CITY 
Occupation License, which license(s) shall be in effect at all times during the term of this 
Agreement. CONTRACTOR will abide by all applicable laws, regulations and ordinances of all 
federal, state and local governments in which work under this Agreement are performed and 
shall contractually require the same of all its sub-contractors performing work under this 
Agreement. The CONTRACTOR, and any sub-contractor hired by the CONTRACTOR, must 
furnish and maintain certification of authority to conduct business in the State of Missouri at all 
lhii~s-durlrfg the~terrhr dftn·is~'Agf€elrrent. 

ARTICLE 6 -CHANGES, DELETIONS OR ADDITIONS TO AGREEMENT 
Except as otherwise provided herein, either Party may request, subject to approval of the other 
Party, changes to or within the general scope of this Agreement. If a requested change, 
approved by each Party, causes an increase or decrease in the compensation or Period of 
Service stated in this Agreement, CITY and CONTRACTOR will agree to an equitable 
adjustment of the compensation, Period of Services or both and will reflect such adjustment in a 
change order. All change orders shall be in writing, approved by CITY'S representative, and 
executed by the CITY prior to the CONTRACTOR performing any work pursuant to the change 
order. Any claim by the CONTRACTOR for such change or adjustment must be asserted within 
thirty (30) days of discovery. 

ARTICLE 7- LIABILITY AND INDEMNIFICATION 
CONTRACTOR shall indemnify, and hold harmless CITY and any of its agencies, officials, 
officers, or employees from and against all claims, damages, liability, losses, costs, and 
expenses, including reasonable attorneys' fees, arising out of or resulting from any acts or 
omissions in connection with this Agreement, caused in whole or in part by CONTRACTOR, its 

City of Belton, Missouri Minor Construction Service Agreement 

25 
Page 2 of 12 



employees, agents, or sub-contractors, or caused by others for whom CONTRACTOR is liable, 
regardless of whether or not caused in part by any act or omission of CITY, its agencies, 
officials, officers, or employees. 

ARTICLE 8- INSURANCE 
A. CONTRACTOR shall procure and maintain in effect throughout the duration of this 
Agreement insurance coverage not less than the types and amounts specified below. In the 
event that additional insurance, not specified herein, is required during the term of this 
Agreement, CONTRACTOR shall supply such insurance, if available, at CITY'S cost. Policies 
containing a Self-Insured Retention are unacceptable to CITY. 

1. Workers' Compensation and Employers' Liability Insurance. This insurance shall protect 
CONTRACTOR against all claims under applicable state workers' compensation laws, including 
coverage as necessary for the benefits provided under the United States Longshoremen's and 
Harbor Workers' Act and the Jones Act. CONTRACTOR shall also be protected against claims 
for injury, disease, or death of employees which, for any reason, may not fall within the 
provisions of workers' compensation laws. This policy shall include an "all states" or "other 
states" endorsement. The liability limits shall be not less than: 

Workers' Compensation: Statutory 
Employers' liability: 2,500,000 each occurrence 

2. Commercial Automobile Liability Insurance. This insurance shall be occurrence type written in 
comprehensive form and shall protect CONTRACTOR, and OWNER, DESIGN 
PROFESSIONAL and Consultants as additional insureds, against all claims for injuries to 
members of the public and damage to property of others arising from the use of motor vehicles, 
either on or off the Project Site, whether they are owned, non-owned, or hired. 

The liability limits shall be not less than: $2,500,000 

3. Commercial General Liability Insurance. This insurance shall be occurrence type written in 
comprehensive form acceptable to OWNER. This insurance shall protect CONTRACTOR, and 
OWNER, DESIGN PROFESSIONAL and Consultants as additional insureds, against claims 
ariSing -rrcrm-injuries, sickrre-s-s,--d~sea-s-e-; -ordeath of any-p-erson-or-damage-to property-arising--
out of performance of the Work. The policy shall also include coverage for personal injury 
liability; contractual liability; completed operations and products liability; and for blasting, 
explosion, and collapse of buildings; and damage to underground property. The liability limits for 
bodily injury and property damage shall be not less than: 

$2,500,000 combined single limit for each occurrence 
$2,500,000 general aggregate. 

4. CONTRACTOR shall obtain evidence that all Subcontractors have in force general, 
automobile, and employer's and workers' compensation liability insurance in the amounts 
required by these Contract Documents, and evidence that each is current on its unemployment 
insurance payments before Subcontractors begin Work at the Site. CONTRACTOR shall retain 
such evidence in its files and make available to OWNER within ten (10) days after written 
request. 

5. The insurer's costs of providing the insureds a defense and appeal as additional 
insureds, including attorney's fees, shall be supplementary and shall not be included as 
part of the policy limits but shall remain the insurer's separate responsibility. 

City of Belton, Missouri Minor Construction Service Agreement 

26 

Page 3 of 12 



B. The policies listed above may not be canceled until after thirty (30) days written notice of 
cancellation to CITY, ten (1 0) days in the event of nonpayment of premium. The Workers' 
Compensation and Employers' Liability, Commercial General Liability, and Automobile Liability 
specified above shall provide that CITY and its agencies, officials, officers, and employees, 
while acting within the scope of their authority, will be named as additional insureds for the 
services performed under this Agreement. CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE TO CITY PRIOR 
TO THE EXECUTION OF THIS AGREEMENT A CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE SHOWING 
ALL REQUIRED COVERAGES, ENDORSEMENTS. ADDITIONAL INSUREDS, AND 
COMPLIANCE WITH THE TERMS OF THIS ARTICLE 8. The certificate shall be on a form 
acceptable to CITY. 

C. All insurance coverage must be written by companies that have an A.M. Best's rating of 
"B+V" or better, and are licensed or approved by the State of Missouri to do business in 
Missouri. 

D. Regardless of any approval by CITY, it is the responsibility of CONTRACTOR to maintain the 
required insurance coverage in force at all times; CONTRACTOR'S failure to do so will not 
relieve CONTRACTOR of any contractual obligation or responsibility. In the event of 
CONTRACTOR'S failure to maintain the required insurance in effect, CITY may order 
CONTRACTOR to immediately stop work, and upon ten (1 0) days' notice and an opportunity to 
cure, may pursue its remedies for breach of this Agreement as provided for herein and by law. 

E. Should the CONTRACTOR hire a sub-contractor for performance of services hereunder, said 
sub-contractor shall maintain at least the same minimum insurance amounts and terms listed 
above. 

ARTICLE 9 - EXCESSIVE UNEMPLOYMENT 
Pursuant to R.S.Mo. §§ 290.550 to 290.580 ("Excessive Unemployment Act"), only Missouri 
laborers and laborers from nonrestrictive states are allowed to be employed on Missouri's public 
works projects when the unemployment rate exceeds 5% for two consecutive months. Where 
applicable in its provision of services under this Agreement, CONTRACTOR and its sub-
con rae ors sfiall c omply wittnne Excessive Unemploym1911t~ct-. - -- · · 

ARTICLE 10- EXCUSABLE DELAYS IN PERFORMANCE 
Notwithstanding any provisions of this Agreement to the contrary, performance by 
CONTRACTOR shall not be deemed to be in default where delays in its performance hereunder 
is due to war, insurrection, strikes, lock-outs, riots, floods, earthquakes, fires, casualties, acts of 
God, labor disputes, governmental restrictions or priorities, embargoes, litigation, tornadoes, 
unusually severe weather, acts or failure to act of the CITY or of any other governmental agency 
or entity, or any other causes beyond the control or without the fault of CONTRACTOR. With the 
approval of the CITY, the time of performance hereunder shall be extended for the period of any 
delay or delays caused or resulting from any of the foregoing causes. All extensions hereunder 
shall be effective only if approved by the CITY in writing, which approval shall not be arbitrarily 
or unreasonably withheld, it being understood that CONTRACTOR is entitled to such 
reasonable extensions upon presentation of documentation of the periods of such delays. 

ARTICLE 11 -TERMINATION 
CITY may terminate or suspend performance of this Agreement for CITY'S convenience upon 
thirty (30) days' written notice to CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR shall terminate or suspend 
performance of the services on a schedule acceptable to CITY, as set forth in such written 

City of Belton, Missouri Minor Construction Service Agreement 

27 
Page 4 of 12 



notice. If termination or suspension is for CITY'S convenience, CITY shall pay CONTRACTOR 
for all services performed through the date of the termination or suspension. In the event of a 
suspension of services pursuant to the CITY's notice, upon the restart of CONTRACTOR 
services by notice of the CITY, an equitable adjustment shall be made to CONTRACTOR'S 
compensation. 

This Agreement may be terminated by either Party upon written notice in the event of 
substantial failure by the other Party to perform in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. 
The non-performing Party shall have ten (1 0) calendar days from the date of the termination 
notice to cure or to submit a plan for cure acceptable to the other Party. In the event the non
performing Party fails to cure its failure to perform, the other Party may terminate this 
Agreement, withhold payment or invoke any other legal or equitable remedy. In the event that 
funding for the Agreement is discontinued, CITY shall have the right to terminate this Agreement 
immediately upon written notice to CONTRACTOR, and CONTRACTOR shall have no claim 
against the CITY, for damages or otherwise, based upon such termination. 

ARTICLE 12- SEVERABILITY 
The invalidity, illegality or unenforceability of any provision of this Agreement or the occurrence 
of any event rendering any provision of this Agreement void shall in no way affect the validity or 
enforceability of any other provision of this Agreement. Any void provision shall be deemed 
severed from this Agreement, and the balance of this Agreement shall be construed and 
enforced as if this Agreement did not contain the particular provision held to be void. The 
Parties further agree to amend this Agreement to replace any stricken provision with a valid 
provision that comes as close as possible to the intent of the stricken provision. The provision of 
this Article shall not prevent this entire Agreement from being void should a provision which is of 
the essence of this Agreement be determined void. 

ARTICLE 13- SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 
This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of CITY's and 
·coNTRACTOR's·respectiVe permitreef success--ars-am:J·a-ssigns: --

ARTICLE 14- ASSIGNMENT 
CONTRACTOR shall not assign any rights or duties under this Agreement without the prior 
written consent of the CITY, which consent shall be in the sole discretion of the CITY. Unless 
otherwise stated in the written consent to an assignment, no assignment will release or 
discharge the assignor from any obligation under this Agreement. If CONTRACTOR assigns or 
transfers any part of CONTRACTOR'S obligations under this Agreement without the prior 
written approval of CITY, such assignment or transfer shall constitute a material breach of this 
Agreement; provided, however, the Parties acknowledge that CONTRACTOR may subcontract 
up to forty percent (40%) of the CONTRACTOR services described herein. 

ARTICLE 15- NO THIRD PARTY RIGHTS 
This Agreement is made and entered into for the sole protection and benefit of CITY and 
CONTRACTOR and their permitted successors and assigns. No other person or entity shall 
have or acquire any right or action based upon any provisions of this Agreement. 

City of Belton, Missouri Minor Construction Service Agreement 
28 

Page 5 of 12 



ARTICLE 16- INDEPENDENT CONTRACTORS 
Each Party and each sub-contractor of CONTRACTOR shall perform its activities and duties 
hereunder only as an independent contractor. The Parties and their personnel shall not be 
considered to be employees or agents of the other party. Nothing in this Agreement shall be 
interpreted as granting either P~rty the right or authority to make commitments of any kind for 
the other. This Agreement shall not constitute, create or in any way be interpreted as a joint 
venture, partnership or formal business organization of any kind. 

ARTICLE 17- MODIFICATIONS/AMENDMENTS 
CITY may at any time, by written modification or amendment and notice to CONTRACTOR, 
without notice to any surety, make changes or additions to the CONTRACTOR services to be 
provided hereunder, provided that the changes or additions are within the general scope of this 
Agreement. If any such change causes an increase or decrease in the compensation or period 
of service of this Agreement, the CONTRACTOR shall notify the appropriate Director of Public 
Works in writing immediately and an equitable adjustment will be made in the compensation or 
Period of Service or both, by written modification of this Agreement. Any claim by the 
CONTRACTOR for such adjustment must be asserted within thirty (30) days by the Parties after 
the CONTRACTOR'S receipt of notice of the modification or amendment. Nothing herein 
contained shall excuse the CONTRACTOR from proceeding with the Agreement as modified or 
amended. 

ARTICLE 18 - EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY 
CONTRACTOR will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment 
because of race, age, color, religion, sex, national origin or any other legally protected category. 
The CONTRACTOR will take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed and that 
employees are treated fairly during employment, without regard to their race, age, color, 
religion, sex or national origin. Such action shall include, but not limited to, the following: 
employment, upgrading, demotion or transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or 
termination; rates of payer other forms of compensation; and selection for training including 
apprenticesntp-.-CONIRACTOR agreers to post in conspic-u"b!Ts- pla-c~es-, -avaitabl ti eiiiploye'es
and applicants for employment, notices to be provided setting forth the provisions of this 
nondiscrimination clause. CONTRACTOR will, in all solicitations or advertisements for 
employees placed by or on behalf of the CONTRACTOR, state that all qualified applicants will 
receive consideration for employment without regard to race, age, color, religion, sex or national 
origin. 

CONTRACTOR will send to each labor union or representative of workers with which he or she 
has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding a notice to be 
provided by the Contract Compliance Officer advising the said labor union or workers' 
representatives of the CONTRACTOR commitment under this Article and shall post copies of 
the notice in conspicuous places available to employees and applicants for employment. 
In the event of CONTRACTOR'S noncompliance with the non-discrimination clauses of this 
Agreement or with any of said rules, regulations, or orders, this Agreement, at the election of 
and in the sole discretion of the CITY, may be canceled, terminated or suspended in whole or in 
part, and CONTRACTOR may be declared ineligible for any further government contracts in 
accordance with procedures authorized in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, or by 
rules, regulations, or order of the Secretary of Labor, or as otherwise provided by law. 

City of Belton, Missouri Minor Construction Service Agreement 

29 
Page 6 of 12 



ARTICLE 19- COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS 
This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Missouri, notwithstanding the 
operation of any conflict or choice of law statutes or decisional law to the contrary. The 
CONTRACTOR shall also comply with all federal and local laws, ordinances and regulations 
applicable to the services described herein and shall procure all licenses and permits necessary 
for the fulfillment of obligations under this Agreement. For any dispute that may arise out of this 
Agreement, the Parties agree that the proper jurisdiction and venue shall be the Circuit Court of 
Cass County, Missouri. 

ARTICLE 20- COMMUNICATIONS AND NOTICES 
Any communication or notices required by this Agreement shall be made in writing by U.S. mail 
to one of the contacts specified below: 

CONTRACTOR: ____________________________________________ __ 

CITY: 

Director of Public Works, 506 Main Street, Belton, MO 64012 
AND 
Ron Trivitt, City Manager, 506 Main Street, Belton, MO 64012 
AND 
Megan McGuire, City Attorney, 506 Main Street, Belton, MO 64012 

Each Party shall have the right to specify that notice be addressed to any other address by 
giving to the other Party ten (1 0) days' written notice thereof. The date of delivery of any notice 
given by mail shall be the date falling on the third day after the day of its mailing. 

ARTICLE 21 -SEPARATE AGREEMENTS 
CITY and CONTRACTOR each reserve the right to, from time to time, enter into other 
agreements for specific projects that are not contemplated under this Agreement. Provided that 
such agre-ements-are-s-eparately approve-d-in writing-by the Parties, the-terms-and--conditions of 
those agreements or contracts shall govern the implementation of the specific projects set forth 
therein. 

ARTICLE 22- SURVIVAL OF TERMS 
The following Articles shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement for any 
reason: Compensation (if any payment obligations exist); Bond; Permits and Licenses; Liability 
and Indemnification; Insurance; Severability; Assignment; Independent Contractors; Compliance 
with Laws; Survival of Terms; CITY's Legislative Powers; Entire Agreement; Waiver. 

ARTICLE 23- CITY'S LEGISLATIVE POWERS 
Notwithstanding any other provisions in this Agreement, nothing herein shall be deemed to 
usurp the governmental authority or police powers of CITY or to limit the legislative discretion of 
the City Council, and no action by the City Council in exercising its legislative authority shall be 
a default under this Agreement. 

City of Belton, Missouri Minor Construction Service Agreement 
30 

Page 7 of 12 



ARTICLE 24- WAIVER 
Waiver by CITY of any term, covenant, or condition hereof shall not operate as a waiver of any 
subsequent breach of the same or of any other term, covenant or condition. No term, covenant, 
or condition of this Agreement can be waived except by written consent of CITY, and 
forbearance or indulgence by CITY in any regard whatsoever shall not constitute a waiver of 
same to be performed by CONTRACTOR to which the same may apply and, until complete 
performance by CONTRACTOR of the term, covenant or condition, CITY shall be entitled to 
invoke any remedy available to it under this Agreement or by law despite any such forbearance 
or indulgence. 

ARTICLE 25- HEADINGS; CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT 
The headings of each section of this Agreement are for reference only. Unless the context of 
this Agreement clearly requires otherwise, all terms and words used herein, regardless of the 
number and gender in which used, shall be construed to include any other number, singular or 
plural, or any other gender, masculine, feminine or neuter, the same as if such words had been 
fully and properly written in that number or gender. 

ARTICLE 26- FEDERAL WORK AUTHORIZATION PROGRAM 
In all contracts over $5,000, when CONTRACTOR delivers the required copies of executed 
Agreements to CITY, CONTRACTOR shall also deliver to CITY an Affidavit of Enrollment in 
Federal Work Authorization Program stating CONTRACTOR is enrolled and participates in a 
federal work authorization program with respect to the employees working in connection with 
the contracted services and CONTRACTOR does not knowingly employ any person who is an 
unauthorized alien in connection with the contracted services. 

CONTRACTOR shall comply with all requirements of RSMo § 292.675 and any Department of 
Labor and Industrial Relations rules or regulations promulgated thereunder, including but not 
limited to, CONTRACTOR shall require all on-site employees to complete a 10 hour 
Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) construction safety program for all on
site employees of CONTRACTOR and its sub-contractors which includes a course in 
cons ruCtion safety-~an ea tli approved~oy OSFfA or a nsimilar program approve=··a~o=y~t=n=e=-;-. ~-~ 

Department of Labor and Industrial Relations which is at least as stringent as an approved 
OSHA program, or such employees must hold documentation of prior completion of the 
program. All on-site employees are required to complete the program within 60 days of 
beginning work on the PROJECT. CONTRACTOR shall forfeit as a penalty to CITY two 
thousand five hundred dollars plus one hundred dollars for each employee employed by the 
CONTRACTOR or sub-contractor, for each calendar day, or portion thereof, such employee is 
employed without the required training. The penalty shall not begin to accrue until 20 days after 
employees are required to complete the construction safety program. CITY shall withhold and 
retain all sums and amounts due and owing as a result of any violation of this provision when 
making payments to the CONTRACTOR. 

ARTICLE 27- CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
CONTRACTOR certifies that no officer or employee of CITY has, or will have, a direct or indirect 
financial or personal interest in this Agreement, and that no officer or employee of CITY, or 
member of such officer's or employee's immediate family, either has negotiated, or has or will 
have an arrangement, concerning employment to perform services on behalf of CONTRACTOR 
in this Agreement. 

City of Belton, Missouri Minor Construction Service Agreement 
31 

Page 8 of 12 



ARTICLE 28- BUY AMERICAN PREFERENCE 
Pursuant to the Missouri Domestic Product Procurement (Buy American) Act, RSMo. § 34.350 
to 34.359, any manufactured goods or commodities used or supplied either in the performance 
of this Agreement or of any subcontract thereto shall be manufactured, assembled or produced 
in the United States unless one of the exceptions contained in that Act applies. The 
CONTRACTOR shall comply with such requirements and shall provide proof of compliance with 
this provision both at the time of bid and before any payment is made on the Agreement. 
Pursuant to RSMo. § 71.140, preference shall be given to materials, products, supplies, 
provisions and all other articles produced, manufactured, compounded, made, or grown in the 
State of Missouri. The CONTRACTOR shall comply with such requirements and shall provide 
proof of compliance with this provision at the time of bid and before any payment is made on the 
Contract. 

ARTICLE 29- PRICING 
Any and all pricing shall be included on 00140 Bid Form and Unit Prices. 

ARTICLE 30- PROJECT SCHEDULE 
The CONTRACTOR is allowed 60 calendar days from the date of the Notice to Proceed to 
complete all work and reach Final Completion. 

ARTICLE 31 -PREVAILING WAGES 
CONTRACTOR shall comply with the terms of the Prevailing Wage Act, R.S.Mo. § 290.230, 
where applicable in the provision of Services under this Agreement. 

ARTICLE 32- BONDING 
A. CONTRACTOR shall furnish Performance and Maintenance and Payment Bonds, each in an 
·amounrar-leasf equar to the- contrnct- Prlc-e;-a-s--s-e-cority--tor--the--faithful --p-erformance and -------
payment of all CONTRACTOR's obligations under the Contract Documents. These Bonds shall 
remain in effect at least until one (1) year after the date when final payment becomes due, 
except as provided otherwise by Laws or Regulations or by the Contract Documents. 
CONTRACTOR shall also furnish such other Bonds as are required by the Contract Documents. 

B. All Bonds shall be in the form prescribed by the Contract Documents except as provided 
otherwise by Laws or Regulations, and shall be executed by such sureties as are named in the 
current list of "Companies Holding Certificates of Authority as Acceptable Sureties on Federal 
Bonds and as Acceptable Reinsuring Companies" as published in Circular 570 (amended) by 
the Financial Management Service, Surety Bond Branch, U.S. Department of the Treasury. A 
certified copy of such agent's authority to act must accompany all Bonds signed by an agent. 

C. If the surety on any Bond furnished by CONTRACTOR is declared bankrupt or becomes 
insolvent, or its right to do business is terminated in any state where any part of the Project is 
located or it ceases to meet the requirement of Paragraph 5.01 B, CONTRACTOR shall within 
twenty (20) days thereafter substitute another Bond and surety, both of which must be 
acceptable to OWNER 

City of Belton, Missouri Minor Construction Service Agreement 
32 

Page 9 of 12 



D. All Bonds and insurance required by the Contract Documents to be purchased and 
maintained by OWNER or CONTRACTOR shall be obtained from surety or insurance 
companies that are duly licensed in the State of Missouri and in the jurisdiction in which the 
Project is located, if not in Missouri, to issue Bonds or insurance policies for the limits and 
coverages so required. The surety and insurance company shall meet the following minimum 
requirements: 

1. Surety for Contracts in excess of $200,000, A.M. Best rating of B+, V, or better; 

2. Surety for Contracts less than or equal to $200,000, qualified to issue Bonds to 
amounts specified in the U.S. Dept. of Treasury Circular 570; 

3. For companies providing insurance, A.M. Best rating of B+, V, or better. 

E. If either OWNER or CONTRACTOR has any objection to the coverage afforded by or other 
provisions of the Bonds or insurance required to be purchased and maintained by the other 
party in accordance with Article 5 on the basis of non-conformance with the Contract 
Documents, the objecting party shall so notify the other party in writing within ten (10) days after 
receipt of the certificates or other evidence requested as required by Paragraph 5.03. OWNER 
and CONTRACTOR shall each provide to the other such additional information in respect of 
insurance provided as the other may reasonably request. If either party does not purchase or 
maintain all of the Bonds and insurance required of such party by the Contract Documents, such 
party shall notify the other party in writing of such failure to purchase prior to the start of the 
Work, or of such failure to maintain prior to any change in the required coverage. Without 
prejudice to any other right or remedy, the other party may elect to obtain equivalent Bonds or 
insurance to protect such other party's interests at the expense of the party who was required to 
provide such coverage, and a Change Order shall be issued to adjust the Contract Price 
accordingly. 

ARTICLE 33- CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 
__ The Sidding anc:l C~ntract Dqcuments _shall consist of th~ following_ 

Table of Contents 
Bidding Requirements 
Bidder's Affidavit 
Invitation to Bid 
Instructions to Bidders 
Storage Fabric Building Specifications 
Site Map 
Bid Form and Unit Prices 
Bid Bond 
Contracting Requirements 
Minor Construction Service Agreement 
Performance and Maintenance Bond 
Payment Bond 
Insurance Certificate 
Affidavit of Enrollment in Federal Work Authorization Program and E-Verify 
Certificate of Owner's Attorney 
Missouri Prevailing Wage Info and Forms 
Annual Wage Order No. 23 
Missouri Revised Statutes and Code of State Regulations 

City of Belton, Missouri Minor Construction Service Agreement 
33 

Page 10 of 12 



Missouri Project Exemption Certificate 
Request for Interpretation 
Change Order 

Notice to Proceed 
Notice of Award 

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank. Signature Page Immediately Follows] 

City of Belton, Missouri Minor Construction Service Agreement 
34 

Page 11 of 12 



SIGNATURE PAGE FOR AGREEMENT BETWEEN CITY OF BEL TON, MISSOURI AND 

This Agreement shall be binding on the parties thereto only after it has been duly 

executed and approved by City and Contractor. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the date 

last written below. 

Executed by Contractor this day of _________ , 20 __ . 

Executed by City this day of , 20 __ . 

BEL TON, MISSOURI 
Address and facsimile number of City 
Department: 
Public Works Department 
City Hall Annex 
520 Main Street 
Belton, MO 64012 

By: -------------

Printed Name . .:..: ---=-Je=ff.:..:D.=.av .... i=-s ____ _ 

Attested By: _________ _ 

Printed Name: __ ..:...P-=a=tt"-'i L:.::e::..::d:..:..;fo=r..,.d __ _ 

Title: City Clerk 
(Affix City Seal) 

Approved as to form: 

CONTRACTOR 
Address and facsimile number of 
Contractor: 

By:------------

Printed Name:, _ ________ _ 

Title:-------------

Attested By: _________ _ 

Printed Name: _________ _ 

Title: ---:-::-:::--=----=--=--:--:-::---::--~:---
(Affix Corporate Seal, if applicable) 

Megan McGuire, City Attorney, City of Belton, Missouri (date) 

City of Belton, Missouri · Minor Construction Service Agreement 

35 
Page 12 of 12 



SECTION VIII 
G 

36 



BILL NO. 2016-124 ORDINANCE NO. 2016-

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A RENTAL AGREEMENT WITH BERRY COMPANIES, 
INC., D/B/A KC BOBCAT OF OLATHE, KANSAS TO LEASE A BOBCAT S590 LOADER 
WITH 68 INCH LP SMOOTH BUCKET FOR USE IN AND AROUND THE BELTON PARKS 
SYSTEM AND PROVIDING ACCESS TO INSURANCE COVERAGE THROUGH THE 
CITY'S EQUIPMENT POLICY. 

WHEREAS, the Parks and Recreation Department completed a competitive bid process 
for the lease of a Bobcat with loader and the bid was awarded to KC Bobcat of Olathe, Kansas; 
and 

WHEREAS, the lease documents, herein attached and incorporated to this Ordinance as 
Exhibit "A", specify an operating lease for a six month period with renewal or purchase options 
and require insurance on the equipment pursuant to Article V of the Rental Agreement which will 
be provided through the City's insurance company; and 

WHEREAS, the Parks and Recreation Board has approved and authorized the terms and 
conditions of the Rental Agreement, and is forwarding to the Belton City Council for approval as 
the City's Governing Body as required under the terms of the Agreement. 

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that it is in the best interest of the City Parks 
system to approve this operating lease for the Bobcat loader and afford access to insurance 
coverage through the City's equipment policy. Certificate of insurance is herein attached and 
incorporated to this Ordinance as Exhibit "B." 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF BELTON, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. 

Section 2. 

Section 3. 

Section 4. 

That the Rental Agreement with Berry Companies, Inc., d/b/a/ KC Bobcat 
of Olathe, Kansas is hereby approved and the Mayor is authorized and 
directed to execute Exhibit D of the Agreement on behalf of the City 
Council. 
That the Bobcat loader will be placed on the City's insurance policy with 
costs allocated to the Parks Department. 
That this ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage 
and approval. 
That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are 
hereby repealed. 

READ FOR THE FIRST TIME: December 13, 2016 

READ FOR THE SECOND TIME AND PASSED: December 13,2016 

37 



Mayor Jeff Davis 

Approved this 13th day of December, 2016. 

ATTEST: 

Patricia Ledford, City Clerk 
City of Belton, Missouri 

STATE OF MISSOURI ) 
CITY OF BELTON ) SS 
COUNTY OF CASS ) 

Mayor Jeff Davis 

I, Patricia A. Ledford, City Clerk, do hereby certify that I have been duly appointed City Clerk of 
the City of Belton and that the foregoing ordinance was regularly introduced for first reading at a 
meeting of the City Council held on the 13th day December, 2016, and thereafter adopted as 
Ordinance No. 2016- of the City of Belton, Missouri, at a regular meeting of the City 
Council held on th~ 13th day of December, 2016, after the second reading thereofby the following 
vote, to-wit: 

AYES: COUNCILMEN: 
NOES: COUNCILMEN: 
ABSENT: COUNCILMEN: 

Patricia A. Ledford, City Clerk 
of the City of Belton, Missouri 

38 



- .Bolleal 
Customer Name/Address: 

Product .Quo,tation 
Quotation Number: HMM-00385 
Date: 2016-09-21 20:23:56 

EXHIBIT 

Bobcat Delivering Dealer 
ORD-ER TO BE PLACED 
WITH: 
Contract. Holder/Manufacturer 

Derek BEL TON' PARKS & REC 
Attn: TED LANGE 
1i4oo N.iiULLEN RD 
BELTON, KS 64012 

K.C. 'Bobc;at,Oiathe,KS 
1220 S HAiiiLTON CIRCLE 
OLATHE KS 66061-5371 
Phone: (913) 829-4600 

Clark Equipment Co dba 
Bobcat Company 
250 E Beaton Dr, PO Box aooo 
Wast Fargo, ND 58078 

Phone: 701-241-8719 
Fax: 701-280-7860 Fax: (913) 829~1552 
Contact: Heather Messmer 
Heather.Me•amer@doosan.com 

Description' 

8590 T4 ·aobcat Skid-Steer Loader 
66.0 HP Tier 4 Turbo Diesel Engine 
Auxff(ary Hydraulics: Variable Flow 
Backup Alann 
Bob-Tach 
Bobcat Interlock Control System (BICS) 
Controls: Bobcat Standard 
Cylinder Cushioning • Lift, Tllt 

Part No 
J10261 

Qty Price Ea. Total 

Lift Arm Support 
Lift Path: Vertical 
Lights, Front & ~ear 
Operator Cab 

1 $28,646.80 $28,646.80 

. . _ _EngJne/ttyd_ratdiG Sxstems $Jiutdown 
GlowPiugs (Automatically Activated) · --· · 

Includes: Adjustable Cushion Seat, Top & Rear 
Windows, P~king Brake, Seat Bar & Seat Belt 

RoJJ Over Protective Structure (ROPS) meets SAE-
11040 & ISO 3471 

····· FalJ.iDg;.Qbj~ Structure(FOPS}m~ets -
SAE-11043 & ISO 3449, Level I; (Level II is 
avaUable through Bobcat Parts) Horn 

Instrumentation: Engine Temperature & 
Fue_l Gaug••• Hounneter, RPM and 
Warning Lights 
36 ¥onth P~tection Plus (3000 Hours) 
A71 Option Package 
Cab enclosure wJth Heat and AC 
D8,(uxe lnstrvment Panel 
Keyless Start 
Power Bob-Tach 
Sou~d Reduction 
High Flow Hydraulics, TwO Speed, 

- Hydraulic Bucket Positioning, Cold 
W•ather:- Package 

Seiectable Joystick Controls (SJC) 
Air Ride Seat 3pt Belt 
... • ,. • AlA ..... ·--·-·ft. .. .&.. .. "Ps---

39 

Spark Arrestor Exhaust System 
Tires: 31 x 12-16.5, 10PR,BobcatHea-YyDuty 
Warranty: 12 Months, Unlimited Hours 

9974370 1 $2,554.00 $2,554.00 
II0281-P01·A71 1 $4,315.50 $4,315.50 

Suspension Seat 
Attachment Control Kit 
Cab Accessories Package 

M0281.P03·F50 

II0281-R01..Co4 

ii.0281-R05..C12 

1 $2,612.40 $2,612.40 

1 $1,080.50 $1,060.50 
1 $2~9.80 $219.80 
• ..... "'"' . . ... "'"' 



"IU•"IU.a, "IU I""R.1 neiiYY UUlJ lire• 
Radio 
sa•• Low Profile Bucket 

Bolt-On Cutting Edge, 68 .. 

II0281-R28-C02 

6731418 
6718006 

.• .u.uu 
1 $291.90 
1 $886.00 
1 $147.27 

.u.uu 
$291.90 
$686.00 
$147.27 

Total of Items Quoted 
Dealer Assembly Charges 
Quote Total - US dollars 

$40,534.17 
$52.50 

$40,586.67 

Notes: 

*Pdce. off ... oud Contract# 3-130326RW. Contm:t Expltes: 5·1-2016 THRU 4·30·201 7 
*Terms Net 30 Days. Oedlt cards accepted. 
*FOB: Dfllltlnatlon wlhln the 48 Contiguous Stat•· 
*Delfv91Y: flO to 90 days rw less trom ARO. 
*State Sales Tares apply. IF Tu Exempt, please provide Tax &elrflt Cetfificate with order. 
*DIJI.lB-0426360 
-oor111 .. U)& Plat:ect -tylh: Clark Equipment Company dba Bobcat Company~ Govt Sales, 260 E 
Beaton l)dve, PO Box 6000, West Ftlrsloi ND 58918. 

Pdces & SpeCIIclllons areaubjed to change. Please cal betJre placing an order . .AppUesto tu:toiY ordered unlfs only. 

r 

SHIP TO ADDRESS:--....--:------------------

BILL TO ADDRESS (if different than Ship To): _______________ _ 

40 



A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING EXECUTION OF A RENTAL 
AGREE1\1ENT WITH BERRY CO.rvtPANIES, INC., DBA KC BOBCAT, OF OLATHE, 
KANSAS TO LEASE A BOBCAT S590 LOADER WITH 68 INCH LP SMOOTH BUCKET 
FOR USE IN AND AROUND THE CITY OF BELTON, MISSOURI PARKS 

WHEREAS, the Parks and Recreation Department completed a competitive bid process for the 
lease of a Bobcat with loader and the bid was awarded to KC Bobcat of Olathe, Kansas; and 

WHEREAS, the lease documents, herein attached and incorporated to this resolution as Exhibit 
"A" specify an operating lease for a six month period with renewal or ptll'Chase,op~~ns and requite 
insurance on the equipment pursuant to Article V of the Rental Agreement w.hieh will be provided 
through the City's insurance company; and 

WHEREAS, if the Parks and Recreation Board approves of and authorizes the terms and 
conditions of the Rental Agreement, the lease documents will be forwarded to the Belton City 
Council for approvaJ.·as the City's Governing Body. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BELTON PARKS AND 
RECREATION BOARD, AS FOLLOWS: . 

Section 1. That the Rental Agreement with Berry Companies, Inc., doing business as KC Bobcat, 
herein attached and incorporated as Exhibit "A", is hereby approved. 

Becff0llc2· The Director ofthe Parks and Recreatian Depatttnent is here.by authorized and directed 
to sign the Rental Agreement and take such actions as they may de~ necessary or advisabl~ to 
c:ar.ry .ou~ and perform t1l:e purposes of this ResQltJtion. 

Section 3. The Rerita.l Agre~ent and accompanying documents will be forwarded, to the City·o.f 
Belton CityCo:imp1l to-review and appro:vt} a:s ·ij}e·Ooveniing B0.dy-ef.the.City.Qf.BeJtQ11.ana pbW_.eL 
fpl~e· ih the Cio/' s name and insure the persgnal pr~perty Wldet the Cit)'.'s poocy ·of in.stlrance. 

Sectf.on 4. Effective'Date. this Resolu;fion shall take effect and be in full force immediately after 
its adOption by the Board and the City Coun<::iL 

Duly read and passed this 21st day of November 2016. 

41 



November 14, 2016 

Ms. Dawn Carnahan 
Berry Companies, Inc. DBA KC Bobcat 

.1880 CfiAR~ PUCE 1877-587-4054 
MANIJATTA~, KS 81502 

SENT' WA EMAJL: DCWJNAHANI!KIZ'8QBCAT.COM 

Re: Financing for City of Belton, Missouri (Belton Parks and Recreation) for One (1) Bobcat 5590 Loader with 68" LP Smooth 
Bucket 

Dear Ms. Carnahan: 

Thank you for choosing KS State Bank as your financing source. Attached hereto, please find the Agreement and documentation for 
your review and completion. Included is a Documentation Instruction sheet to guide you through the process. All required 
documentation must be received by 3:00pm CST In order to fund the following business day. 

The interest rate you have been quoted Is valid through November 19, 2016. 

Please note that, depending on circumstances, we reserve the right to charge a reasonable fee to Renter/broker, if this 
transaction Is not funded. This fee Is for expenses Incurred and services performed related to the processing of the transaction. 
This fee will NOT be charged If the transaction Is funded by Owner. 

If you have any questions regarding the documentation please feel free to contact me at (877) 587-4054. 

Sincerely, - -

Ms. Jojo Bellinder 
Client Relations 

'": · · ·· · 1\>lANHAn,.:;.N I JUNCTION Cl f)' I WICHITA I PHOENI X I Ks'-'t~tFoil rH!k . !:llfTl 



ASSIGNMENT 

This Assignment, dated November 15, 2016, Is hereby given by Berry Companies, Inc. DBA KC Bobcat, ("Assignor"), to KS StateBank ("Assignee"), whose mailing address Is 1010 Westloop, 
P.O. Box 69, Manhattan, Kansas 66505-0069. 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, Assignor has entered into a Rental Agreement dated as of November 15, 2016, (the "Contract"), with City of Belton, Missouri (Belton Parks and Recreation) (the "Renter") 
pursuant to which the equipment more particularly described therein (the "Equipment") Is being sold to Renter under the terms stated in the Contract; 

WHEREAS, Assignor desires to sell, assrsn and transfer to Asslsnee, Assignor's right, title and .fntere5t In, the Rental Payments comins due under the Contract upon the terms and conditions 
stated below: 

WHEREAS, to~ccure the paymtnt of thumaunts f\lted In the previolfsipi~h. AssJan.arhereby grants to Assignee a security interest under the Uniform Commercial Code constltutlns a 
first !len on thci.E~ipment, lndudlns a If additions, repairs and replacenienisto lfle Equlpme~~t and all proceeds thereof: 

NOW, THEREFORE, In consideration of the premises, the covenants contained herein, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and adequacy of which are hereby 
acknowledged, Assignor hereby sells, transfers, delivers and assigns to Assignee, Its successors and assigns, without recourse, all of Its right, title and interest in, to and under the following 
Items: 

All Rental Payments due and to become due from the Renter under the Contract Including, without limitation, the present value of any prepayment of Rental Payments, or early 
termination of the Equipment obligations under the Contract or the use of any Equipment under the Contract, purchase agreement payments, or any Insurance proceeds received 
pursuant to the terms of the Contract or any amounts owed due to late payment under the Contract, (collectively the "Rental Payments"), 

Assignor is not assigning any of its obligations to Renter under the foregoing to Assignee, and Assignee shall not be deemed to have assumed any of those obligations by virtue of this 
Assignment. 

Assignor hereby grants to Assignee a security Interest under the Uniform Commercial Code constituting a flrst lien on the Equipment desctlbed more fully on Exhibit A. The security Interest 
established by this section Include! not only all additions, attachments, repairs and replacements to the Equipment but also all proceeds therefrom. 

Assignor Irrevocably constitutes and appoints Assignee and any present or future officer or agent of Anlgnee, or the successors or assigns of Assignee, as Its lawful attorney with Full power 
of substitution and re-substitution, and In the name of Assignor or otherwise, to collect and to sue in any court for payments due or to become due under the Contract, or any part thereof, 
to withdraw or settle any claims, suits or proceedings pertaining to or arising out of the Contract upon such terms as Assignee In Its discretion may deem to be in Its best interest, all withotrt 
nottce to or consent of Assignor, and, further, to take possession and to endorse in the name of Assignor any instrument for the payment of money received on account of the payments due 
under the Contract. 

Assignor hereby represents, warrants and covenants to and with Asslsnee as follows: 

(1) The Contract and the Equipment are free and clear of all claims, liens, security interests and encumbrances of any kind or character, except the rights of the Renter under the Contract 
and eKcept as contemplated In the Contract The Contract and the Equipment shall remain free of all claims, liens, security Interests and encumbrances arising through any act or 
omission of Assignor. Also, Assignor shall pay, or have Renter pay, for all permits, licenses, and taxes related to the ownership, installation, operation, possession, storage or use of the 
Equipment. 

(2) Assignor has and will comply with and perform all obligations of Owner under the Contract and aU related documents, contracts, agreements and instruments related to the 
Equipment, or the servicing or maintenance thereof. 

(3) The. Contract delivered to Assignee herewith Is an original and constitutes the entire writing, obngatlon and agreement between the Assignor and't,he Renter. Assignor has not made 
any representations, oral or written, to Renter that In any way conflict with any of the terms of the Contract. Assignor has not received any fees or any other form of compensation 
from Renter that have not been fully disclosed to Assignee in writing prior to the execution ofthls Assignment . 

.(._i_.~.~!B!!!!!:_hereby _rep.resents ancLwarrants_th;tt Asslgnqr_)J;Ls_m!l.de_l!od.J'l!llJ!1ake nQ.sale o.r_asslsnment .. of the.AssJgnee'sJntere:~tln. tb.e.Contractexcept ~,t.he !IJsJs!l~·-•nd has made 
. - ·andWIJI ma~e-no saleofassJgnment ofASsfiinoi'':S liifereit liitheContract'to a thliii"partii'ii.iitiiout the prior written approval of Assignee. 

(S) Assignor wUI pay, or cause the Renter to pay, any fees associated with the use of a payment system other than check, wire transfer, or ACH. 

(6) Assignor will Indemnify, defend and hold Assignee harmless from and against all claims, losses, costs and expenses (Including. without limitation, attorneys' fees) arising from or 
growing out of the failure of Assignor to keep or perform any of the warranties, covenants or agreements contained in this Assignment. 

At the request of the Assignee, including but not limited to Events of Default or non-appropriation by Renter, or repossession or other civil action by Assignee, Assignor from time to time 
shall execute and deliver such further aclcnowledgments, agreements, and instruments of asslsnment, transfer and assurance, Including bills of sale for the Equipment, and do all such 
further ac:ts and things as may be necessary or appropriate In the reasonable opinion of Assignee to give effect to the provisions hereof, to effectuate Assignee's remedies, and to more 
perfectly conflrm the rights, titles and interests assigned and transferred to Assignee. 

This Assignment (Including without llmltatlon all representations, warranties and covenants) shall be binding en Assignor and Its successors and assigns, and will inure to the benefit of 
Assignee and Its successors and assigns (Including without limitation any subsequent assignees of any right, title or interest assigned hereby.) 

TN WITNESS WHEREOF, Assignor has eJ<ecuted this Assignment as of the date first above written. 

Berry Companies, Inc. DBA KC Bobcat KS StateBank 

Slgn'ature Signature 
Marsha Jarv(s, Senior Vice President 

Printed Name and ntre Printed Name and Title 

43 



PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

Tlie Purdla:5e...,._t dated as of~ 25, 20161S'betwel!l1 KSStateD~nk,; Kansas corporatlon.lllhosnprlrldplaplx.eof business IS 1010 Westloop, M:Jnhattan, KS 68.502 ~Iter) 
and BenyCOfnp;lnies:, Inc. oeA KC eobcar, 11 KanJ1IS ror110ntlon, whose pdnclpfeplaee ofb1u1nw ls1220Sovtiii~Cin::le. Olathe, KanRS 66061 (B<.Iytlt. 

w?!QttaS, Stier Is the O'&Jer on the Ren~ ~•e.ement dil!ad' u of No~ember 15, 20l6 IC.Onlr.lttl b~ lllsr;l Companies, Inc. DBA KC Bobat (OWI\11~ ar4 CR'; of· Bellnn, Mlnoun 
(Bellon hrlcnnd ~Uon) (Rent«); and 

Wherns,lluye'- the Vendor who supplied aN ofth~~cB:!ulpment(E"qjllprnenr). llsted on Exhibit A of the.ConlnQ; a,pd 

Whlft3fo the 11mter hanveed to pay under the paymenetermuf the Conlnletll nnal paymentof$35.072.92MIIdl ia clue on NOVl!mber.lS, l017land 

Wh~ the poS3b11ty nlsts that Renter will not a]l!)l'DPtll!ooall•o£ tha fundsnecess:ary to make this final ~of$3&.072..921n which c.se the Seht (OWnu M lila <1011tnct~w1Wmcst 
Rkely I!XII'Ciseone orrnore of the remeclesal/'iUabletoSelle' lnclucflnJ obQ!nlniJ poumlon and title to Ute Equlpnenl; and 

Whllr5l'o lklyet has agreed to enter Into thri PUrthasa.).gieementwltli seller as a eoiidltio'n for the Selh!!r fo ei\b!f"into""tliiecontta'ct \vlth Renter~ 

NCWTREREfOAf, tile parties hereto hereby .,.ree u fellows:: 

(1) rn tile -t 11m: Seller recel~~ notice from the Renten tllat the.ll&nter does not lntllnd to ~r~lm the fm!ds tD pay 'the flnel paymant, then, IIllO" no!llreatTOIIcfron~!lle senile to 
l!le llltye- of .sutll event, Buyengr- to tllka aufinmgnl of the. Contract from tltaS~Ier far"" amDIInt equallo tbefln:aJ pavment amount of $36,072.9l! plliLllll\9 liltetastiO,nad 111 
the Cootr.Kt rate thereon, up until lhe date of E'quipmenltransfe~ ot date of Rn31 payment to Sellc!r, 'lltl1d>tMr ~ bter. Once Seller miJ!ns ~I of its r!&flts. lltteJ andl lnte~ut!n the 
~to 8uy«r ;g provldod herein, the Buy"' wflli ha~e fullaotbClllty to reposs~s the Equipment 5eler .- tD etetutll any additional docurnentaUon lhiiO lml\f be necesnry In 
order to fKIIIQtatho rcposseuion of the Equlpnu~ntbvtho Buye1. 

(2) In lhe -ttflat the Seller actually e>retdiM ltHe<ned'{uoder the-Contmct and h!ku IItle to the Equlpment~~.-ewlt of Ranters folluro w P'OV tho ftnal R~nt•l PiiVmMt then Buyer 
htnlly 3gTIIeS to buy the Equipment from Seller In an amount e<~~••l to the final payment ~/'IJOUnt of$36,0'7232 ph.!s any Interest earned at the Contract rata thetaon, ug. until th11. date 
of Equipment tnnsfer or date ofnnal payment 10 Seller, whlch8ller Is later. 

(3) Buyerl1!pf8Sents and warrants as follows: 

11. Buy'er I! duly orpnlled andwlidl', ~xiUingJngood Jtandlns undlll' the laws or the,~~ llifilsinoorporatloo. 
b. Buyer has full power and iKitharlfy: ro carry on Its. busln<!u as pr111enlfy cond<lctl!d. liD enter ln!D tllis asream~nt, and tD perfonn Its obllptrons· uoct.r thl$ 

acr<~ement 

c. The execution, oonvery and pe.Wrmanc:e.cfthl.:agrnement ond the transldlons ~llet'ebV hiiVe been duly and llihdly auth0tlled6t all, rtCIJJI.sllluctlon 
on th• part of the Bu.,.r. 

d. This 111reement is a lesal and bindhllfablfption of luy<!r, enforceable In accordance will! lis r... 
a. Buyer has Incurred 110 llablllty, tMtlhgent ar athi!IW!te, far brok<ln' or nn~ fees ~11& to '!tie tniiSllttlon contemplated by this ave.emen~ (i)~ whfcli Stlrer 

.sh•ll have any responsibility whatsoc~er. 
f. Buyer b knowledsnbla, competept;. a116 uprlencad In the Industry .net has lndepald!s>tlv eralumd and interpreted aU 1nforTn211oft arull rfatili lltf'atfRa In the 

equipment prior ro "nterfnc Into tl\ISl agreement and undentands und Is full'( able !D bsrtbedst~ated with this aareement BISVU dnowlecfps: lh.t Seller 
has made no statements or ntpresentatlon$ concemlnrr the pres11nt cr M"re Vlllueoftbeequlpment ~nd Buyer has r~ii!d solely upon II$ Independent Jospectlan, 
estimates, computations, evafvatfCI!o5;. 1;eperts;. studies and knowledge of the equipment. 

I· These representations and Willl'antlesshalls~t'olille:tlleclo.silll. 

(4) ~ anythfns to the contrary, Selle£ malls no. tOfll'esentiltfoM or warranties with respect liD lhf: equipment tl•at Is the subject of this agJUment lilly~ agrees to 
ptrrdwll md Seller .shall convey the property "'as r~. where 1~ Without any rep~sen~tloM. IIIJ!Ieabodll8t allll/or expms or Implied Wllrranues of anv ldnd, lnc!Udlna 
representallaru, understandlnf!S, and/or w.rrantle< as to, descrtjlllbn, value-, quality, ~ondillon, rTM!I'dla!labllll¥, ar fltlle-ss for ~ pirUcular pui'J)ose. Buyer adrnowftd!el< 111d aarees 
thR Sell!l' b not In tho p~sesslon of the equipment and tltmt the Rlii!M 1.! In pom~sslon of the equlpment.md~ connol ofoSUch equipment. Buyer admowli!dps tblltSriertsnelther 
tfle manufactul1!f or distributor, 11nd that Seller has rw linowledp. or-familiarity with the equi~ IIUyer •eeUoftttle all cl11rns, defenses, setoffs, and counteR!allns.lt may hava 
wltb any manufacturer, d!Jtrlbutor, or other party telat:edlto tl\~equlpment. and '~Ill not assert lilY sud! dUM ;aplnst Seller. • 

(S) The terms and conditions of this ~sreement shalllnu~to. the benentof and be binding upon therepeajVe-.sandasslgns of tho parUes. 

Berry Companies, Inc:. DBA KC Bobcat 

Printed NameandTitle 

48-0791941 
TuiDNumbet 

ICS StateBanlr:: 

Sl&nabn 
MarshaJiiiYis, Senior VIce President 

44 



CllY OF BELTON, MISSOURIIBELTON PARKS AND RECREATION) 

DOCUMENTATION INSTRUCTIONS 

The instructions listed below should be followed when completing the enclosed documentation. Pleqg print on i(nqle sC«eil PaD«' on(¥. 
Documentation completed Improperly will delay funding. If you have any questions regarding the Conditions to Funding, Instructions or the 
documentation, please call us at (816) 229-4006. 

I. Attached Documentation 

1. Rental Agreement 
t An authorized Individual that is with the Renter should sign on the first space provided. 

Z. Exhibit A- Description of Equipment 
+ Review equipment description. Complete serial number/VIN If applicable. 
+ List the location where the equipment will be located after delivery/Installation. 

3. Exhibit B- Payment Schedule 
+ Sign and print name and title 

4. Exhibit C - Certificate of Acceptance 
+ Sign and print name and title 

5. Exhibit D • Certificate of Authorization 
+ Print or type the name and title of the indlvldual(s)'who Is authorized to execute the Agreement. 
+ The secretary, chairman or other authorized board member of the Renter must sign the Certificate where indicated. 
+ A different Individual must attest the Certificate where indicated. 

6. Notice of Assignment 
• Sign and type name and title. 

7. Insurance Requirements 
+ Complete insurance company contact information where indicated. 

8. Debit Authorization- (Preferred) 
+ Complete form and attach a voided check 

11. Additional Documentation Required 

1. Insurance Certificate as stated on the Insurance Requirements Form 
2. Vendor Invoice for the amount to finance listing applicable SN/VIN, down payment, trade, etc. 
3. Proof of down payment 

Ill. Condition to Funding 

ff, for any reas~n: <0 the r:e~~tre'd ao·cumerybltron Is n~:fetume'i"by January 7, 2017, is Incomplete; or has uriresolv'eiJ' ssues re ting t erato~ or( II) 
on, or prtoi''to th~ tfitU11J of th'e-docurilen~on, t~e.re Is a cha.nse of clroumstance which adversely affects tbe ~p.ecta~o.n~, rlghts or security of the 
Gwn~:r. or· it,s SS.S!Bnee~; tffen Owner: OF "lts.asSJgnees reserve tni! i.fgf\t to adjust the quoted Interest rate or withdraw/void Its offer to fund this 
transaction in its entiretY. Neither KS StateBank nor Baystone Government Finance Is acting as an advisor to the municipal entity/obligated person 
and neither owes a fiduciary duty pursuant to Seer/on 158 of the Exchange Act of 1934. 

All documentation should be returned to: 
Berry Companies, Inc. DBA KC Bobcat 

1220 South Hamilton Circle 
Olathe, Kansas 66061 

45 



RENTAL AGREEMENT 

Renter 
City of Belton, Missouri (Belton Parks and Recreation) 
506 Main Street 
Belton, Missouri 64012 
FederaiiD#: 44-0000137 

Dated as of November 15, 2016 

Owner 
Berry Companies, Inc. DBA KC Bobcat 
1220 South Hamilton Circle 
Olathe, Kansas 66061 
Federal ID#: 48-0797941 

Rental Non-App 

This Rental Agreement dated as of the date listed above is between Owner and Renter listed directly above. Owner desires to rent the Equipment described in Exhibit "A" to Renter and 
Renter desires to rent the Equipment from Owner subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreem~.nt whl~h are set ~rt~ ~elo~. 

1. OeftniUons 
SOc!!on ·l.lh DOflnl!lqns. The following terms will have the meanings lndlcat!!d below unless the context clearly requires otherwise; 
•Agreement" me•ns thl5 Rental Agreement and all Elchlblts and Addendums attached hereto, and a« documents relied upon by Owner prior to the execution of this Agreement. 
' Bud&et Year" means tho Ranter's r.scal year. 
•commencement Date" Is the date when Renter's obllsatlon to pay rent begins. 
"Equipment" mean1 all of the llems of Equipment listed on Exhibit "A" and all repla~ements, restorations, modifications and Improvements. 
"Owner" means t.he entity originally listed above as Owner or any of its assignees. 
•or~tl T!lim" me11UU tha ~lifrom u.e:Cof1lmencement Date 11ntll the end of· the Budget Year of Ranter. 
"Ren.wst Term" tneellS the armuel term wlllell beslns arthe 1!All of· the Original Term and·whtch Is Simultaneous with Renter's Budiet Year. 
' RentJI Payments" means the payments Renter Is required to make under this Aijreemont at set forth on Exhibit "B". 
"Rental Term• means the Orlgln~l Term and ~II Renewal Terms. 
''Renter" means the entity listed above as Renter and which Is renting the Equipment from Owner under the provisions of this Agreement. 
"State" means the state In which Renter Is located. 

II. Renter Warranties 
SC!C!Ion'2,01 ll«!tll rmmrs. watn!DISJD!fGO'W!Wl!Sjll follgws foe tho-!ienoftt4fOwotrpr !tfJUIRO!!!lSj 
(d) Rehterli l\lthoilfed·tO ~~)tin lntb tlllJ Agr~t, ~n:d hp:s ~~·3\icti a'ut!toilty io proporly execute and deliver this Agreement. Renter has fotlowed all proper procedures of Its 

governing body In executing this Agreement. The Offit:., of Renter executing this Agreement hilS the authority to execute and deliver this Agreement. This AIJTcement constitutes a 
legal, valid, binding and ej!forceable obligation orthe Renter In accordance with Its terms. 

(b) Renter has complied with all statutory laws and regulations that may be applicable to the execution of this Agreement. 
(c) Renter has never non-appropriated funds under an Asreement similar to this Agreement.• 
(d) Upon request by Owner, Renter will provide Owner with current nnanclal statements, reports, budgets or other relevant fiscal information. 
(e) Renter presently Intends to continue this Agreement for the Oril!lnal Term and all Renewal Terms as set forth on Exhibit "B" hereto. The official of Renter responsible for budset 

preparation will Include In the budget request for each Budget Year the Rental Payments to become due in such Budget year, and will use all reason;~blc and lawful means available to 
secure the appropriation of money for such Budget Year •ufncJent to pay the Rental Pilyments coming due therein. Rentl!rreasonably believes that moneys can and willluwfully be 
appropriated and made available for thJs purpose. 

111. Use of Equipment and Rental Payments 
S!:ctlon&!)1 losti!Jia!!jio i!Dd ASc!l!l!l!£e. R!!Dtcr shall be sol!!ly responsible for the ordering of the Equipment and for the delivery and Installation of the Equipment. llenter has selected or 
will select all of the Equipment and the manufacturer or supplier thereof (the "Supplter{s)") and therefore acknowledges that Owner has not selected, manufactured, supplied or provided 
any EqulpmenL As soon as practicable after the date on whkh the Equipment has been delivered and determined by SuppUerjs) to be ready for use at Renter's location (the "Acceptance 
Dare•), Renter will exe~:ute a Certlfica.te of Acceptance In the form attached and dated as of the Acceptance Date. If (I) no Event or Default has occurred, (Ill Ovmer receives such executed 
Certtncate of Acceptance, all other documents and Information required under this Agreement, and (Ill) Owner receives appropriate Invoices and related documents from Suppller(s), OWner 
shall pay the Supplier(s) for the Equipment. Renter shall arrange with the Suppller(s) for dellvttry •nd InstallatiOn of EqulpfJleru. All Equipment shall be shipped directly from Suppller(s) to 
'!.•nte~ O~er s~!rr. h~ no ll~llty for ~v d~ay or failure ~~he_s~p_!l!.'.(s) to dellv~ ~~ E91!'E!!.~1 .~~ p~orm ~~y ,tervl~es or wi!!JI.lal! to the .select10 ~, lnst11!1<ttion, 

- teiffng, 'pcrrormance, qu11lty, main enaoce or support o t~e Equipment. Renter, at Its l!l(pense, wiU pay all transportation, pa~klns, t<J~es, duties, Insurance, lnstaUatlon, wtlng, 
maintenance and other charges In connectlon with the de !.Ivery, Installation and use of the Equipment. 
Secjt!Qij a:02 Rentil!!jMnen!l.. Renter shall p-ay Rental Payments exclusively tu OWner or Its asslgneer In lawful, legally available monoy of the United States of 1\merlca. The Rental 
Payments shall be sent to the location specified by the Owner or Its assignees. The Rental P<lyments shall con511tutc a c:Urrent expense of tho Renter and shall not constitute an Indebtedness 
of the Renter. Owner shall have the option to charge Interest at the highest lawful l'\lle on any Rental Payment received later than the due date, plus •ny additional accrual on the 
outstanding balance for the number of d~ys that tile Rentlll Payment(s) wcr" late. Owner shall also have the option, on monthly payments only, to charg" a late fee of up to lDn of the 
monthly Rental Payment that is past due. The Rental P<lyments wlll be payable without notk:e or demand. Renter shall pay or, If requc.ned by OWner, reimburse Owner for any and all sales, 
us.,, personal property, or other taxes, fees or asses~mentslevled acalnst or Imposed upon the Equipment, Its value, usc or opernllon. Furthermore, Renter agrees to pay any fees associated 
with tlte use or a payment system other than c/'leck, wire transfer, or ACH. 
·Sgstlan a,Q3 Ren!ll fumc01s UnCondqioMI; EX~;<Pt as provided under Section 4.01, THE OBLIGATIONS OF REI'ffiR TO MAKE RENTAL PAVMEm5 AND TO PERFORM AND OBSERVE THE 
OltlER COVENANTS CONTAINED IN THIS AGREEMENT SHALL 8f ABSOLUTE AND UNCONDITIONAL IN All EVENTS WITHOUT AJIATeMENT, DIMINUTION, OEDUCTION, SET·OFl' OR DEfENSE'. 
Renter understands and agrees th.at neither the manufacturer, seller or supplier of any Equipment, nor any salesman or other agent of any such manufacturer, seller or supplier, Is an agent 
of Owner. No salesman or oecnt of the manufacturer, seller or supplier of any Equipment Is authorltod to waive or altt!t any term or condition ofthl1 Agreement, end no represenliltion as 
to Equipment or any other matter by the manufacturer, seller or supplier of any Equipment •hall In any way affett Rent~r's duty to pay the Rental Payments and perform Its other obllgaUons 
as set forth In this Agreement. 
SS®M!JI!;Rfnll!!.yi'l!!. The Rental Term of the Agreement shall be the Original Term and all Renewal Terms until all th@ Rental Payments are paid as set forth on Exhibit B. 
SictfOn a.Q$,oJSdaljrjm. 
(il) OWNER, NOT BEING THE SUPPliER OR THE AGENT OF ANY SUPPLIER, MAKES NO WARRAN'IY, REPRESENTATION OR COV£NANT, EXPRESS OR IMPUED, ASTO ANY MATTER WHA'ffi/ER, 

INClUDING, BUT NOT UMrTED TO THE MERCHA~ITABILTTY OF THE EQUIPMENT OR THEIR fiTNESS FORANV PARTICUUIR PURPOSE, THE DESIGN, QUALITY, CAPACTTY OR CONDITION OF 
THE EQUIPMSIIT COMPLIANCE OF THE EQUIPMENT WITH TfiE REQUIREMENT OF ANY lAW, RULE, SPECIFICATION OR AGREEMENT, PATENT OR COPYRIGHT INFRINGEMENT, OR 
UITENT. DEFECTS. OWNER SHAU HAVE NO LIABILITY WHATSOEVER FOR THE BREACH OF ANY REPRESENTATION OR WARRAN1Y MADE BY THE SUPPLIER(S). OWNER MAKES NO 
REPRESENTAT10N AS TO THEl'REATMENT BV RENTER OF THIS AGREEMENT FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENT OR TAX PURPOSES. RENTER AGREES THE EQUIPMENT IS "AS IS." Renter 
agtces, regardless of causa, not to assert any claim whatsoever agalnsl Owner for any Indirect, co"sequenUal, Incidental or special damage~ or loss, of any kind, includinl!. without 
limitation, any loss of business, lost profits or Interruption of service. Any action by Renter against Owner for any default by Owner under this Agreement shall bo commenced within 
one (11 year ~fter any su~h cause of action accrues. 

(b) Renter shall look solely to the Suppller(s) for any and all claims related to the Equipment. RENTER UNDERSTANDS AND AGREES TIIAT NEITHER SUPPLIER(S) NOR ANY SALESPERSON OR 
OTHER AGENT OF SUPPllER(S} IS AN AGENT OF OWNER, NOR ARE ANY OF TfiEM AUTHORIZED TO WAIVE Oil ALTER THIS AGREEMENT. No representation by Supplier(sl shall in any 
woy affect Renter'J duty to pay the Rental Payments ;nd perform Its obllgatlonr under this 1\srcemen~ 

46 



Moo a;O§ lnil RCRcngl Ttrm Opt!om. Rl!lt:er.lll~/ifno Evont of Dofilult tmin ~ 0) p~~ all {but notJess•d!JO •nJ Qftii!J ~qUipmenfby piytlllj OWrfo[ tft~t faiNI)I!lcel Vlllue ortlte 
EQUipment u cleb!nn!ned by owner, (II} tenew ~ Apeemaintfor I pOtiO,ctof ~·~~~in -~ (8} lllllnlhs ati.$811'1Hrtnual "*ttl:aa·hVnt.enfto·be da_tiirtnln.elf.it lline -Of're/l'ew.t~ Ol (111) 
ruturn 'E'qvlpn!ejlt to'tlle owner,porsuant to Section 3.1)7> RGirter must R!'oYII!G .Oymbl will@t dol/ce·af lila option mloelll<f.mit I au th_tn -9.0 elM prior .to lfi~·e,~d o~-II)~·Ra.ll~ T~. If such 
na.ll~ ~ ilo_t r«e!VIi¢.,qTMIMnt wm a~·fe!l~ for one.yeer at th-aun'ent ftaliiii.PIY!"IinL If~ llfacts,.to -purchase.fqulpmlnt, Jtan~ mall, 011~'~/Jiy oftllell8rol 
term/~ tl? C).wnJr tliO:p.~rpl! ~for EQulp!nent-ln.cashJ ond upa11 tel!el~ of sud!·P"riioelli OWner 1~1111 tmlsfol"to Ri!lf~ title to the.Egul)lnltnt,lteemd·c!* or~ ~In!, 11111. or 
enel!mflrance (other thJil tf:l<\!jl,fle!d·by pa~.d.lllmJ,.I)y, t:lw118{1.or 011dilr Rll!tet), but·wllflcoUt r~rst, IWf!l'~~n or IIIV other warrmty, exprass or ImPlied, "AS IS", (n·I!J thaa 
amlltkmanillocillloll. RentJc~b•U b.al'at~le.filr.all ~ppncable.Aie.s, use, POifOMI P'l111«rtv •nd pillar axe. · 
Sec!fQq 111~ SI!!!]Qd«. Ollc:e.RIIItei has ina~ IR o; the Rental f'ivn!entcs -~ torih Ulldar !lchlblt B, Rtnt.ir, .t Its .mle ~we.. iliaD p,. .or~l Si!PP!fer to:b!ardown, ~ ed .for the 
~m of EqulpmenNo OWn II"• storaae·fedfltV. own.r amf.Rentar J1talllriSplrd: lllo·E!IufPm811t upDI1 their rtmOVlll, and the rasalts ofiudl ~o.ns Sll.U·z. con'd~lve as til illy dllmae 
to lllt · liitll1~t ·~ol'clln(ily wur and 1ea~. Rllllter shtlf !it-rii$JIOftJible jpr the ptompJ.JMV~~~ent ohny.end alr'dirmaet.to dr~ Jn v•l\la of tho !q_uJixrieric..At.t'heeollC!uiron of 
iheAir:eenien:t. th.li '~tor ~crams to ~ner a nlllet'(·'iso! driV rent.free pei{Od'oftlll.tnttar ~lnttton fo!t11• ewn'er to rcn\CM1 tha.Equfpmeot. · ' · 

IV. No~opl'lallon . 
Slllj!!qO if.91 tfmy-Apllp!pj'fllld!l. If lnsuffldent iunds·ll!-8 available In RenWs.IMIB~ ror .the.ntat blid8et 'i)!at to maka:the bntal ~fOr tire ~flit RaniWIIII!!in anll tlle.ft!ads til 
niakesucfl Ranfal Pavmlntl'aie.othltwl!e.~Dabl~ tw-urlaWful meanswlla~. ~ ~tll'-s.rr.n lfiv_li tf\e.opl!ori<wn.on-eppropflattilralvndJto f1l't t1!e 11tnte1 ~'r.ortfl! 
IIIII¢ Ren.ewa/T~. ijq of il ~dint IPRrol'lfJ!loruliirll be evfclenl:ell by the Q8aqe.ohn Ofdlqa~i:e« resoi~J.Uon by tile -~ bocfro_lllelrter JfMCI!kllly'JI('Oh!llltlris lteli~ froni 
ptrform!IIJ ~Oblll.&11$~~ ·kf~nt-aniUrom Ul!nk !IIIV mon!IYI to pey ltle:Rentiii!IYmants !Ni uildilr.Jhls Aimiri:IJI!Itfor • ~imld BaclptYear·endlll sutiftquent'~et 
'v~ .If Renter ~hoosu th~opllon. jhen a_U oblfta:tlonliff tiiii'Rqilter unil.er !tits ~t ~ardliiJ RentaJ ~ts:ro;- all romjjniJ!i .Riinew.J T~-terrnl(tet_ed et1Jie antof 
th!·lftcn currlnt"Oitef(III·T81111 or·Renewaf Term wt~ut jit'iilllY,oi' illlbthtv to 'the RealM of."any Jdnd provta.d ·th~t lf-Rentar ·~.not ~ ~~~ 9fthe ~PII).ent~ owner as 
J1111'l'l~ed h«elil-ailcf~ to OWner or reiiiiiS«d llf"lntitest ljl t.he· ~J!IIHlll}- by the entr of tfla lasfau~ Year for v.fllch 'Rentai.Payml!llt. • ~ t~te·!'tf,irilnJIIDii s~ill nMithehiss 
btftlr~ .but Renfat ihdD:be r~lble' for:·.tfle,pl\ll'llelltJifditn~pS in ait.-iljilq~t equal I'll tlie *no\lflt·ofthlfRental f'l\'m~.tltetUfter comlllf clli:t iutclllladitb!t.~ oMtllcli are 
•ltll~utal!le Ill thtl'l\alllbar rif;~~~ Bu-.·Y.,._tlu,U.S·whlcfi Rwll; fills 19 ~t!sudlldlon.s"riitforenv citber lc!iUIIMni by Qwner·as,a (WIItofRen~' f11fute ·to lake;IU!fl 
ldiOIIS"III r.ecruJl'lld; J!cfttet Jh~.lmW!eW (IOI'Jfy ' tile ~· ~ soo a the dedllon ta non4ppro"pifa!ll Is rili!~ If~ nc;!II-.J!,PIOPJ:fllloij o~ .if~.~ fmlter•JhBU'c(- the 
l!qulpment to·QWner-u J!rovlded:lletow.ln.s.dlon 9.04. Ri!litil-.snalfl1e'Uillfe ·ror'all damqe•to the.e~pm.ent oth_ir than·notmtl we¥ and"teJr. lfltlittfr MS to deiiVar the Equipment to 
OWria.r, ttlf!ll OWII!f ~'enter&fle:prCII'IIH_wfle~:ettie·£qi.lpm~1S~.~td andtake'~fllrlor.tlle·rquJflfl*t.811d chflp.llenter for'eos,tflnawred. · 

v. frlan:l.ta. DIIIIWPr f!UUfllc~.of~ lnda!mlfl~ 
SOglon-5.01 !nrurarist. R.ter·wR:ntalntall.i ·P.<U~ '~nsu~ci )1nd ~fltV· rnsunua ~ lll:awn d!!l*llt' wilt! .,.~·ct tiJ t11e·l!cjfJiprm:irt. I\Qiit'dt~ha• b"e'SOielfrespOIIIIIIIe.for..seiiCIIIIJ.the 
l~i'{s~ '.Jid for•~ktii«·~hlm payrneil~encf ensuilns tharalf.~.m ¢r~&~uously t~ In· eiFect durllll tlte:JM!I~d wt~eh Railtw ~-'I!Ciulrucl to mi{at litn~II!~Vn~Wt. Ranlel' 
~·Jl.rovlde ·OWner With a Cenlflcate oflnsunn~wf11d! Qrts tlia-~lr ani:l{o;~JIII ~ eloss.f!B"V,de:lltd·edcllt!Onai.JMured !'n-lfte ~llc;(es will! respact·~ tl\e-l!qulp(nent. ltinw~hJII 
fnsur.o t.lfe :EqulpmentlifJ~~ll'i lou otdlm~Se·rn an amount·atle~·equ'pf , tothll'tltari ~ppdca\Jidl!p_~Ja~ 1tlSs V~e'ofllle ~Pmetl~ AtRter may~lf.w•~ mfl).~t~~ dsb 
delalb&<llb.M. t,l!OntW dlom~ th!Joption, Ril!ltet'mlllt filmtsh .Owaer wlttl,a .CC111f~·alld(oi'other docu1118111S wli~l). ll't'ldenc~nuch·sefii'IMincit. hl:!t J!Olfcy Issue(!" or afl'ectecl'"by 
thiJ SeCtiOn sl!alftQnfJin'._·,;,ctl(tiiO.n' iltatltho1nsur~n.~ company J,hall not-cancel '01 maiemuy ~the pgqey without om aMnl ti.lttv (9'01 ifays actwnc:e notice to Owner or 1b ~-!a, 
lltlll;ershal(fllmlrh.to Owner- CIIrtlnea~~ci«<CJ'~$1Jiih ~v.,. itltoua!lollftfle.llenlalTenn. .• . 
~ toa· I!!!J!l!U to or I!M!rydlqj! gfisv!pnici!li.-Ranter lliiUinos tflil ~ df loa ~nla~to the. EQUfpn).m. lftlle,Equljlmai'l(·of!II\Y po(tlon·~ IJ ~·slllfen, ~;·or 
~~_.!!Yflra-~ ·o~r CllSIIJIIy, Renter "!ffl.lftlrnediateJv. repoitall Jl!dii!ISS:~ ·m,lll pa:~&le ,llllurers tnd take lite PfOIIII' p~ur.et-111 lttill;t. ~II lfm!l'anco ~· Af tffa·oJ)ilon.¢ 
Qwner, l!.er\te{s.tnlll tithe~ ~ltiP)!J\' die Not Pnzceeds ~repS~· repair or ~re·llla ,Equlpjnellt ~r {2J'ap,!Jy lfle-Nat PUICf!lds kl tlle·;pp~e Stlpul~:toJJ \li{ue,. for pulpOset oflflls 
seccro-n lilit~on 5.®, thit teim ~~ Pl'ocMocli "'l!.li nWJtit!e'amount of Jnsu~arice p~~~co!l.etted trom:lhppllctbfe,litfurmcepo~ cle~s all .;ipe~.li)CU~ in lhe 
.coUacllon11i'f8Df.' · · 
Seci!on ·s.03· lnll@dency gtNitt Pn!Ctu!ds, If lliaie-al'ii iio Net Proc.oetttfar whatav~tt ~Or If tlie Jili1t P.roceed? ~ ltOOflldent t[) pay.ll) fliP thnost-.of2ny repl;ceinent,."PPf!, 
r~~Wltdlcm, modlfrmlcn or lmpl:ovement Of 1f1lr l!q(i.fp_llitlnt, tffeo ~shall, at the· option of OWner, ~ilr (t) coi!UIIet.e Slldl fi!Pttc,em,llf. repair, (~ modlllca!!OII ·or 
l~entan!fp~y.any costuhareo,.ln ~.YJe•.mountoftlutN~t l'foonds !~' (2) ~~Jpfy tile Net ~to tlie siip~~iatii~~ ·Voluianif.piytlli deiT~I,q.; If any, tOil!• Owner. 
S!!ljllqn$:04 lli!JmtlljmlmOllL Rl!llter mamas-Dlblllty for, and·a~tees ·tO' and ,dOes. ~'f!eb:f ·retm&une, .protuct and·lceep liarml~, ~er •. ~sol$ and -~,.•nil Ill elf tetp!dlve 
*"I!~ ei!IP,I~, crfflceli a_nd,dJr~n-from and ".'lnst 111~ end~ll·.cla.ln'ls, IJa!lllltv, ~. c:oll', daJriq:o_gr;expeJIIe (1'/ldiJdllll'rauooeble.attom,~.feesJ, #~IMir. ld.ru! 111d ntlllnr 
ln'IAAdlt\l·b\lt.not lfrnl~ctfq' thlll_b.'INI118 o~t of' Iii" i:llused b? the nlll)laence of R8llfei', llild tholr r~e-llgenltil.r~W; llltsln• oat ofdle-usa;·c.Mdit!~ OfNroltion..~!i!$~~ 
conttol, s81ect!~. d~Vl!l¥,or·;otum Qf any 1111111 of Equl~inent;. rapnlless ofwll~ how,.llld by Wflom op~~· ·a~ •riv· fallat,e' lrf ·Ron~ to rpmPIV VIlli! ~-AsreemlilL 1JiefotJSo:Jt18. 
(elmlnasemencs (I) lilcludlr, Wltbout Amltatloo. c!elll!S',J~! ~ ~-·m~JD fli' ' III!P8RSI! suffered or l!'CUITII(I,ara ral(lft Of IIIV dOI'ect ln tll'e fqulpm!!nrf so~ cr Satvloes: (lwlliiher 
!fl~verabl"11f fiQt) cr'bHed MllOn allY llleo,Y of U.bmty _(IJ)C!l.lidl~j striCt llol!Jfbty.dOI:u:fnes "Or .statutes) lll"d:(ll) shall oaly apply wtt11 ~ MillS prior bJi tlfelietiln), oflhe fi!llfpment 
pursuant to Section 9.04. · ' 

vr. Tltlo 
Sikllon &.01 Dllt.. 11111 to the. ElJu!P!'UI"t".i~~D ~;In OW~!!! u!ion· IDCII!=IIIIO,n:of1hb ·Al~ 'mltotP. thl! .&tlil~t ;NII~.~~·,;tlh"tli8 ~nctJ/I}'.f!i(shlJIIf tlt"l!' ROitbll Temr. i!cnter 

-~respo~ for:tbt.ll.b~rw&!J.~ ud an'i oijiii! 'CO§~ ~.dit;d wl_llr IIIII ~_I!.<J:I! I![ the !J!f~ RlJ!lt~ ~ -~-L~". ~ .'ts ~- "'!Y execrutiiii!Y·addltlom•l 
d_~mfl!ltls lildJI(IIIIJ Rnanclna·~ts. affldmct, no11ces,..end slnllla~ ~~~liollalfof.Rl!lrterwtdC/i OYminloerntne.C~~SmYOt-apP~P,I'Iile:tcFprofecfOwn'ai!Jilnl*Ut 
In ~~~~·EqullJm!jnfaJid ln. this ~t. · . 
St!itljio iS.@ 9wlllfr· ~fer'adciiOW~;'f'~hil"lllf tf11.t~arls .soJit'and.-lus}..,. OWIIQI' clf~~·fqu~uQt.1lld.·thB,tby lfle elOIJ:U~R Of.thls.·AirJeinent. Reiltar shalf not posseu or 
·obWft ,any' oWn'lf'Shlp-111~ lml'or e~le,,Jn till! BIUJPilltOt, ~holely a l!entB! hifrPUri!Mr.an~ Sl)b]ert til ·flie·~ hatl!af. Tll:e:E!IUJpmen't I! antl-,sllafl at all tlme!i be and 
remain, ptfSIIIIII ProPertY. no~nd!nl ·~~c·EGW:flilierit:Cirenv ~therearmav now lit, orhamtter1J&'OIIIO rn 'iily ri!annet-~flbi~;O,t ettl;dled to~~ FO~ertv· . 

VI~ ~Iii.,. . . . . 
S§!lpn Z.'A A!A!@jm;jnrl!y awn~ ot:OWI)tf!,S '~-~lle ·aO"!f/or·ltrttfest lli'tht;~l·_!!aYinents.~! illl-•si~li:ll anrl rtaNlgned rn Whol8 cr-fn,Jill1,1'11 one:9r·mort ~ ~Sllb
pll'p811S·li)i owner .Jl-aiiY lfr:lje ·oilt.fl:le,CIOMetJt Of.'Re~·r. No llleh . aJJ~rnmant .• ihlll &a ~ ~118#fritt Ren~untll the an~anor shill have filed w1itr Rentat WYitten. notice of 

-~~t1dentftvffta-.tfta,~q,,:!39111isi-~!la)l ~·II Aintii.~nts:~Ue-~araun\fer releti1IC"tl) ~ucft E$1ull'lm'eiit-~·!N' r.t tl(i 'dlr,ftG!!Oil ~Owrlo.r-·or tliuss_tsnee nam1dln<tha nOtice of 
~S!Im~t. ~Jet alljl1 ~· ~mpJ~m~'ac;~nt~~:r~rd·Pf~!(~cn ~f!lltl. 
SGtfsin 7;!1.2 ApiiQM!II!t I!Y Bent§. -None of RenCrs t!lht. t~~le il)1d:,~en vnCffr ~:Nreement and In the Equipment may be assigned by Renter unless Owner approves of such 
assignment In writing before sud! anl&nment occurs. · · · · 

VlJI, ..,.,1Tt1111n(llil~mw _ . . 
SOatob·S.Ol Milntenme Rontw4hlllpey.lnyand•llll fefl.f, property~ o; o,thir~ ~1!$ and IIXJ1anstt-enrtComp!y ~~~~-~~J~irell.ttdto ' tli'~ use,J!OJ,!~n. t11d operejlon~ 
ltltO · ~urpni_tnt ·j¥11!le 11 ~·rn ~~e~~to;:~pils.sesflon; · f!ldudl,. obta1(11118 au e~ls'llla.~IIS.~ted to the Ute end/orf~RSSmlon· of the,l!qulpmi!Jit. Rei!~ s~.~~~ meJn.tim ahdiiep tile. 
Equirlfu~t-1~~~-ro~Jr ~~d ..,-.:~lf!IJ'Cioll.dJ~a ~thewmoftflls~~"~ •Cr9rd~nce to~~4.rfiCIIJmme~~datlonf1ndud~'but~t.llinll8!1:to IWUIIr ~n~of 
ell HVAt-.quJJIIII!!IIt fl\lrtt!it ~'&8 ~~(ilfor ~ll'!(,•~lil'tv11ie fqulprnant,.Oihar·.thiJI·III?-rmll weara~Jiteer.~.~ tiV fte!ller; Jts.employ_ees·orlls f&'~tl. ltenteuhaliJIQtclarlnrtlle~ · 
of.thi;S ~ent ~. lricur:"or~SSJ!i'n4~1)Y;J~.;,, bw ·or llill:llrribrenoes.qf IJIY ilndwlth r:epec;:tfu .tllo· E.quiP{I18ntexcontnPH·~ti4WIIIJs ~t.' Renter sliaii•Ttow.OWnet to 
~~~~~~ JMpact;tha £qldPment Rt:ill ~b{a il'mtu:. • · · 

DC. D'e!iult 
Slldlon 9.ot ·~fs or)2,.rauttrlaflng2. tha·rorrowr~~~reve]rtullall c:onslf~ an "E'dntofoefalllt"'underthls '~ent 
(1'1 - ""llll'l'bv Renter .to I!'Y lillY ~n.t.il ~~~dlln 'ect.Jblt •B"'for.ftftlllian t:u,· dlyl .tt.ul!ch· ~is.~u.ei~~~ll!S thil P¢nent01ite liSted on E4i)blt •8:'. 
{b) Failure to ~:anycrtller.)1l!Vinetlt rttljlllred tor;, p.Jid·un.derthb ~iftt'Jt lila t1n1e spedflecl herein ~d.• COJJtlnuatlon of Did faUu(afol: a·perliijl of llftHn (35) deynfter written 
n~ by'~et ·t.!'lt IUdl' p~VJMnt Ill list Ill m.de: lf~!llf~ll' CO~ui!s·"t{),~ ID ·~· llf!Y ~ent.ahf.such RBtfOd, than 0Wffet_ inay, but wfU not be Olirrp:te~ · tD, make such 
~ts~4.c:flarsa~~~t~W ror allcos.ts Incurred P.lu,s Jntatast:et:lh• h~.~i!ftli!Y'ftll ~ · · . . . 

(c} ,flll~~to~ "'"ter 11!-o~:m~ ~l"m any wari-.nty, cOvena.nt; c:ondltlor!;.,WOiri!H or duty .ilnduthlsA~eem:ant far apertod.oftlllrty (30) days after wYiften notice specifying such 
f!Jilllnlls'•&l\lun to- Reh~•by 0\l(n~, !ll!!.e#·OW!)!r fii'84IS lrtwr1dn, to ;an extenmn of time. ·Q_,mcr will not.l!llfeasonably withhOld Its consent to an e~~tension of time If corrective 
IIC1ion '-Jfts:tltllti!d by Ron:ter. ,SU!fsedlon (C)~ notliJlply,tD ltental Peymllilts·andother P"Yjii111111.dlswJtad atio~ 

f(ij MI'"Silllllment. ~il ii.i!l~ rfi,r.tltlciti !).l'~ IIRII~t by-R"'Iu-J n :or,p.unuant-~'.!fils~-~lch proves to be false, Incorrect or misleading on the date when 
mode repr.cle.SJ. ofRtn~r'.s lntent.arid whldl miteltally ~~. llfre.cts the rf(hbror~of.~er under this Agreement. 

{e) Any ptoY~sion ·oi'thls A&J:e~ent wilrCh ~.'\li'bil ,valld forwtnrttVer msoo and the:lou obudl pcovUion would materially adver•ely affect the rights or security of OWner. 

47 



(f) Renter ~dmlts In writing Its ln~bnitv to pay Its obllaauons. Renter defaults on one or more of Its other obligations. Renter applies or con.senu to the appointment of a recclver or a 
custodian to m~n•se Its affairs. Renter makes a senenl as~ll!llment for the bonent of Owners. 

Sac!tpo'9.02 Rlimed!asgo'J>tfal!lt. When-rany Event ofDefilulreldlu,,O!NI1euthall hlve'tho right to take one or any comblno:tlon-ofthc followiOJ remedlal~l!PS: 
(~) Wl.lll or·wltlloilt ~llnl this Aareement, Owner may dedllnnll Relltal Poymilnts and other amounts pavabiB by Ruptcir hereunder to th, end of tJie ttian current Budget Year to 

be 1mme11!1t41y clunnlll1aYable. · 
(b) With or wlthth!l tennlnallnr·thls ASfftl'llll'lt. Owner riiiv require l!'anUr at'Ri!lit.(s-~t10 £Wen~ any' or all 'aF the Equlpm'"'t 10 e>wner as provided below In sect!On'9.04. Sl{dl 

delivery shoP·~ p.t~.~_ln l.S.d_!M ~the~~ of default o~IS. If R~tiir ·f.llb t'O clellver'lhe EquiPftleat. Owner-nay en~ar-thc-~emtses wh'efe th~ Equ~_ls'.~te<i ·an,d 
tllke po~~~~o~ of ~h_e. ~~up"::_ent !"~ charge Renter for cost Incurred. Notwlthitandll)l, thlt-~er ~;token 'W-~!' qf~ !l.Qu!~~,t ~~~t-$1'1rlii.OI!l~.tO:P.~-.t!te 
tcmalnln( Rental Payments due up untlllhe end of the then current Original Term or Renewal Tl!flll, 'Rente!' wlllbttllable r!Jr '!l'(diJ11Jap Ul. IIi~. EQIIIpmen~ ca~eclb\' Ratitv orlb 
employees or agents. 

(c) oWner I'!IN.take.wflemer fttlon at ltW. or In eqult.y diet IIIIY· •P(lelr~necess:.ly or deiflililelo enforce Its rights. Renter shall be responsible to Owner for all costs incurred by Owner 
l il'tllaenfurc«nentottts:tfab&-.vndertflfs AgrocmaiitkiciWfna,.tiiit not-ilrit'rtedw, reasonable aitomevtees. -

tes®0:9.AA No !!Cmm· &lcdusJ!!!!. ~ (tnlecfV'hereln ~nf~ ~~n !)f(es«i<v,od;to.Q\'ftllf Is Intended 'to be excttJJive and every such remedy shall be :umulatiwe and Jhall be In addition to 
l!lll!tY. other rem~.~ under t!llt~~~n:ow or hereafter existing at law or In equity. No del_ay or om15slon to exerdsa any rtght or power ~ccrutng upon any default shall Impair any 
~llC!i t16f!t or .s~a.l(:~ baft.ttrued tO, b'o !-·~ tll,lijWI'. 
Sjdlpn9.Q4 S.blrn otraurp!lij!nt andStq!Kl!. 
(a) Surrender: The Renter shall; at Its own elcpense, surrender the Equipment to the ~mer In t~e even_t of a.~~!ault b.v d~!!~!(~. t~e E_9ulp~~~! to th!l Owne~ to~ l!]c~~!9.11 a~~~sl\1!~ bv._ 

commo-11 ea·rtl'el'"<lh'd 11lfs1(ifijtiill'liy owne-r:· .. - • · · 
(b) OeiJvery: The Equlpment;shaiJ.bo d,elvercd to thelocalicm design~ ted by the.owner by a comino~ carrier unii!SS the Owner agrees, Ill wrltlns that a'CIOSlU110n carrlat IS· not needed: 

When the Equlpmenfls '!fei!VeJ'~ II)!O the custody of 1 c-pmmon carrier, the Renb!r shall iminp for the shipping of the Item IJIId ns lnsur.nca in tr.mslt In ~cc_ordsnce wlth·tfle 
Owner's lnstt:ucUons iind at the Renter'J sole expenJ~. Renter at Its expense shall completely sever and disconnect the Equipment or Its component parts from the Renter's propeny 
ilhntfio~ ~IJI-~~.tti~~or. 8enw shaU PJdc or GAte the.fqlllpment ond-aU o~~e_fi~C!mponent parts ofdle!qulp_me~tJ.~ullv'aila hi.~"'~wlttllln\1 ~~ils at 
~~ m~ou~ctpre(, 'Tb.e-1\erttVnhiR.cle!lver to tlliM)wner tfllll!IW, ~P~I_Is ~n mllii(SI_s or olllei:·vrw,_it~,11Jid ~ca~ejitt ~~b.«t'by tho·mniiractu(et Of Wl)dor-011 
tile Equljln1entsnd.sucfi othar. docum~b In lfle R~tbls ~.IOriT~tlril.lD.theniiiO~I,IICe11~)S ~cfs·or opiiRIIO!I cif.$1.1Cii EqUijln)er¢. 

I c) Condltfom Wh«! the ~lpment.ls surrendi!WI fo ·tb'i! ewnu It lflall be 111 th.e cohcfltran and rilpatr requlrai{ tO !)a lllllnttlned undet f;lllt ~t. It will also meet 1U lept 
reaulttor;v condltlo.m n~·ey tqr lite Q¥mer co s.a~ or lease It to-. tlllrd PII1Y llld ~ froll of an I~ 'If 0Wttor rta.SOJtablv d,llblrmlnas tbllt.ltle Equipment or 1!1.1~ Of ilie 
Equlpn~en~ ~=.'It Js ~ 11 not In :lhnbndltlq• roqtil('ed li•{8by, ~ roa,y ceurottlle ~WP~ff, ~ ~e. modlrlcltlon or overhaul ofthtt Equtp"!'iflt.clt an ltill)1 ciftl1e 
~~~to.~lmJUdVao!)!ltion' flitd lillon:~rid,· Ren. ... ~tn!U promplty (8{olbursu Owner.fouhmourits ~ablf.expanded l.n.con~JI wl!h'th• fOi'czioli)a. 

(d) ~~;· f;II!On wrttj,on reqllt!£:bV \!I.e OWn!!r. U. Rimhtr •llall'!lrOVfdeJteutonae-fvr. m~· Eqllfp!lleJit or ·lln'l' t~:oflfla_ ~~t far-• J!IK,lild ·nqt toA!liCted 60: days ;ift.Or the 
explfatl~of lt.s lease ten,., lle[ore relllmlng: lt.to the Owner. The R.enw shall arnlrise·for:"re·I.Ps~ d.lstribti! 11:! Gbntl(iue ln:run·~ ~.nd ejfKt wf~ mp~,to s,qch Item dining 
it.s stotqe period atld tile OW!IIIf shaiLielmbUt$«1'the Renter on demanil Tar the IIICI'ementol pl'emivm Gilsl arp,rovtcpAgsutii.II)Ntilnce. 

X. MlsceRaneous 
sect!j!n 11\01 ffo!!Ces, ~I:J:IOik:e_ mall J:ie·sull!cfantfv 11ven: and tllall be. dctemod &M!n whL!ll. de!Mirad at-milled by (ei~iid mall, ~ge i!rl~f4, lq ~ Pirtlei;~ - -Jirlp!JCIIYe piai:e 
of.liiiSf!iest,;, llllt'Jiit·tilrtb.btreln or u.ltle P,artll!s.if!IH designate ~et~lter In w'rltlnr. - · 
SodJoq1Q;Ol ·armlm E!Jear. Renteud~noWI~e:rtbls~~~.t~ op_t~~droi .. ull:On-tho Swntror 1~ ~~1\5 u~.ih, Co~ to Flin.dlns. ftsted:DII,.lhe·Documentallo~ ~doll.$
h~>been met ,to Owner'i~Bdil·n, ·lnd Qwilet h~- ~ecuteci,Jfla ~ent. Thereaf\jlr, 1\lls,Ail'l!lment ~liall rnure tootM benefit-of ancl-shaJI·ba blndtna UPQII awner lll'!il Rel)tenl!)d 
tll'elr mpettive'sul!=t.SSPrs(an~~p · · 
Scqlpp 10:1!3 Sgypb!l!tv.ln the event any provision of this Agreement shall be held invalid or unenforceable by onv court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not lnvolldate or 
render unenforceable any other provision hereof. 
S!ic11twl10:1!!! Mii)if!ne!rt$: Adde!jdj·, 'cl!a'\'ics.qr Mod!il!jJ!IOQS, This AgreemMt may be amended, added to, changed or modified by written agreement duly eKecuted by Owner and 
{\~. fll111tan:ll0f.e.·l!lwn.et mervos.it\e:rlsht.to dlredlv·dierte or amartlu Into lila romalnlng balance due from Renter, a reasonable fee, to be determined at that lime, as compensation 
to Owner forth~ addllional admlni5tratlve expense resulting fiom such amendmcot, addenda, change or modtncatlon requested I!Y Renter. 
4fdlpp:10.0!I !lllcullob jn Cdlrntal'!iilcts. This Agreement may be simultaneously executed In several counterparts, each of which shall be an original and all of whiclt shall constitute but one 
•n~llle'~J,I~dnt. 
Sil;Jion l!l.l!6 g ·ptloj!s .. The captions or headings In this Agreement do not define, limit or describe the scope or Intent of any provisions or sections of this Agreement. 
SeCtJoM.Q:Pi.Mlfci;g 2A ~-In the event that Article 2A of the Uniform Commerdat Code Is adopted under applicable state law and applies to this Agreement, then Renter, to the 
~jil!rmlf!!ld t~Y ·Iiw, ~lilY amhlliiShts-11\d r81rledles:conretteil upon • R.ent.er by-Sotaons 2A·SOS tbrc"-'11 2A.S22 of such Article ·2~,'tna,!Jiffrfa, b_Ut not limited to, Renier's I'MbU 
to{ Q)''1Jnc:el a'rn!plldfa!t tl!fs-Hree<nenl: (lt) ·r~ecl:!lf ~at'Ceplllnt:4l'oftl1e Ei!~lprD1!11,t, SOftware or Serville!; (Ill) d~lln, arant or permit 11 .HcurJtv lnt.\ll'estln the Equipment, In Renter's 
~n OI"COIIIrol fonny-rae,san;(lv)'dldUCt-frOm'JiilritaJ ~.ll}lts O(othcl' amaun!S'dujih~ader, Ill or ~.part ol ~ clalnied ~ (~(tlt!J fi:om.OWnet'~.dmult,lf•rr,:, under. 
tli1s- Asioen.ten1o (v)IQ!ept partial dol~, of the ~IPfll:tnli, {~)'CQVer"tiy mA.tuna 11\V pu(dui'nl-at t-at, or: cot;~tnc;,t tq ·pu~o or -le~·aqlilpmant tn.subatltutlol\-fot EqUIJtmellt 
dei~81!1rfln .~,~ ~nd_Mil ·~tarn ~flc]?.mprin~~-~~ ~~~te.·Jt<IU~tlon, claiq> tnd.dallverr·or·the llkl! ~_.any Equipment ld~!O~-Aif~ent. 'l'o til 
~~-~~b~,law~,~~~·eny ~.now:a• ""tafb:i,am.(lmldbY:smtuur otollifiWISQ,Wfildi·muy reqv~OWnertll-:tell, le_&s!'91'-~e/WIH.usa'81!V 
Ei(u!pn11Dt ra·mlltPflon af.OW..iils llllniellef·ar-whlctnnal(!lthCI'.!IIiie 1111111 or mo_dlf\r'lny of 0Wnar'sr!B/11s or remedies. 
~$dloo 1D;OB"Miijt¢Bqnp!. 'lllls ~~~~~i ·CIJII!te · utlfl~ed.~• Mlstcr,RGntal AIJ!ee~t. This means that th• ewner and the Rei\~r llliY agree to the renral,of.tlie addtll(!n~l Eiltilpftlent 
~~rJflli ~oni-ll'some point In tha Mure·by .executtnc ono,ar mof'G;A,ildlilol!ei·Sdledufes to Elthlblt A, .~It B, Elthlblt C ~.nd Exhibit o as well a1 othet: fXJ)l~i iJ or doCuilljlllts,that 
may be required by Owner. For purposes of this section, the term 11Addltlonal Schedule" refers to the proper execution of additional Schedules 10 Exhibit A, Eltl11bit B, Elthlbtt C and Elthlblt 0 
os well as other eKhlbtts or documents that may be required by the Owner •II of whlth relate to the rentir8 of additional t:qutpment Additional Schedules wnt be consecutively numbered on 
each of the exhibits which make up the Additional Schedule and all the terms and condlUons of the Asreement shall govern to each Additional Schodu.tc. 
Scct!oh·1!!JI!l '£ntlre W'l!tlnL Thls Agreement constitutes the entire wrltlng betw~en Owner an.d ~enter. ,No waiver, conSC!II, modtflcatlon or cho.nae of terms of this Asreement shall bind 
t~Y~:tr'fillity-1lnless ln''liirllfri(and ~riid'~y·botll ~ri(l!S.~-rfd ~ mh waiVer, ~nsant, .MOdification or-Gfle,naa·shaU'be·efttafve ~ In ~i·spetl~l~.nce and fqr 'ilio sJiod~~~se 
giY"'. Thire·lre n~ tiiiCSefstlndln3f; faf"!lllllltJ, repr.tat!Ofis, conditiOns, or wattilntles; lllellfii$$.Or Implied; ~hldl nnot specllled hlfeln reprdlilgthi~-Aiiree.,ieot 11r ltln ~ll)mellt 
nm.~.her~lf.o. Any,~ and condri!Qns ofimy-~lussaarcler or othar·doauniDts submftb!d by Ren"t In con'nectriln Willi tl!ts~ent wbldlai'O ln ·~d!li~ 10 CirlfiCOII$lll.eiJt with 
tilt tetmS_.JIICfll!lll)dlliOJ)i.Of *Is Aareenll!nt will noU.e bi~OII Owner·a(ld wlll not apply to thl! ·~f!lt. 
$eqtlofi l!UO Q!glc:e·?fl.i!w, This Ae:reement shall be-govemeil a.ccord~:to:the laws of the Stateatthll ~-

Owner and Renter have caused this Agreement to be executed In their names by their duly authorized representatives listed below. 

Berry Companies, Inc. DBA KC Bobcat 

Signature 

I Printed N~me and Title 

48 



EXHIBIT A 

DESCRIPTION OF EQ.UIPMENT 

Schedule lOll 

RE: Rental Agreement dated as of November 15, 2016, between Berry Companies, Inc. DBA KC Bobcat (Owner) and City of Belton, Missouri 
(Belton Parks and Recreation) (Renter) 

Below Is a detailed description of all the items of Equipment lndudlng quantity, model number and serial number where applicable: 

One (1) Bobcat 5590 Loader with 68" LP Smooth Bucket 

Physical Address of Equipment after Delivery : 

49 



EXHIBITS 

PAYMENT SCHEDULE 

Schedule lOll 

RE: Rental Agreement dated as of November 15, 2016, between Berry Companies, Inc. DBA KC Bobcat (Owner) and City of Belton, Missouri 
(Belton Parks and Recreation) (Renter) 

PrJnted Name and Tltley I 

•Assumes all Rental Payments due to date are paid 

Date of First Payment: 
Total Number of Payments: 
Number of Payments Per Year: 

Pmt Due Rental 
No. ·oats J1iiiiiiiint 

1 15-May-17 $2,750.00 

May 15,2017 
One(1) 
One (1) 

·t~~~!.!•~!d 
l.QnValt!e 

$35,428.13 

tStlpulated Loss Value is not Fair Market Value (FMV), and should not be Interpreted as same. FMV, as referenced In 3.06, can only be obtained from Owner at end of 
term. 

50 



EXHIBITC 

CERTIFICATE OF ACCEPTANCE 

Schedule (Ql:J 

RE: Rental Agreement dated as of November 15, 2016, between Berry Companies, Inc. DBA KC Bobcat (Owner} and City of Belton, Missouri 
(Belton Parks and Recreation) (Renter) 

I, the Ul'!d~lgned, hereby cedlfy that I am a duly qualified r:~prese~tlve of Renter and that I have been glven.the authority by the Govemlng 
Body ofRentei'to.slgn.thls Certlfll:at:e,of Acceptance with resp~to the above referenced Agreement. I heriby·oertlfy-that: 

1. The Equlpm!!nt desq:tb~d on Eidilblt A has been delivered and Installed In accordance with Renter's specfffcatlons. 
2. Renter has conducted such lnspQctlon and/or testing Clfthe Equipment as It deems necessary ,and approJitllite and hereby acknowledges that 

It accepts the Equipment for all purposes. · 
3. Renter ha$ appr,oprlated andJor taken ·other lawful a~ons. neliessary to proVIite n:umeys sufflcrent to pay all Rental Payments required to be 

paid unde~ the .~ement .during the ,clirrent B.udgetve'ar Qf Renter, and· sud! moneys ·will be &JJI?,Iied in payment of all Rental Payments due 
and P.av.able during such current.BulfgefYear. . 

4. Renter·has obtained Insurance 00\lerag_e as required under the Agreement.fi'om an insurer qualified .to. do business in the State. 
5. No event or condition that constitutes or would constitute an Event of D.efault.$<1sts as of'the date hereof. 
6. The governing body of Renter has approved the authorization, execution and delivery of this Agreement on Its behalf by the authorized 

representative 9f Renter who signed the Agreement. 
7. Please list the Si:lurce of Funds (Fund (tam In Budget) for the Rental Payments that come due under Exhibit B of this Agreement. 

Source of Funds! .....:...P:::ar~k~F.::.un:.::d::._ ____________________________________ _ 

on Parks and Recreation) 

" ~ 

. 51 



Schedule Ctnl 

/ EXHIB1TO 

·( CERTIFlCATE Of A\miORiZAliON --

Rf:: Rental Apeement dated as of November.as,..2~.._....==.;.; E>s1\Kc Bobcat (Owner) and City of B!!lton, Missouri 
tBelhln Parks and Recrntion) (Renter) 

:1'. Determlnatfon of Need. The Govemins Body of Ref1ter, either through dfred board action or Indirectly throush Its officers, officials 01 ottrer 
autiloDJized representatives, has determined that a true and verv real need exls~ felrthe acquisition of the Equipment described on Exhibit A of1he. 
Rentai Agreement ("Agreement'') dated as of Novembl!f 15, 2016, between C:lty of Sefton, Mlssourf (Belton Parks and Recreation) (Renter) and 
Beery Companies, Inc. DBA KC Bobcat (Owner). 

2- Approval and Authorization. The Ga11emlng Body ef-Rental'; either <throug!l-dlrect board action or Indirectly through· Its officers; offlda!s or 
otiler- authoriZed representatives has determined that it Is In the best Interest of the Renter to enter Into a lease substantially In the form af the 
Apeement to finance the purchase of the Equipment described on Exhibit A of theo Aveement. The Governing Body of Renter has duly auUHmzed 
till~ Fndlvlduals listed below to execute the Agreement and all documents related thereto on behalf af the Renter. Such authorization derives from 
eibiler direct board action or Indirectly through established policies and procedures or byfaws all as allowed by law. 

Authorized lndlvldual(s): 
(Printed or Printed Name and Title of lftdlvldual{sl autfTor!Rd !Ill exaclllte the Ap'Hment) 

3. Adoptlon. The signatures below from the designated Individuals of the Govemhlg Body of the Renter evidence the adoption of this Certificate 
of Authorization 

(S!Jnature of Sacretarv, Board Chillrman or otller memfler of the Governing Body) 

Primed Name & Title: 
(Printed Name ~nd Trtle oflndlvklu•l who slgnad directly above! 

Attested By: 
ISla nature of one •ddltlonal peiSOil wt1o con wilness the pa.ssat~eoftllls Resolution) 

Printed Name & Title: 
(Printed Name andntle ofindiYidual who signed directly obove) 

52 



NOTICE OF ASSIGNMENT 

NOVEMBER 15, 2016 

Berry Companies, Inc. DBA KC Bobcat (Owner/Assignor) hereby gives notice of an Assignment between Owner/Assignor and KS StateBank 
(Assignee) of the Rental Agreement (Contract) between Owner/Assignor and City of Belton, Missouri (Belton Parks and Recreation), dated as of 
November 15, 2016. 

All Rental Payments coming due pursuant to the Contract shall be made to: 

KS State Bank 
1010 Westloop, P.O. Box 69 
Manhattan, Kansas 66505-0069 

Berry Companies, Inc. DBA KC Bobcat, Owner/Assignor 

Signature 

Printed Namo and litre 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF AND CONSENT TO ASSIGNMENT 

Oty ofB"ef:ton, Mls.sou(l {Belton Park$ and Recreation} (Renter.) a$ p~ni}t~oa Re!)tal ~~ment dated as of November 3$; 2016 betWeen Renter ar:~d 
- ~rry·CompanTes, Inc. DBA KC Bo6cat (Owner), hereby a'c.knp.wleqge~ ~~IJ?t"of a Notice Of Asslinme'rlt C1ated Novl!rtl6·en.s, 2_016 whe~eby Owner 
.gave nGtlce Of its asslgM)ent-to .KS -~$ank of ~-ri'ghtt!' re~l-ve-aJJ Rentiil Pawnehts due_ from ~ent!N' un:cler tf:ie Cpntrac( and hereby consents to 
that A5Siltrfrtfei1t. _P-ursl,i~_nt .to ~~ Nptl~ of Asslgmrientfrom bwri_er; RenW agre~ t:o deliver all ijent!JI P~yme_nts coming due under the Contract 
to: . ___ _ 

KS StateBank 
1010 Westfoop, P.O. Box 69 
Manhattan, Kansas 66505-0069 

·t Belton, Missouri (Belton Parks and Recreation) 

I 

53 



INSURANCE REQ,~IREMENTS 

Pursuant to Article V of the Rental Agreement, you have agreed to provide us evidence of insurance covering the Equipment. 

A Certificate of Insurance listing the Information stated below should be sent to us no later than the date on which the equipment is 
delivered. 

Insured: Certificate Holder: 
Clty of Belton, Missouri (Belton Parks and Recreation) KS StateBank 
506 Miiltn Street 1010 Westloop, P .0. Box 59 
Belton, Missouri 64012 ManhattaA, Kansas 66505-0069 

1. Equipment Description 
+ One (1) Bobcat 5590 Loader with 68" LP Smooth Bucket 
+ Please include all applicable VIN's, serial numbers, etc. 

2. Physical Damage 
+ All risk coverage to guarantee proceeds of at least $37,021.13. 

3. Deductible 
+ The deductible amounts on the insurance policy should not exceed $2,500.00. 

4. Uabillty 
+ Minimum Combined Single Limit of $1,000,000.00 combined single-limit on bodily injury and property damage. 

S. Additional Insured and Loss Payee 
+ KS StateBank AOIA (and/or Its Assigns) MUST be listed as additional insured and loss payee. 

Please forward certificate as soon as possible to: Fax: (816) 229-7631 
or 
Email: dcarnahan@kcbobcat.com 

Please complete the information below and return this form along with the Agreement. 

City of Belton, Missouri (Belton Parks and Recreation} 

Insurance Company: 

Agent's Name: 

Telephone#: 

~x#: ------~------------------------------------------~----------------------------~ 
Address: 

------------------~~-----------------------------------------------------------

City, State Zip: 

Email: 
------------------------------~--------------------~------------~---------------

54 



*PREFERRED* 

~As an additional payment option for Renter, we are now providing the option of ACH (Automatic Clearing House). By completing this form, 
Renter is authorizing Owner to withdraw said payment amount on said date. 

DEBIT AUTHORIZATION 

I hereby authorize KS State Bank Government Finance Department to Initiate debit entries, and, If necessary, to reinltlate returned entries up to two 
additional times, to the account indicated below at the flnanclalinstltutlon named below and to debit the same to such account for: 

Agreement Number Payment Amount Frequency of Payments 

3350745 $2,750.00 Semi-Annual 

Beginning 
Day of Month 

Month Year 15th 

.1 ·acknowledjre tnat·tf!e··orlglnatlon Of ACH transactions to this acrount must cormilv with tbe prOviSions of U.S. law, 

Financial Institution Name Branch 

Address I City State I Zip 

Routing Number Account Number 

Type of Account 0 Checking Osavlngs 

This authority is to remain in full force and effect until KS State Bank has received written notification from any authorized signer of the account of 
Its termination In such time and manner as to afford KS State Bank a reasonable opportunity to act on it. 

Renter Name on Agreement 

City of Belton, Missouri (Belton Parks and Recreation) 

Signature 

Tax ID Number 

44-0000137 

1 
I 
I 

- - . 
Printed Name and Title 

- - - -· --- -
· Date 

- -----------'·------·- ·----~ 

PLEASE ATIACH COPY OF A VOIDED CHECK TO THIS FORM! 

USA Patriot Act 
USA Patriot Act requires identity verification for all new accounts. This means that we may require information from you to allow us to niake a 

prop~rldentlficatlon. 

55 



EXHIBIT 

~ ' -- .. -

~ CERTIFICATE OF COVERAGE 111 I 
.. . ;• .· . . 

This certificate is issued as a matter of information only and confers no rights upon the certiflcato holder. 
This certificate does not amend, extend or alter the coverage afforded by the policies below. 

Covered Entity: Companies afrording Coverage: 

Midwest Public Risk of Missouri 
19400 E Valley View Parkway 

' A. Midwest Public R1sk Q.tl':if~Cit\if.(Property, ·lombflltY., . .W~ 

Independence, MO 64055 K Hartford'Firc Insurance .e~!IIP~-!9l~'~t 

City of Belton, MO 
c. Oovernmer'ital Entities. Mirtllalt,MIIItlclf ReAmerli<I\:(Liability} 

. . -
·.o. s li!.Y~ ~ifjjjll~!lf~~:~omi!'itni!iil) II .!II . . . . . -~ ~ • 

· B. :El.tf&,liq,ihPI]Ili!J} ~~P\Yif: 
This is to certifY that llio coverages listed below have been issued to the member named above for the period irfdiciited, notiNithsl'iiiiding any requfromeht, tem1 or condi!ion 
of any contract or other document with respect to which this certificate may be issued or mny pertain. The coverage described herein is subjectto all the terms, exclusions 
and conditions of the relevant coverage document. 

-
I 

'''"' J:.l·, 
. ·' :~;,. \ · .J~I·!•;'•i:.!~ I ~Ju:.Ji:., __ .-;H,., : ·- ~ -.- J:flv[, tlr•ldll;!t·' . : • -.• !(a\·, .~ .:.;i ~,fr. aW'·:;2.-:.. " • _ 1 "~t!i.I\H 

: 

181 Buildings 

181 
181 Personpl Property 

Property MPR003 07/01/2016 06/30/2017 181 Contents $400,000,000 
I· 181 Inland Marine 

181 Auto Physical Damage 

Each Occurrence $3,734,567 
181 General Liability MPR003 07/0112016 06/30/2017 Medical Expense $5,000 

I Personal/ Advertising Injury $3,734,567 
181 Occurrence Member Aggregate $6,000,000 
0 Claims Made 

: 

I 

t8l Auto Liability Combined Single Limit (per ace} $3,734,567 
MPR003 07/0112016 06/30/2017 Bodily Injury (per person} I 

.~· Any Auto I Bodily Injury (per occ) 
~ Owned/Scheduled .. Property Damage (per occ) 
'181 Hired/Non-Owned 
181 Drive Other Car 

- --. ~ - ... .. -
I . .. . .. .. . 
I 181 Statutory Limits 

181 Workers' Compens11tioo AGC4049010 07/0112016 06130/2017 181 Employers' Liability 
Each Accident $1,000,000 
'ciliOY'Limit ~~000·000 

I 

181 Other 
MPR003 07/01/2016 06/30/2017 

t8l Crime and Employee Fidelity 
181 BoiiGr & Machinery $1 00,000,000 

' 
Description Of opemtionS' lf~~:.vebJ9:fCSJ.~_USI~Jns·addcd by endorsement I special e.rovisio~· 

RE: Bobcat S590 Loader with 68' LP Smooth Bucket, 
Kansas StateBank AOTA are included as additional insured and loss payee with respects the listed equipment. 

Ceniflcqte· Hohler. Cnntellallon: Should-ony ofrhc above d~ori~d covorag•~ be oancellcd bcroro lho ~xpfration 
date d1oreof. MPR will not be held liable or oblisato.d to tho Member, its agonli or representatives, : 

KS StateBank 
1010 Westloop, P.O. Box 69 A£.· -JI..~ J Manhattan, KS 66505-0069 . ·z. ... -.-, ~ . ..:. i~~J 

T' ~ ... J: . CEO crnv • .. · . . • 

56 



SECTION VIII 
H 

57 



BILL NO. 2016-125 ORDINANCE NO. 2016-

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING AN AGREEMENT FOR SIGNING INSTALLED AND 
MAINTAINED BY BELTON PARKS AND RECREATION FOR THE TREE CITY USA SIGN 
ON MISSOURI DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION RIGHT-OF-WAY. 

WHEREAS, the Parks and Recreation Department has been working for several months 
to place the Tree City USA designation signs on or about two Interstate 49 locations at the north 
and south entrances to the City ; and 

WHEREAS, one of these locations is in the general vicinity of the 155th Street exit ramp 
at the Cass County and Belton city limits; and 

WHEREAS, this location is on Missouri Department of Transportation right-of-way and 
requires a Missouri Highways and Transportation Commission Agreement as herein attached and 
incorporated into this Ordinance as Exhibit" A"; and 

WHEREAS, the Parks and Recreation Board has approved and authorized the terms and 
conditions of the Signing Agreement at its November 21, 2016 Board meeting, and is forwarding 
to the Belton City Council for approval as the City's Governing Body as required under the 
terms of the Agreement. 

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that it is in the best interest of the City Park 
Tree Program to approve this Agreement to install and maintain the Tree City USA sign pursuant 
to the terms and conditions of the Signing Agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF BELTON, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. 

Section 2. 

Section 3. 

That the Signing Agreement with the Missouri Highways and 
Transportation Commission is hereby approved and the Mayor is authorized 
and directed to execute the Agreement on behalf of the City Council. 
That this ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage 
and approval. 
That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are 
hereby repealed. 

READ FOR THE FIRST TIME: December 13, 2016 

READ FOR THE SECOND TIME AND PASSED: 

Mayor Jeff Davis 

58 



Approved this __ day of _ ____ , 2016. 

ATTEST: 

Patricia Ledford, City Clerk 
City of Belton, Missouri 

STATE OF MISSOURI ) 
CITY OF BELTON ) SS 
COUNTY OF CASS ) 

Mayor Jeff Davis 

I, Patricia A. Ledford, City Clerk, do hereby certify that I have been duly appointed City Clerk of 
the City of Belton and that the foregoing ordinance was regularly introduced for first reading at a 
meeting of the City Council held on the 13th day December, 2016, and thereafter adopted as 
Ordinance No. 2016- of the City of Belton, Missouri, at a regular meeting of the City 
Council held on the day of , 2016, after the second reading thereof by the 
following vote, to-wit: 

AYES: 
NOES: 

- - A-BSEN'I':--

COUNCILMEN: 
COUNCILMEN: 
eeUNelfj:MEN. 

Patricia A. Ledford, City Clerk 
of the City of Belton, Missouri 

59 



CCO Form: TR42 
Approved: 08/06 (BOG) 
Revised: 04/14 (ASB) 
Modified: 

EXHIBIT 

MoDOT District: Kansas City 
MoDOT Contract Administrator: Griffin T. Smith 

MISSOURI HIGHWAYS AND TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
AGREEMENT FOR SIGNING INSTALLED AND MAINTAINED BY APPLICANT 

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into by the Missouri Highways and Transportation 
Commission (hereinafter, "Commission"), whose address is P.O. Box 270, 105 W. Capitol , 
Jefferson City, Missouri 65102, and City of Belton by and through its Parks and Recreation 
Department (hereinafter, "Applicant") , whose address is 506 Main street 
Belton, Missouri 64012 

WITNNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, Applicant requests approval from the Commission to install and maintain 
certain signs further described below in Cass County, Missouri Tree City 
USA in the general vicinity of 155 exit ramp at the cass county and Belton City 
limit ; and 

WHEREAS, the Commission is willing to approve the Applicant's request subject to the 
terms and conditions of this Agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants, promises and 
representations contained herein, the parties agree as follows: 

(1) LOCATION AND DISPLAY: The Applicant hereby requests that the Commission 
allow Applicant to construct, install and maintain the following sign(s): 

0 Blue Star Marker(s) 

0 Buckle-Up Signs(s) 
Community Awareness Sign(s) 
-a - o-.A:R'E'Sign(sr - --

0 Drug Free School Zone Sign(s) 
1RJ Tree City USA Sign(s) 
0 Disaster Resistant Community Sign(s) 

0 Storm Ready Community Sign(s) 
0 Other Community Awareness Sign(s) approved by the Commission's 

State Traffic Engineer 
Local Reference Signs 

D City Hall/County Courthouse Signs(s) 
0 Police Station/Sheriff's Department Sign(s) 

0 City/County Park Sign(s) 
0 Library Sign(s) 
0 Recycle Center Sign(s) 
0 Compost Site Sign(s) 
0 Other Local Reference Sign(s) approved by the Commission's State 

Traffic Engineer 
0 Bus Stop/Mass Transit Sign(s) 
0 Neighborhood Watch Sign(s) 
0 Noise Ordinance Sign(s) 

60 

Page 1 of8 



D Other sign(s) approved by the Commission's State Traffic Engineer 

(A) The sign(s) design will follow the guidelines and regulations of the Federal 
Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD) and the Commission's Signing Manual for 
size, color and reflectorization. The sign(s) shall read as displayed in Exhibit A. 

(B) The sign(s) will be generally located as illustrated in Exhibit B. The 
Commission will approve final location prior to installation. 

(C) The signs will be displayed: 

[RJ Year round 
D Seasonally 

from ____ to ____ _ 

If the sign(s) is/are to be displayed seasonally, that the Applicant shall cover or remove the sign(s) 
during periods of non-use. 

(2) INSTALLATION: The signs shall be installed on a post supplied by the applicant 
and shall not be attached to Commission's pole or traffic control devices. The post shall include 
a breakaway post assembly, in accordance with Commission requirements . The Applicant shall 
provide plans with the specific location details of the sign installation for approval by the 
Commission prior to installation. All costs associated with this installation shall be borne by the 
Applicant. 

(3) TRAFFIC CONTROL: All work zone signs and traffic control devices to be used 
during installation and maintenance shall be in accordance and comply with the latest revision of 
the Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices for Streets and Highways or as directed by the 
District Engineer or his authorized representative 

(4) PERMIT: Before beginning installation work, the Applicant shall secure a permit 
from the Commission's District Engineer for the installation of the proposed sign(s). The Applicant 

--- ----shall-co-mply-with-any-additronat-reqairements-ptaced-on-ttreis'SUance-otthe-permit-byrth-e-EJi's ri'Ci- · 
Engineer. The Applicant may provide written authority to the Commission's District Engineer 
enabling its contractor to obtain the permit as an agent for the Applicant. If required, separate 
permit(s) for future maintenance will be issued. 

(5) COSTS: If this request is approved, all costs associated with the construction, 
installation, maintenance, or relocation of the sign(s), including, but not limited to work zone 
signing and traffic control during construction will be borne entirely by the Applicant, with no cost 
incurred by the Commission. In the event the Commission incurs any costs in association with 
the performance of this Agreement, the Applicant shall reimburse the Commission for those costs. 

(6) HIGHWAY SPECI FICATIONS: All work done pursuant to this Agreement shall be 
in accordance with applicable portions of the latest editions of the Missouri Highways and 
Transportation Commission's Standard Specifications for Highway Construction and the Standard 
Plans for Highway Construction. The Applicant shall provide a copy of its contractors certification 
of material used to the Commission. 

(7) MAINTENANCE: Applicant shall maintain signs following the guidelines of the 
Federal Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD) and the Commission's Missouri 
Signing Manual for reflectivity, alignment, and placement. The Commission may request 
maintenance of the signs by the Applicant, at the Applicant's expense, and the Applicant shall 
promptly comply with the Commission's request for maintenance of the signs. Failure by the 

61 

Page 2 of8 



Applicant to complete requested maintenance within 14 calendar days from Commission's 
request shall be grounds for removal of all signs installed by the Applicant. 

(8) MAINTENANCE BY APPLICANT WITHIN COMMISSION RIGHT OF WAY: In 
order to coordinate maintenance activities on the sign(s), the Applicant shall notify the 
Commission either by telephone, telefax, or in writing, prior to performing maintenance work within 
Commission right of way. Such notification shall be made to the Commission's District Engineer 
or a designated assistant, and shall include the location and nature of the work to be performed. 
Any maintenance activities done by the Applicant which involves closing one or more of the 
through lanes, affects the safety of the traveling public, or which will cause permanent changes 
to the configuration of the improvement, may require a permit from the Commission. The 
Applicant will be informed of whether or not a permit is required at the time the Applicant notifies 
Commission of the proposed maintenance activities. The Applicant shall comply with any 
additional condition placed upon the issuance of the permit. 

(9) REMOVAL: 

(A) If the Applicant fails to comply with the provisions stated herein regarding 
the maintenance responsibilities , the Commission may remove the sign(s). 

(B) If the Commission, in its sole discretion, determines that the sign(s) is no 
longer justified, the Commission may remove the sign(s). 

(C) If the Commission, in its sole discretion, determines that the sign(s) should 
be removed or eliminated as part of a highway or transportation project, the Commission may 
remove the sign(s). 

(D) If the Commission, in its sole discretion, determines that the removal of the 
sign(s) from the Commission's right of way is in the best interests of the state highway system, 
the Commission may remove the sign(s). 

(E) If the Commission removes the sign(s) in accordance with any provision of 
this Agreement, the Commission will not reimburse the Applicant for the cost or value of the 

----~igr.l(S.)-. -----------

(10) APPLICANT'S RESPONSIBILITIES: The Commission may request the Applicant 
modify the sign(s) when necessary to comply with changed standards that might be promulgated 
or adopted at the Applicant's cost and Commission may request the Applicant to relocate the 
signs to accommodate the need to install signs the Commission, in its sole discretion, deems 
more appropriate at the Applicant 's cost. Should the Commission make either request, the 
Applicant shall comply with the Commission's request within 14 calendar days. 

(11) APPLICANT'S REPRESENTATIVE: The Applicant's (Mayor and Parks and 
Recreation Board President) are designated as the Applicant's representative for the purpose 
of administering the provisions of this Agreement. The Applicant's representative may designate 
by written notice other persons having the authority to act on behalf of the Applicant in furtherance 
of the performance of this Agreement. All Notices or other communication required or permitted 
to be given hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deemed given three (3) days after delivery 
by United States mail, regular mail postage prepaid, or upon receipt by personal or facsimile 
delivery, addressed as follows: 

Jeff Davis 
Mayor 

Perry Gough 
AND 

62 
Parks and Recreation Board President 

Page 3 of8 



506 Main Belton, MO 64012 
Tele No.:8163314331 

16400 North Mullen Rd Belton, MO 
64012 
Tele No.: 8163487400 

(12) VENUE: It is agreed by the parties that any action at law, suit in equity, or other 
judicial proceeding to enforce or construe this Agreement, or regarding its alleged breach, shall 
be instituted only in the Circuit Court of Cole County, Missouri. 

(13) INDEMNIFICATION: 

(A) To the extent allowed or imposed by law, the Applicant shall defend, 
indemnify and hold harmless the Commission, including its members and department employees, 
from any claim or liability whether based on a claim for damages to real or personal property or 
to a person for any matter relating to or arising out of the Applicant's wrongful or negligent 
performance of its obligations under this Agreement. 

(B) The Applicant is required or will require any contractor procured by the 
Applicant to work under this Agreement: 

(1) To obtain a no cost permit from the Commission's district engineer 
prior to working on the Commission's right-of-way, which shall be signed by an authorized 
contractor representative (a permit from the Commission's district engineer will not be required 
for work outside of the Commission's right-of-way); and 

(2) To carry commercial general liability insurance and commercial 
automobile liability insurance from a company authorized to issue insurance in Missouri, and to 
name the Commission, and the Missouri Department of Transportation and its employees, as 
additional named insureds in amounts sufficient to cover the sovereign immunity limits for 
Missouri public entities ($500,000 per claimant and $3,000,000 per occurrence) as calculated by 
the Missouri Department of Insurance, Financial Institutions and Professional Registration, and 
published annually in the Missouri Register pursuant to Section 537.610, RSMo. 

- - (C)--lr:r-r1-<Y-ever:rt-SI=Iall-the-lar-l9blage.Gf-tl:lis-A§Feement--e-Emstitute::e-..::ee-eenstruec:l------c...:_ -= 
as a waiver or limitation for either party's rights or defenses with regard to each party's applicable 
sovereign, governmental, or official immunities and protections as provided by federal and state 
constitution or law. 

(14) NO INTEREST: By placing and maintaining signs on the Commission's right of 
way, the Applicant gains no property interest in Commission's right of way. The Commission shall 
not be obligated to keep the sign(s) in place if the Commission, in its sole discretion, determines 
removal or modification of the sign(s) is in the best interests of the state highway system or the 
Commission. 

(15) SOLE BENEFICIARY: This Agreement is made for the sole benefit of the parties 
hereto and nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to give any rights or benefits to anyone 
other than the Commission and the Applicant. 

(16) AUTHORITY TO EXECUTE: The signers of this Agreement warrant that they are 
acting officially and properly on behalf of their respective institutions and have been duly 
authorized, directed and empowered to execute this Agreement. 

(17) ENTIRE AGREEMENT: This Agreement represents the entire understanding 
between the parties regarding this subject and supersedes all prior written or oral communications 
between the parties regarding this subject. 

63 

Page 4 of8 



(18) A TI ACHMENTS: The following Exhibits and other documents are attached to and 
made a part of this Agreement: 

(A) Exhibit A: Sign Display Detail 

(B) Exhibit 8: Sign Location Layout 

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank; Execution and Signature Page Follows] 

64 

Page 5 of8 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have entered into this Agreement on the date last 
written below: 

Executed by the Applicant the __ day of ________ , 20 __ . 

Executed by the Commission the __ day of , 20 __ 

MISSOURI HIGHWAYS AND 
TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 

By _ _________________ __ 

Title ____________ _ 

ATTEST: 

Secretary to the Commission 

Approved as to Form: 

Commission Counsel 

Copies: Applicant 
District 
Traffic Division 
Commission Secretary 

CITY OF BEL TON 

By ___________________ _ 

::le MalL- c~ L 
\ 

Title Parks and Recreation 
Board President 

ATTEST: 

By _____________________ _ 

Title -------------

65 

Page 6 of8 



Sign No: 

Sign No: 

Sign No: 

EXHIBIT A 
Sign Display Detail 

Attach and Number Addilfonal Sheets if Necessary 

24" x 30" Quantity: 

Quantity: 

Quantity: 

1 Sign No: 

Sign No: 

Sign No: 

66 

Page 7 of8 

Quantity: 

Quantity: 

Quantity: 



EXHIBIT B 
Sign Location Layout 

67 

Page 8 of8 



SECTION VIII 
I 

68 



BILL NO. 2016-126 ORDINANCE NO. 2016-

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A SECOND AMENDMENT TO THE 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF 
BELTON, MISSOURI AND THE BELTON-CASS REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT. 

WHEREAS, the City of Belton and the Belton-Cass Regional Transportation 
Development District entered into an Intergovernmental Cooperative Agreement on May 14,2013 
under Ordinance No. 2013-3913; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Belton and the Belton-Cass Regional Transportation 
Development District entered into a First Amendment to the Intergovernmental Cooperative 
Agreement on May 24,2016 under Ordinance No. 2016- 4226; and 

WHEREAS, the District and City desire to amend again Section 4.8 and include a new 
Exhibit E-1 to the Agreement and other related documents, to clarify the procedure for 
reimbursement of deferred costs payable to the City by the District. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CIT COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF BELTON, MISSOURI, 

Section 1. That the City Council hereby authorizes and approves the Second Amendment 
to the Intergovernmental Cooperative Agreement herein attached and incorporated as Exhibit "A" 
to this ordinance to clarify the procedure for reimbursement of deferred costs payable to the City 
by the District. 

· · ------------ ectioii 2. Tfiat 

Belton. 

Section 3. That this ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after the date of 
its passage and approval. 

Section 4. That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are 
hereby repealed. 

READ FOR THE FIRST TIME: December 13,2016 

READ FOR THE SECOND TIME AND PASSED: 

Mayor JeffDavis 

69 



Approved this __ day of ___ , 2016. 

ATTEST: 

Patricia A. Ledford, City Clerk 
of the City of Belton, Missouri 

STATE OF MISSOURI ) 
CITY OF BELTON )SS 
COUNTY OF CASS ) 

Mayor Jeff Davis 

I, Patricia A. Ledford, City Clerk, do hereby certify that I have been duly appointed City Clerk of 
the City of Belton and the foregoing ordinance was regularly introduced for first reading at a 
meeting of the City Council held on the 13th day of December, 2016, and thereafter adopted as 
Ordinance No.2016- of the City of Belton, Missouri, at a regular meeting of the City 
Council held on the __ day of , 2016, after the second reading thereof by the following: 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSENT: 

COUNCILMEN: 

COUNCILMEN: 

COUNCILMEN: 

70 

Patricia A. Ledford, City Clerk 
Of the City of Belton, Missouri 



BELTON-CASS REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMEI'I"T DISTRICT 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016:03 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF SECOI'I'D AMENDMENT TO 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT WITH CITY OF BELTON, MO 

WHEREAS, having duJy given notice of a meeting of tl}e Board of Directors in accordance with RSMo 
Section 610.020, the Directors of the Belton-Cass Regional Transportation Development District 
("District") met on November 15, 2016; and 

WHEREAS,. the District entered into an Intergovernmental Cooperative Agreement dated effective May 
14,2013 with the City of Belton, Missouri ("City") ("Agreement"); and 

WHEREAS, the District entered into a First Amendment to In•govemmental Cooperative Agreement 
dated effective Aprill9, 2016; and 

WHERBAS,.the District and the City desire to amend Section 4.8 and include a new Exhibit B-1 of the 
Agreement, and other related amendments, to clarify the procedure for reimbursement of deferred costs 
payable to the. City by the District; 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RBSOL VED, by the Board of Directors of the Belton-Cass Regional 
Transportation Development District that: 

1. Tbe Second Amendment to the Intergovernmental Cooperative Agreement in 
substantially the form presented to the Board of Directors on this date is approved. 

2. The Chairman and other officers are authorized to execute and deliver for Md on behalf 
of the District the Second Amendment to the Intergovernmental Cooperative Agreement in substantially 
the form presented to the Board of Directors on this date, subject to such changes, additions, or deletions 
that may be deemed necessacy or desirable by the officers of the District or its legal counsel, and any and 

_jill additionaJ certificates, agreements, documents or papers and to perform all other acts as the District 
~nay-deennle-o-essmy-or-approprlatein order-tO'·carry-outtbe-matters authorized-by-this-ResolutionpWith 
sucb execution being conclusive evidence of the their approval of the terms and conditions thereof. 

3. The Chainnan and other officers are authorized to take any additional actions within their 
powers under the Act necessary to carry out the intent of this Resolution. 

4. This Resolution shall take effect immediately. 

PASSED NOVEMBER 15, Z016 
APPROVED: 

~~ 
. . .. ' . . . . 

. ·.::. . 
- -:w;., ' -

'.:~~&'Q]~ I 
ATI'EST: 

71 



SECOND AMENDMENT 

TO THE 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT 

between the 

CITY OF BELTON, MISSOURI, 

and 

BELTON-CASS REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

dated as of 

---.---------' 2016 

{50022/66742; 718786.} 

72 

EXHIBIT 



EXHIBITS 

A. Legal Description 

B. District Boundary Map 

C. Transportation Project Description 

D. City Reimbursable Costs 

B. City Reimbursable Costs (Deferred Payment) 

E-1 City Projects to be Funded by the District 

-----

(S0022/66742;718786.} 

73 



SECOND AMENDMENT TO THE 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT 

. TillS SECOND AMENDMENT TO THE INTERGOVERNMENTAL COOPERATIVE 
AGREEMENT ("Second Amended Agreement11

), entered into as of this _ day of 
2016, between the CITY OF BELTON, MISSOURI, a political 

subdivision of the State of Missouri (''City11
), and the BELTON~CASS REGIONAL 

TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, a Missouri political subdivision and 
transportf)tion development district ("District") (the City and the District are collectively refened 
to herein as the "Parties" and individually as 11Party," as the context so requires). 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the City and the District desire to add Exhibit E·l, City Projects to be 
funded by the District to the Agreement. 

AGREEMENT 

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the premises, and the mutual covenants 
herein contained, the Parties agree as follows: 

Section 4.8 of the Agreement shall be amended as foJlows: 

Section 4.8 City Reimbursement Requests. While the City and the District agree 
that the payment of City Reimbursable Costs shown on Exhibit E have been deferred for 
payment by the District pending payment of all other Transportation Project Costs, the parties 
agree that from time to time the City may request a portion of such costs be paid to the City for 
public improvements within the District but which are not a defmed Transportation Project, 
subject to the conditions set forth below and subject to the availability of otherwise 
1URflWUll11Jered -ntstdct Revenue: -nre-eity hall submit-suclr·requesrto-tlre-B-oa:rd ·or-I>irectorr - -- · --- -- --- · · · 
with sufficient detail describing the amount of the request, the use of the funds and the benefit to 
the District. The District, may, but is not required, to approve all or portion of such request if 
unencumbered District Revenue is available. The Parties acknowledge that the City has 
requested approval by the Board of Directors of several public improvements as set forth in the 
attached Exhibit E-1 and that by adoption of this Second Amended Agreement the public 
improvements are approved. As stated above, the amounts requested for the public 
improvements are subject to unencumbered District funds being available at the time the funds 
are needed· by the City. The Parties further aclmowledge that prior to receipt of payment by the 
City from the District, any City Project may be removed from the approved list. Notice of 
removal shall be delivered to the Chairman of the Board in writing. Notwithstanding the 
foregoing, upon payment by the District to the City, Exhibit E-1 shall be adjusted accordingly 
and the adjusted outstanding balance shall be noted in the District1s financial statement and 
submitted to the Board of Directors for approval. The City and the District acknowledge that the 
District paid for the instal latiort of a water line on behalf of the City as part of the improvement 
of Markey Parkway. The water line expense was estimated at $300,000 and the final actual 
amount paid was $411,329.05 as set forth o'n Exhibit E-1. 

{ 50022/66742: 718786. } 2 

74 



.IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the District and the City have caused this Second 
Amendment to be executed in their respective names and attested as to the date as ·Set forth 
below. 

ATTEST: 

Patricia A. Ledford, City Clerk 

CITY: 

CITY OF BELTON, MISSOURI 

By:.~~~~-------------
Jeffi>avis,~ayor 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND 
LEGALITY: 

Megan McGuire 

STATE OF MISSOURI 

·' COUNTY OF CASS 

) 
)ss --
) 

On this_ day of in the year 2016, before me, a Notary Public in and for 
said state, personally appeared Jeff DaVis, the Mayor ofthe City of Belton, Missouri and Patricia 
A. Ledford, the City Clerk of the City of Belton, Missouri, known to me to be the persons who 
executed the within Intergovernmental Cooperative Agreement on behalf of the City of Belton, 
~issouri and acknowledged to me that they executed the same for the purposes therein stated. 

Subscribed and affinned before me this __ day of ___ ..-...-""'-''--'-~' 2016. 

Notary Pubfic 
My Coinmission Expires: 

{50022/66742; 718786.} 3 

75 



AITEST: 

___ _____ _.., Secretary 

DISTRICI': 

BELTON-CASS REGIONAL 
TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRJCT 

CERTIFICATE OF ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

STATE OF MISSOURI ) 
) ss 

COUNTY OF CASS ) 

- - err this _ -day of - iu-tlle year 20· 6, before me, a otacy Public m an "for 
said state, personally appeared Gary Mallory, the Chairman of the Belton·Cass Regional 
Transportation Development District and , the Secretary of the Belton
Cass Regional Transportation Development District, known to me to be the persons who 
executed the within Intergovernmental Cooperative Agreement on behalf of the Belton-Cass 
Regional Transportation Development District and aclmowledged to me that they executed the 
same for the purposes therein stated. 

Subscribed and affinned before me this __ day of ________ -? 2016. 

Notary'Public 
My Commission Expires: ' 

{50022/66742; 718786.} 4 

76 



AMENDED 

EXHIBITE 

CITY REIMBURSABLE COSTS (DEFERRED PAYMENT) 

Completion of Mullen Road widening improvements: 

Consisting of: 

Pyramid Excavation & Construction Company, Inc. 
Ord. No. 2012~3812 

Wilson & Co. Engineering Design 
Ord. No. 203-3014 

Wilson & Co. Supplemental Amount No. 
Res. 2004-12 

Wilson &-Co. Supplemental Amount No.2 
Final design and construction services 
Res. 2007-19 

Total 

{50022/66742; 718786. } 

E 

77 

$2,269,000 

$2,005,865 

$ 101,450 

$2,269,000 

---- ---



EXHIBITE~l 

CITY PROJECTS TO BE FUNDED BY THE DISTRICT 

Adjusted Balance· 
After Payment Date 

Approved by 
District 

Date Paid by Amount (Beginning Balance 
City Pmifct 

Markey Parkway 
Waterline 

Belton Nexus 

State Highway 58 and Y 
Highway 

58 and Powell Intersection 
Improvements 

*$ 90,000 in2018 
**$360,000 in 2020 

(1) 

Belton Cass 
DD_P;y.mt 

Belton Cass 
TDD-~ymt 

R~gueatNn~ lUguest·Da!e 

6 10/13/2014 

8 11/18/2014 

10 12/11/2014 

16 03/11/2015 

24 07/14/2015 

{S0022166742; 718786.) 

FYNeeded District :Aenrov.!ld "S!$6~.00"0) 
1 -·~ .., • 

(I) See below. $411,329.05 $1,857,670.95 

2017 $ 66,000.00 $1,791,670.95 

20 I 8•/2020** $450,000.00 $1,341,670.95 

2019 $200,000.00 $1,141,670.95 

Phillips Phillips 
.Barq .Hardy . __ . _Inv.oice Amountlor 

Invoice Date Invoice No. Th!!! Waterline DatePafd 

09/20/2014 4 $658,422.90 $155,966.92 10/24/2014 

10/25/2014 5 $683,100.49 $161,146.05 11/26/2014 

11/22/2014 6 $794,615.28 $ 80,016.08 12/22/2014 

02/2112015 9 $ 63,501.40 $ 13,200.00 03/24/2015 

06/27/2015 13 $237,644.03 $ 1,000.00 07/29/2015 

$411,329.05 

B-1 

78 



SECTION VIII 
J 

79 



BILL NO. 2016-127 ORDINANCE NO. 2016-

AN ORDINANCE TO ENABLE BELTON, MISSOURI TO JOIN SHOW ME PACE, 
PURSUANT TO SECTIONS §67.2800 TO §67.2835, RSMO, THE "PROPERTY 
ASSESSMENT CLEAN ENERGY ACT," AND STATING THE TERMS UNDER 
Vv'HICH THE CITY WILL CONDUCT ACTIVITIES AS A MEMBER OF SUCH 
DISTRICT. 

WHEREAS, the 95th General Assembly of the State of Missouri has adopted the 
Property Assessment Clean Energy Act, Sections 67.2800 to 67.2835, Revised Statutes of 
Missouri (the "PACE Act"); and 

WHEREAS, it is in the best interests ofthe health, safety, and welfare of Belton, 
Missouri and its residents to encourage the development, production, and efficient use of 
clean energy and renewable energy, as well as the installation of energy efficiency 
improvements to publicly and privately owned real property; and 

WHEREAS, the primary intent of funding energy efficiency and renewable 
energy improvements pursuant to the PACE Act is to promote the public purposes 
described above; and 

WHEREAS, Section §67.2810.1, RSMo authorizes one or more Municipalities 
(as defined in Section §67.2800.7, RSMo) to establish a Clean Energy Development 
Board to initiate and administer a Property Assessed Clean Energy ("PACE") Program so 
that owners of qualifying property can access funding for energy efficiency 
improvements or renewable energy improvements to the properties located in such 
Municipalities; and 

-lYHEREAS,_on_lune._l5, 2015,_ a_clean___energ)'- .developmenLhoard named. Show 
Me PACE was created with the intention that all Municipalities (as defined in the PACE 
Act) within the State of Missouri would be eligible to join and participate by approving 
an appropriate ordinance or resolution; and 

WHEREAS, it is in the best interests of Belton, Missouri and its residents to join 
and participate in Show Me PACE. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
BELTON, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1: The City hereby approves and authorizes joining and participating 
in Show Me PACE based on the following: 

80 



A. Title and Definitions. 

1. Title. This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as "Belton, 
Missouri Property Assessed Clean Energy Ordinance." 

2. Definitions. Except as specifically defined below, words and phrases 
used in this Ordinance shall have their customary meanings. Words 
and phrases defined in Section 67.2800.2 of the Missouri Revised 
Statutes, as amended, shall have their defined meanings when used in 
this Ordinance. As used in this Ordinance, the following words and 
phrases shall have the meanings indicated. 

a. "Show Me PACE" or "District" means the Show Me PACE Clean 
Energy Development Board. 

b. "PACE Assessment" means a special assessment made against 
qualifying property in consideration of PACE Funding. 

c. "PACE Funding" means fimds provided to the owner(s) of 
Qualifying Property by the District for an energy efficiency, water 
conservation or renewable energy improvement. 

d. "Qualifying Property" means real property located in Belton, 
Missouri that satisfies the criteria set forth in the PACE Act. 

B. Program Administration. Show Me PACE shall administer the functions of a 
PACE program within the City by: 

---==1- pw:v-id.in.g -propert - <Jwner;s -=with an applicatio.&--t . - appl¥ -for. l?AC& ==~-
Funding; 

2. developing standards for the approval of projects submitted by 
Qualifying Property owners; 

3. reviewing applications and selecting qualified projects; 

4. entering into Assessment Contracts with Qualifying Property owners; 

5. providing a copy of each executed Notice of Assessment to the County 
Assessor and causing a copy of each such Notice of Assessment to be 
recorded in the real estate records of the Recorder of Deeds for the 
County; 

6. authorizing and disbursing PACE Funding to the Qualifying Property 
owners; 

-2-
81 



7. receiving the PACE Assessment from the County Collector; 

8. recording any lien, if needed, due to nonpayment of a PACE 
Assessment; and 

9. exercising ail powers granted by Section 67.2810.2 of the Missouri 
Revised Statutes, as amended, including, but not limited to, the power 
to levy and collect the PACE Assessment pursuant to an Assessment 
Contract with a Qualifying Property owner. 

C. Liability of City Officials; Liability of City. Notwithstanding any other 
provision of law to the contrary, officers and other officials of Belton, 
Missouri shall not be personally liable to any person for claims, of whatever 
kind or nature, under or related to the City's participation in the PACE 
program, including, without limitation, claims for or related to uncollected 
PACE Assessments. Belton, Missouri has no liability to a property owner for 
or related to energy savings improvements funded under a PACE Program. 
Pursuant to the PACE Act, the District is a separate political subdivision and 
is not a unit of the City. 

D. Existing Laws Not Superseded. Any project or improvement at any 
Qualifying Property which is funded in whole or in part of PACE Funding 
shall be subject to all ordinances, rules and regulations in effect at that time. 

E. City as a Non-Party. Belton, Missouri shall not be a party to any PACE 
Funding agreement, loan, or other commitment, however denominated, 
executed between the District and the owner( s) (or their representatives, 
together with any successors and assigns) of any Qualifying Property. 

-------
SECTION 2: Belton, Missouri declares its intent that the provisions of this 

Ordinance shall be in conformity with federal and state laws. The County enacts this 
Ordinance pursuant to Sections 67.2800 to 67.2835 of the Missouri Revised Statutes, as 
amended. 

SECTION 3: Belton, Missouri does hereby request that it be approved by the 
Board of Directors of Show Me PACE as a duly authorized participant in the District. 
The City hereby approves the Show Me PACE Cooperative Agreement among the 
District and the participating Municipalities in substantially the form attached hereto as 
Exhibit A (the "Cooperative Agreement"). The City Council of Belton, Missouri is 
hereby authorized and directed to execute the Cooperative on behalf of the City. 

SECTION 4: The election of Belton, Missouri to join the District shall in no way 
constitute an obligation of the City necessitating any corresponding appropriation. 

SECTION 5: The City Clerk is hereby authorized to deliver a duly executed copy 
of this Ordinance to the Board of Directors of the District or its designee, together with 

- 3-
82 



the jurisdictional and geographic boundaries of the City for inclusion in the jurisdictional 
and geographic boundaries of the District. 

SECTION 6: The officials and agents of the City are hereby authorized and 
directed to, take such actions and execute such other documents, certificates and 
instruments as may be necessary or desirable to carry out and comply with the intent of 
this Ordinance. 

SECTION 7: This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its 
passage and approval. 

SECTION 8: That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this 
ordinance are hereby repealed. 

READ FOR THE FIRST TIME: December 13, 2016 

READ FOR THE SECOND TIME AND PASSED: 

Mayor Jeff Davis 

Approved this ___ day of _ ___ , 2016. 

ATTEST: 

Patricia Ledford, City Clerk 
City of Belton, Missouri 

STATE OF MISSOURI ) 
CITY OF BEL TON ) SS 
COUNTY OF CASS ) 

-4-
83 

. ----- ----May.or-leff.Da¥-is --



I, Patricia A. Ledford, City Clerk, do hereby certify that I have been duly appointed City 
Clerk of the City of Belton and that the foregoing ordinance was regularly introduced for 
first reading at a meeting of the City Council held on the 13th day of December, 2016, 
and thereafter adopted as Ordinance No. 2016-_ _ of the City of Belton, Missouri, at a 
regular meeting of the City Council held on the __ day of , 2016, 
after the second reading thereof by the following vote, to-wit: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 

COUNCILMEN: 
COUNCILMEN: 
COUNCILMEN: 

- 5 -
84 

Patricia A. Ledford, City Clerk 
of the City of Belton, Missouri 



EXHIBIT A 

SHOW ME PACE 
COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT 

THIS COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT (this "Cooperative Agreement") is 
made and entered into by Show Me PACE, a Missouri clean energy development board 
("Show Me PACE") and the municipalities of the State of Missouri that, from time to 
time, may execute this Cooperative Agreement (each, a "Municipality," and together, the 
"Municipalities"). 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, on , 2016, the City Council of Belton, Missouri adopted 
Ordinance No. 2016_, joining Show Me PACE District pursuant to Sections 67.2800 
to 67.2835 ofthe Revised Statutes ofMissouri (the "PACE Act"); and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 67.2810 of the PACE Act, more than one 
municipality may form a clean energy development board; and 

WHEREAS, clean energy development boards serving more than one 
municipality are in the best interest of the participating municipalities because it allows 
for economies of scale and concentrations of expertise that will benefit the approval, 
financing and installation of energy efficient and renewable energy improvements 
pursuant to the PACE Act; and 

WHEREAS, other municipalities may participate in Show Me PACE by adoption 
-==--o.f- aR -mdinanG€· in-acre-md~with -the P ACE--AG - cmd- ex€Gution af. this--· OOJl€rati.v€ 

Agreement. 

AGREEMENT 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of each municipality's participation in 
Show Me PACE, each Municipality hereby agrees as follows: 

1. Representations. Each Municipality has taken all legislative actions 
necessary to approve such Municipality's participation in Show Me PACE. 

2. Approval of Bylaws. The current bylaws of Show Me PACE (the 
"Bylaws") have been provided to the Municipality and the Municipality approves such 
Bylaws. 

3. Board of Directors. The members of the Board of Directors of Show Me 
PACE shall be appointed in the manner described in the Bylaws. 

85 



4. Clean Energy Development Board Powers. Each Municipality agrees 
that Show Me PACE is authorized to exercise all clean energy development board 
powers permitted by the PACE Act or other statute within the boundaries of the 
Municipality. 

5. Counterparts. This Cooperative Agreement is intended to be signed in 
counterparts as Municipalities, from time to time, elect to participate in Show Me PACE. 
No action from any Municipality already participating in Show Me PACE shall be 
required for a new Municipality to participate in Show Me PACE. 

6. Withdrawal. No Municipality shall withdraw from participation in Show 
Me PACE if such withdrawal will impact any existing property assessment clean energy 
financing undertaken by Show Me PACE in the Municipality's boundaries. However, a 
Municipality may request, in writing, that Show Me PACE no longer undertake clean 
energy financing in the Municipality's boundaries. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Show Me PACE and the Municipalities have caused 
this Cooperative Agreement to be executed as of the dates shown below: 

Date: , 2016 ----- -

Date: _ _____ ,, 2016 

SHOW ME PACE 

By: ______ _ ____ _ 

Josh Campbell, J.D., President 

City of Belton, Missouri 

- 7 -
86 

By: _ _ _ _ _______ _ 
Name: __________ __ 

Title: - ------------- -----



CITY OF BELTON 
CITY COUNCIL INFORMATION FORM 

MEETING DATE: December 13, 2016 
ASSIGNED STAFF: Jay C. Leipzig, AICP- Director- Community and Economic Development 

r;gj Ordinance 0 Resolution D Consent Item 0 Change Order 
D Agreement 0 Discussion [ ] FYI/Update 0 Public Hearing 

ISSUE 
PACE (Property Assessed Clean Energy) is a financing mechanism that allows property owners 
(commercial, industrial, agricultural, non-profits and government facilities) the opportunity to 
borrow money, with little to no upfront cost, to install or retrofit renewable energy and energy 
efficiency conservation measures. Participation in PACE financing promotes economic 
development, creates jobs and saves energy. 

There are three PACE districts in the state of Missouri. State statute requires a municipality to 
pass an ordinance in order for a PACE district to operate in that jurisdiction. Municipalities can 
participate in more than one clean energy district. 

REQUESTED COUNCll. ACTION 
Approve the ordinance to join the Show Me PACE district. 

BACKGROUND 
PACE financing is a program that provides fmancing for up :front costs of energy efficiency 
upgrades, renewable energ~ uggrades and energy audits. The fmancin_g copie~!_hrough private 

·- ------fi.mclsana is repa101illougti: annual propetty assessmen s. Tne assessments are t1ecl.-d1rectlytoa ____ --
property and repaid via the property tax bill over a period of up to 22 years. The voluntary 
assessment, which is secured by a senior lien on the property, does not require an upfront 
payment. Because the assessment and lien are tied directly to the property, they can be 
transferred upon sale. 

There are currently three PACE districts in the state of Missouri: Show ME Pace, Missouri Clean 
Energy District, and Set the PACE St. Louis. This allows for an open market PACE program. In 
2014 Belton passed an ordinance to join the Missouri Clean Energy District. By passing an 
ordinance to join the Show Me Pace district, Belton insures it's property owners an open market. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Approve the ordinance to join the Show Me PACE district. 

ATTACHMENTS 
Show Me PACE Ordinance 

87 



SECTION VIII 
K 

------- ---- ---

88 



BILL NO. 2016-128 ORDINANCE NO. 2016-

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING A COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT 
AND MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN THE CITY OF BELTON, 
MISSOURI AND THE CITY OF RAYMORE, MISSOURI TO SUPPORT CONVEYANCE OF 
CERTAIN RIGHTS OF CONTROL TO THE NORTH SIDE OF HIGHWAY 58 BETWEEN 
THE CENTERLINE OF CLINT DRIVE AND DEAN A VENUE AND THE CENTERLINE OF 
KENTUCKY ROAD FROM THE MISSOURI DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION TO 
THE CITY OF RA YMORR MISSOURI. 

WHEREAS, Sections 70.220.1 and 432.070 ofthe Revised Statutes of Missouri (RSMo) 
provide that municipal corporations may contract and cooperate with each other for the planning, 
development, construction, acquisition or operation of any public improvement or facility, or for 
a common service, provided that the subject and purpose of any such contract or cooperative action 
are within the scope ofthe powers of the municipalities and are duly authorized in writing; and 

WHEREAS, the provisions of the proposed Cooperative Agreement and Memorandum of 
Understanding (MOU), herein attached and incorporated as Exhibit "A", comply with the 
requirements of Section 70.220.1 and 432.070 RSMo; and 

WHEREAS, a portion of the corporate boundary of Raymore and a portion of the corporate 
boundary of Belton currently abut and adjoin each other along the centerline of Missouri Highway 
58 right-of-way ("M0-58") between the centerline of Clint Drive and Dean Avenue, and the 
centerline of Kentucky Road; and 

WHEREAS, the Missouri Department of Transportation ("MoDOT") currently maintains 
----""""o=wn==er=sru ancfcon olofl s aoov descriBM rtf< of"MCJ-58; -a:mF ==---------===--==--= 

WHEREAS, Raymore desires to acquire rights to control this above described area from 
MoDOT including rights and responsibilities for maintenance, development, access and traffic 
control of the Raymore portion and the Belton portion; and 

WHEREAS, MoDOT desires to convey the rights to control the above described portion 
to Raymore including the rights and responsibilities for maintenance, development, access and 
traffic control of the above described portion pursuant to a Quit Claim Deed and a Transfer of 
Route 58, subject to approval of this MOU by Belton and Raymore, and 

WHEREAS, the City Council believes that it is in the best interest of the City of Belton 
and in the spirit of cooperation with a neighboring community to convey certain rights of control 
including the rights and responsibilities for maintenance, development, access and traffic control 
pursuant to a Quit Claim Deed and a Transfer of Route 58 from MoDOTto the City of Raymore, 
subject to certain limitations, requirements and controls as provided for within the attached MOU. 

89 



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

BELTON, MISSOURI AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1. That the Cooperative Agreement and Memorandum of Understanding, herein 

attached and incorporated to this Ordinance as Exhibit "A", is approved. 

SECTION 2. This ordinance shall take effect and be in full force from and after its passage 

and approval. 

SECTION 3. That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are 

hereby repealed. 

READ FOR THE FIRST TIME: December 13,2016 

READ FOR THE SECOND TIME AND PASSED: December 13,2016 

Mayor Jeff Davis 

Approved this ___ day of ___ --.7 2016. 

ATTEST: 

_ Patricia Ledford Cicy Clerk~ ·
City of Belton, Missouri 

STATE OF MISSOURI ) 
CITY OF BEL TON ) SS 
COUNTY OF CASS ) 

Mayor Jeff Davis 

--- ·-~--

I, Patricia A. Ledford, City Clerk, do hereby certify that I have been duly appointed City Clerk of 

the City of Belton and that the foregoing ordinance was regularly introduced for first reading at a 

meeting of the City Council held on the 13th day of December, 2016, and thereafter adopted as 

Ordinance No. 2016- of the City of Belton, Missouri, at a regular meeting of the City Council 

held on the 13th day of December, 2016, after the second reading thereof by the following vote, 

to-wit: 

90 



A YES: COUNCILMEN: 
NOES: COUNCILMEN: 
ABSENT: COUNCILMEN: 

Patricia A. Ledford, City Clerk 
of the City of Belton, Missouri 

·--· - . - ·-=---==:...===----=-='--.......:..::..-=====-=----=-===--==-===-==-=::::........;=---

91 



EXHIBIT 

THIS 

COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT AND 
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT AND MEMORANDUM OF 
UNDERSTANDING ("MOU") is entered into as ofthis day of _ _____ _ 
___ , 2016 by and between the City of Raymore, Missouri ("Raymore") a home rule charter 
city, and the City of Belton, Missouri ("Belton") a home rule charter city each located within Cass 
County, Missouri in order to better manage the operations and maintenance of certain public 
improvements ("Improvements") which are located along the corporate boundaries of each party. 

RECITALS 

A. Section 432.070 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri ("RSMo") provides in 
pertinent part that "[n]o county, city, town village ... or other municipal corporation shall make any 
contract, unless the same shall be within the scope of its powers or be expressly authorized by law, 
nor unless such contract be made upon a consideration wholly to be performed or executed 
subsequent to the making of the contract; and such contract, including the consideration, shall be 
in writing and dated when made, and shall be subscribed by the parties thereto, or their agents 
authorized by law and duly appointed and authorized in writing." 

B. Section 70.220.1 RSMo authorizes any municipal or political subdivision of this 
state to "contract and cooperate with any other municipality or political subdivision ... for the 
planning, development, construction, acquisition or operation of any public improvement or 
facility, or for a common service; provided that the subject and purposes of any such contract or 
cooperative action made and entered into by such municipality or political subdivision shall be 
within the scope of the powers of such municipality or political subdivision." 

C. A portion of the corporate boundary of Raymore and a portion of the corporate 

ft 

-boundary ·of-Belton-currently abut and-adjoin-each-other-along-the centerline--o-f Missottri-H:i-ghway-
58 right-of-way ("M0-58") between the centerline of Clint Drive and Dean Avenue, and the 
centerline of Kentucky. Attached hereto as Exhibit "A" is an aerial photograph visually depicting 
the portion ofM0-58 which is the subject ofthis MOU. The portion ofM0-58 which is within 
the corporate municipal boundaries of Belton is legally defined and/or visually depicted on Exhibit 
"B" ("Belton Portion") attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein. The portion ofM0-
58 which is within the corporate municipal boundaries of Raymore is legally defined and/or 
visually depicted on Exhibit "C" ("Raymore Portion") attached hereto and incorporated by 
reference herein. 

D. At this time, the Missouri Department of Transportation ("MODoT") maintains 
ownership and control of the combined Belton Portion and Raymore Portion ofM0-58 which said 
combined portion is legally defined and/or visually depicted on Exhibit "D" ("MODoT Area") 
attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein. 

E. Raymore desires to acquire rights to control the MODoT Area from MODoT 
including rights and responsibilities for maintenance, development, access and traffic control of 
the MODoT Area. 

92 



F. MODoT desires to convey the rights to control the MODoT Area to Raymore 
including the rights and responsibilities for maintenance, development, access and traffic control 
of the MODoT Area pursuant to a Quit Claim Deed and a Transfer of Route 58, subject to approval 
of this MOU by Belton and Raymore. 

G. Belton agrees that it will benefit from the conveyance of rights to control the 
MODoT Area from MODoTto Raymore, including the rights and responsibilities for maintenance, 
development, access and traffic control pursuant to the proposed Quit Claim Deed and a Transfer 
of Route 58, subject to certain limitations, requirements and controls ("Limitations and Controls") 
as provided for within this MOU. 

H. This MOU is being entered by Belton and Raymore in order to comply with the 
requirements of Sections 432.070 and 70.220.1 RSMo. 

I. These Recitals are an integral part of this MOU. 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing Recitals and of the mutual promises 
and understandings set forth herein, Belton and Raymore, by and through their authorized 
representatives hereby agree as follows: 

AGREEMENT 

1. Belton Agreement, Responsibilities and Obligations 

a. Support Transfer of Control from MODoT to Raymore. Belton agrees 
that it will support the transfer of maintenance obligations and right-of-way pursuant to the 
proposed Quit Claim Deed and Transfer of Route 58 over the MODoT Area, including the 

----He :ten =Fbrtien, :frem .g :ge:f · R-aymere:--'Ffti:s up · en-will- inelud pFeviS:ie a-0:f=-an:y- -----== 
reasonable documentation and affirmations required by MODoTto confirm this MOU and 
may be provided by the submission of letters of support and/or provision of testimony to 
MODoT representatives, personnel and employees. 

b. Access. Belton agrees that it will allow unimpeded access for the Raymore 
Public Works employees, contractors, personnel and agents to complete all responsibilities 
undertaken by Raymore under this MOU including maintenance, construction, installation, 
repair and replacement of the Improvements within the Belton Portion. The Improvements 
shall include the public infrastructure within the Belton Portion including the M0-58 road 
bed, streets, street curbs, sidewalks, paving, gutters, storm drain inlets and pipes, street 
signage, traffic signal devices (if any), other regulatory signage and pedestrian walkways. 
These Improvements shall specifically exclude any Belton utility services such as water 
service lines/mains and sanitary sewer lines ("Belton Utility Service"). 

c. Traffic and Municipal Ordinance Enforcement Within Belton Portion. 
Belton shall continue to enforce the Belton municipal code of ordinances within the Belton 

Cooperative Agreement and Memorandum of Understanding 
City of Raymore I City of Belton 

Page 2 

93 



Portion including, but not limited to, any traffic code or other ordinances adopted for the 
operation of vehicles on the public streets. This includes accident response and issuance 
of appropriate citations for violations of the Belton municipal code of ordinances. 

d. Notification of Impediments to Access. Belton shall provide forty-eight 
( 48) hours advance notice to Raymore of any anticipated impediments to access of the 
Belton Portion ("Anticipated Impediments") for maintenance, construction, installation, 
repair and replacement of Belton Utility Service. In the event of an emergency repair of 
Belton Utility Service causing an impediment ("Emergency Impediment"), Belton shall 
notify Raymore as soon as reasonably possible of the same. The notification required 
hereunder shall include the time of the closure/impediment, anticipated reopening/removal 
of the impediment and a general location of the closure/impediment within the Belton 
Portion. 

e. Repair and Replacement After Utility Service. In the event that Belton 
accesses the Belton Portion for maintenance, construction, repair and replacement of any 
Belton Utility Service, Belton shall be responsible (at their costs) for returning the impacted 
ground and/or Improvements to their original condition, or as close thereto as reasonably 
possible within a reasonable time not to exceed four ( 4) months. 

2. Raymore Agreement, Responsibilities and Obligations 

a. Maintain, Construct, Install, Repair and Replace Improvements. 
Except as provided by Section 1 (e) above for repair and replacement of the impacted 
ground and/or Improvements by Belton following Belton Utility Service, Raymore shall 
be solely responsible for all ofthe expense of labor, materials and equipment to maintain, 
construct, install, repair and replace all of the Improvements within the Belton Portion of 
M0-58, including the M0-58 road bed, streets, street curbs, sidewalks, paving, gutters, 

------s-torm- drain-i:nlets--aad-pi-pe-s,s-treet-s-ignage,traftiG --s-ignal-de-viG~s{ifan.y-),other-regulatory 
signage and pedestrian walkways. These Improvements shall specifically exclude any 
Belton Utility Service. Maintenance, construction, repair and replacement of all 
Improvements by Raymore shall be completed as needed (at Raymore's sole discretion) to 
maintain traffic safety, and when regularly scheduled maintenance is performed upon the 
Raymore Portion. 

b. Make No Modifications/Alterations. Raymore agrees that it will not 
modify or otherwise alter any portion of M0-58 subject to this MOU either within the 
Belton Portion or within the Raymore Portion in a manner that permanently affects or 
impacts the accessibility of Belton property owners onto M0-58 without the prior approval 
of Belton. By this MOU, modifications or alterations include, but are not limited to, 

1. Modifications or alterations of the current full access points (if any) 
onto any portion ofM0-58 subject to this MOU, 

Cooperative Agreement and Memorandum of Understanding 
City of Raymore I City of Belton 

Page 3 

94 



u. Installation of medians within the centerline of any portion of M0-
58 subject to this MOU, 

m. Widening or narrowing of any portion of M0-58 subject to this 
MOU, 

tv. Installation of traffic control devices within any portion of M0-58 
subject to this MOU, 

v. Imposition of different speed limits within any portion of M0-58 
subject to this MOU, and 

v1. Modifications or alterations of the current limited access points (if 
any) onto any portion ofM0-58 subject to this MOU. 

c. Snow Removal/Street Sweeping. Raymore shall perform snow removal, 
pre-treatment for ice and street sweeping on the Belton Portion at the same interval, and 
when performed on the Raymore Portion. 

d. Notification oflmpediments to Access. Raymore shall provide forty-eight 
(48) hours advance notice to Belton of any anticipated impediments to access ofthe Belton 
Portion ("Anticipated Impediments") for maintenance, construction, installation, repair 
and replacement of any Improvements. In the event of an emergency repair of 
Improvements causing an impediment ("Emergency Impediment"), Raymore shall notify 
Belton as soon as reasonably possible of the same. The notification required hereunder 
shall include the time of the closure/impediment, anticipated reopening/removal of the 
impediment and a general location of the closure/impediment within the Belton Portion. 

--------·--- -. - P-r-ov-ide--A~~es to -AU=BeltiDJ.-lJtili Easement.s. Ra¥!D0:t:e=sl:lall=pf:<w-ide, -
and Belton shall have, full access to any and all established easements within the Belton 
Portion for maintenance, construction, installation, repair and replacement of Belton Utility 
Easements subject only to the notice provisions of Section l(d) above. 

f. Completion and Provision of Comprehensive Traffic Study. Raymore 
shall complete a comprehensive traffic study ("Traffic Study") to include both the Raymore 
Portion and the Belton Portion, and the area immediately surrounding the same. Raymore 
agrees that it will complete the Traffic Study at its costs. Raymore may complete the 
Traffic Study at its discretion any time after the effective date of this MOU, but in any 
event within twenty-four (24) months of the occurrence of two (2) triggering events 
("Events"). The two (2) Events requiring the completion ofthe Traffic Study shall be as 
follows: (i) the full development of the property known as the Dean Farm (directly abutting 
and south of the Raymore Portion, and (ii) the opening of the newly aligned Kentucky 
Road at the signalized intersection East of the Raymore Portion and the Belton Portion of 
M0-58. Belton shall be provided with a copy of the Traffic Study by Raymore upon 
completion of the same. 

Cooperative Agreement and Memorandum of Understanding 
City of Raymore I City of Belton 

Page4 

95 



3. Miscellaneous Provision 

a. Amendment I Modification. This MOU shall not be amended, modified 
or cancelled without the written consent ofthe parties to this MOU. 

b. Notices. All notices required by this MOU shall be in writing sent by 
regular U.S. mail, postage prepaid, or delivered by courier to the following: 

RAYMORE: 

BELTON Ron Trivitt, City Manager 
506 Main Street 
Belton, Missouri 64012 

All notices are effective on the date mailed or upon receipt if delivered by a courier. Either 
party may provide the other party a change of address which change shall be effective ten 
(1 0) days after delivery. 

c. Counterparts. This MOU may be executed in counterparts, each of which 
is deemed to be an original, and all such counterparts shall constitute one and the same 
instrument. 

d. Severability. Except as specifically provided in this MOU, all of the 
provisions of this MOU shall be severable. In the event that any one or more provision of 

--thi-s-MOO--i.s-fo:und-b-y-a-Gourt of Gompetent-j:urisdiGtion-to--be-unconsti.tutional or-unla :ful., - ------- ---------·-· . 
the remaining provisions of this MOU shall be valid unless the court finds that the valid 
provisions of this MOU are so essentially and inseparably connected with and so dependent 
upon the invalid provision(s) that it cannot be presumed that the parties to this MOU could 
have included the valid provisions without the invalid provision( s ); or unless the court finds 
that the valid provisions, standing alone, are incapable of being performed in accordance 
with the intentions of the parties. 

e. Default I Enforcement I Remedies. If a party shall be in default or breach 
of any provision of this MOU, the other party may terminate this MOU, suspend its 
performance and invoke any other legal or equitable remedy after giving the other party 
thirty (30) days written notice and opportunity to correct/cure such default or breach. All 
rights and remedies granted to each party herein and any other rights and remedies which 
either party may have at law and in equity are hereby declared to be cumulative and not 
exclusive, and the fact that either party may have exercised any remedy without terminating 
this MOU shall not impair that party's rights thereafter to terminate or to exercise any other 
remedy herein granted or to which that party may be otherwise entitled. 

Cooperative Agreement and Memorandum of Understanding 
City of Raymore I City of Belton 

Page 5 

96 



f. Governing Law I Jurisdiction & Venue. This MOU shall be construed 
and governed in accordance with the law of the State of Missouri. The parties submit to 
the jurisdiction of the courts of the State of Missouri and specifically, the Circuit Court of 
Cass County, Missouri. 

g. Waiver. Waiver by either party of strict performance of any provision of 
this MOU shall not waive or prejudice the party's right to require strict performance of the 
same provision or any other provision in the future. 

h. Attorneys' Fees. If any litigation is commenced between the parties to this 
MOU concerning the terms herein, the Belton Portion, the Raymore Portion, the 
Improvements (including the maintenance, construction, repair, replacement, snow 
removal, sweeping and access to the same) this Agreement, or the rights and duties of either 
party, the prevailing party in that litigation shall be entitled, in addition to any other relief 
that may be granted in the litigation, to a reasonable sum for that party's attorney's fees, 
including attorney's fees on appeal. The amount of the fees shall be determined by the 
court in that litigation or in a separate action brought for that purpose. 

i. Entire Agreement. This MOU and the attached and incorporated Exhibits 
herein contains the entire agreement of the parties regarding the subject matter of this MOU 
and there are no other promises or conditions in any other agreements between the parties 
not specifically expressed herein. 

j. Nature of Relationship. It is expressly understood that the parties are not 
now, nor will they be, engaged in a joint venture, partnership or any other form ofbusiness 
relationship except as expressly set forth herein, and that no party shall be responsible for 
the conduct, warranties, guarantees, acts, errors, omissions, debts, obligations or 

--unde ;taking.c.oX:aR.- kind-or nattaJ - of.:th other..:.i.n pet:for.manc~f:=th-is-MQ.U.-. --· 

k. Captions I Headings I Construction. The headings of each section of this 
MOU are for reference only. Unless the context ofthis MOU clearly requires otherwise, 
all terms and words used herein, regardless of the number and gender in which used, shall 
be construed to include any other number, singular or plural, or any other gender, 
masculine, feminine or neuter, the same as if such words had been fully and properly 
written in that number or gender. 

1. Assignment. Neither Raymore nor Belton shall sell, assign, transfer, or 
otherwise convey any of their rights under this MOU without the prior and expressed 
written consent of the other party. Each party may, at its sole discretion, refuse to consent 
to any proposed sale, assignment, transfer or other conveyance. Any attempted sale, 
assignment, transfer or conveyance in violation of this paragraph shall be void and shall 
relieve the non-consenting party of any further liability under this MOU, but shall not 
relieve the violating party of any liability. If a party consents in writing to a sale, 
assignment, transfer or conveyance, unless specifically stated to the contrary in the consent, 

Cooperative Agreement and Memorandum of Understanding 
City of Raymore I City of Belton 

Page 6 

97 



it shall not release nor discharge the party receiving consent from any duty or responsibility 
set forth in this MOU. 

m. Representations. Raymore and Belton certify that they have the power and 
authority to execute and deliver this MOU and to undertake all responsibilities, obligations, 
rights and duties contemplated hereby and to perform this MOU in accordance with its 
terms. 

n. Records of Agreement. The City Clerk's office for each respective city 
shall be provided with a copy of this executed MOU. 

o. Binding Agreement. This MOU shall be binding upon, and shall inure to 
the benefit of the parties and their respective successors and permitted assigns and 
designees. 

p. Cooperation. The parties agree to cooperate to effectuate the terms of this 
MOU. The parties also agree to refrain from unnecessarily prejudicing the position, or 
hindering the ability of any party to complete their requirements, conditions and obligations 
under this MOU. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this MOU to be executed in their 
respective names as of the date and year first above written. 

CITY OF RAYMORE, MISSOURI CITY OF BELTON, MISSOURI 

By: _ _ ___________ _ By: ______ _______ _ 

Title: - - --------- -----
--- ··- -- -----

ATTEST: ATTEST: 

By: _____________ _ By: ___ __________ ___ 

Title: Title: - - ------------- ---------------

Ordinance No.: Ordinance No.: ------------ ------ -----
Approved as to Form: Approved as to Form: 

By: __________________ _ By: ____________________ ___ 

Title: _____________________ _ Title: _ _____________ __ 

Cooperative Agreement and Memorandum of Understanding 
City of Raymore I City of Belton 

Page 7 

98 



STATE OF MISSOURI ) 
) ss 

COUNTY OF CASS ) 

BE IT REMEMBERED, that on this day of , 2016, before me the 
undersigned, a Notary Public in and for said County and State aforesaid, came ______ _ 
----------------Director of Public Works for Raymore, Missouri, a 
municipal corporation duly organized and existing under and by virtue of the laws of the State of 
Missouri, and City Clerk for Raymore, Missouri who are 
personally known to me to be the same persons who executed as officials, the within instrument 
on behalf of said municipal corporation, and such persons duly acknowledge the execution of the 
same to be the act and deed of said municipal corporation. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal the day and 
year last above written. 

Notary Public 
My Commission Expires: 

STATE OF MISSOURI ) 
) ss 

COUNTY OF CASS ) 

- ---BE- ~R:EME-MBERE ~ , that on---thi day-ef- (}J-6, beft>r m the---
undersigned, a Notary Public in and for said County and State aforesaid, came Jeff Davis, Mayor 
for Belton, Missouri, a municipal corporation duly organized and existing under and by virtue of 
the laws of the State of Missouri, Patti Ledford, City Clerk for Belton, Missouri who are personally 
known to me to be the same persons who executed as officials, the within instrument on behalf of 
said municipal corporation, and such persons duly acknowledge the execution of the same to be 
the act and deed of said municipal corporation. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal the day and 
year last above written. 

My Commission Expires: 
Notary Public 

Cooperative Agreement and Memorandum of Understanding 
City of Raymore I City ofBelton 

Page 8 

99 



EXHIBIT "A" 
Aerial Photo With General Depiction of Affected M0-58 

Cooperative Agreement and Memorandum ofUnderstanding 
City ofRaymorcJ~~ of Belton 

Jlogv~ .. 1 
100 



EXWBIT ''B" 
Visual Depiction of Belton Portion 

-- -----;1&-

Cooperative Agreement and Memorandum ofUnderstanding 
City ofRaymore I City of Belton 

PageV(o 

101 

II 



EXHffiiT "C" 
Visual Depiction of Raymore Portion 

-------.-.~-

Cooperative Agreement and Memorandum ofUndemtanding 
City ofRay~~llfBelton 

- i/1 

102 

t' 

~I 

o~ 'I' 1ll~h~JJ . l IJUIJ 

-~ ., 'Ill! I -- I' J t I 
I • 
1 I 



EXHIBIT "D" 
Visual Depiction ofMODoT Area 

-_.,..... .... 
~'='~~ 

,.,41. 
- :.·-

~ 
f 

I i : 
l ' • J ' 
: ~ 
~ '!.. " ··~ 

I f " b I ;I 
ff. ' L.~ 

' .! 
j 1

·- ·f~ 

. ' i 
I ' r ! 
,. 1., . ' . I .. 1 

' ~ .. 
! 

I 
! I 

h~ 
.l?+r.. 
·l· I -- .,...:11""' 

t
'· li , ______ ..,_ 

: l!i 
f fl 

Cooperative Agreement and Memorandum ofUnderstanding 
City of Raymore I City of Belton 

Pag~ 
12..... 

103 

J . i .. l, 
_,. 



SECTION VIII 
L 

104 



BILL NO. 2016-129 ORDINANCE NO. 2016-

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BELTON, MISSOURI AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING A 
PROPOSAL WITH EVOQUA WATER TECHNOLOGIES CORP. FOR REMOTE MONITORING 

AND ALARM SYSTEM SERVICES AT THEW ASTEW ATER TREATMENT FACILITY. 

WHEREAS, on March 27, 2012 Ordinance No. 2012-3795 was passed and it approved the 

purchase and installation of the SCADA alarm notification system for the Wastewater Treatment Facility. 
As part of the purchase of the monitoring system, the City received services from Siemens on an annual 

basis; and 

WHEREAS, Evoqua Water Technologies Corp. has acquired the branch of Siemens which was 
providing those services and Evoqua Water Technologies Corp. is requesting to update their agreement as 

provided in Exhibit A. The services are provided all year long but the proposal needs to be renewed and 
paid on an annual basis. The payment is $360 per year and the proposal is set up to allow for automatic 

renewal; and 

WHEREAS, quick and efficient response to emergencies at the Wastewater Treatment Facility 
are necessary and critical to the everyday operations of the facility. The system provides both a 
monitoring and notification system to staff; and 

WHEREAS, City Council believes the Service Proposal and Remote Monitoring Services Terms 
and Conditions, herein attached and incorporated to this ordinance as Exhibit "A", with Evoqua Water 
Technologies Corp. for the monitoring and alarm system at the wastewater treatment facility is in the best 

interest of the city waste water system and will continue to provide vital notifications to the facility staff. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BELTON, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1. That the Service Proposal and Remote Monitoring Services Terms and 
Conditions, herein attached and incorporated to this ordinance as Exhibit "A", for the 
monitoring and alarm system at the wastewater treatment facility is hereby approved for 

purposes described above. 

SECTION 2. This ordinance shall take effect and be in full force from and after its passage and 

approval. 

SECTION 3. That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are 
hereby repealed. 

READ FOR THE FIRST TIME: December 13, 2016 

READ FOR THE SECOND TIME AND PASSED: 

Mayor Jeff Davis 

{10480 I 62693; 559285. } 1lls 



Approved this __ day of ___ ___J 2016. 

ATTEST: 

Patricia Ledford, City Clerk 
City of Belton, Missouri 

STATE OF MISSOURI ) 
CITY OF BELTON ) SS 
COUNTY OF CASS ) 

Mayor Jeff Davis 

I, Patricia A. Ledford, City Clerk, do hereby certify that I have been duly appointed City Clerk of the City 
of Belton and that the foregoing ordinance was regularly introduced for first reading at a meeting of the 
City Council held on the 13th day of December, 2016, and thereafter adopted as Ordinance No. 2016-
--of the City of Belton, Missouri, at a regular meeting of the City Council held on the __ day of 
______ :, 2016, after the second reading thereof by the following vote, to-wit: 

AYES: COUNCILMEN: 

NOES: COUNCILMEN: 

ABSENT: COUNCILMEN: 

{10480 I 62693; 559285. } 

Patricia A. Ledford, City Clerk 
of the City of Belton, Missouri 



CITY OF BEL TON • CITY COUNCIL INFORMATION FORM 
PUBliC WORKS 

AGENDA DATE: 12/13/16 
COUNCIL: [8J Regular Meeting 

DIVISION: Public Works/ Water Services 
D Work Session D Special Session 

[8J Ordinance [ ] Resolution [ ] Consent Item Change Order Motion 
[ ] Agreement D Discussion D FYI/Update Presentation Both Readings 

ISSUE/RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval of the proposal with Evoqua Water Technologies Corp. for the monitoring 
and alarm system at the Wastewater Treatment Facility. 

PROPOSED CITY COUNCIL MOTION : 
At the December 13, 2016 City Council Regular Session, authorize and approve the first reading of an 
ordinance authorizing and approving the proposal with Evoqua Water Technologies Corp. for the 
monitoring and alarm system at the Wastewater Treatment Facility. 

BACKGROUND: 
At the March 27, 2012 Regular City Council Meeting, Ordinance No. 2012-3795 was passed and it 
approved the purchase and installation of the SCADA alarm notification system for the Wastewater 
Treatment Facility. As part of the purchase of the monitoring system, the City received services from 
Siemens on an annual basis. Earlier this year, Evoqua Water Technologies Corp. acquired that branch of 
Siemens and Evoqua Water Technologies Corp. is requesting to update their agreement. The services are 
provided all year long but the proposal needs to be renewed and paid on an annual basis. The payment is 
$360 per year and the proposal is set up to allow for automatic renewal. 

Quick and efficient response to emergencies at the Wastewater Treatment Facility are necessary and 
---cnticalt<rthe-everyday-operati-ons-~e-faciti~'Fb:e-system-provi:aes- oth-a-monitoring-and-n:otifi:cation-----= 

system to staff. 

IMP ACT/ANALYSIS: 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 

Contractor: Evoqua Water Technologies 
Amount of Request/Contract: $ 360 
Amount Budgeted: $ 79,100 
Funding Source: 660-0000-400-3020 Contractual 
Funds Remaining: $ 47,180.00 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION, ACTION, AND DATE: 
At the December 13, 2016 City Council Regular Session, authorize and approve the first reading of an 
ordinance authorizing and approving the proposal with Evoqua Water Technologies Corp. for the 
monitoring and alarm system at the Wastewater Treatment Facility. 

LIST OF REFERENCE DOCUlVIENTS ATTACHED: 
Ordinance 
Evoqua Alarm System Proposal and Terms and Conditions 

!:\Agenda Items\20 16\121316\Evoqua Alann Service\1. Evoqlf.~emote Alarm Monitoring Agreement Council Info Sheet 
RS 12.13.16.doc 



Proposal For: Belton Missouri - Belton WWTP 

City of Belton 
506 Main Street 
Belton, MO 64012 
Attn: Rex Olinger 

Phone: 816-892-1288 

ITEM PRICING 

EXHIBIT A 

Suzanne Alberti 

Quote Number: 2016-158596 

AccountiD:0001058809 

Evoqua Watei Technologies LLC 

2607 N. Grandview Blvd., Suite 130 

Waukesha, WI 53188 

Phone: 262-521-8442 

Email: suzanne.alberti@evoqua.com 

$360.00 

Subtotal: $360.00 

Total Price: $360.00 

Please provide tax exempt certificate with purchase order. 

I Belton wwrP I FLEX 5oo KB 189014104254358061672 I 7/1/201sl 

9/6/2016 

108 



Payment Terms and Delivery 

PO Tenns 

Quote Number: 2016-158596 

AccountiD: 0001058809 

The terms and conditions of this quotation are to be in accordance with the EWT Tenns and Conditions Final for Belton, 

MO dated 1217/2016. 

Terms: 

• This quote is valid until 9/23/2016 

• Payment terms are N30- Net 30 days with proper credit, and are subject to the attached Evoqua Water Technologies 

LLC Terms and Conditions 

• Pricing listed does not include applicable sales tax. 

• New customers are pre-approved to $1,000. All others will need to fill out a credit application and submit a hardcopy 

PO (or a "No PO Form"). 

• We require hard documentation of your ordering for Evoqua to process your order. For your convenience, we can 

start _processing your order be signing and returning: 

Email to: Suzanne.alberti@evogua.com 

Suzanne Alberti 

2607 N. Grandview Blvd., Suite 130 

Waukesha, VVI 53186 

9/6/2016 
109 



Evoqua Water Technologies Corp. Remote Monitoling Services Terms and Conditions dated 1217/2016 

These terms and conditions govern the purchase of Remote Monitoring Services staled on Evoqua offer. such offer or acceptance Is conditioned 
on Purchaser's assent to these terms. Each offer is valid for 60 days from the date of the offer unless extended, modified or withdrawn in writing 
by Evoqua. The return of a purchase order, If any, and/or the completed, executed offer to Evoqua during such validity period will be sufficient to 
form an Agreement and acceptance of the Evoqua offer and these terms and conditions. 

1. Definitions 
Whenever used in this document with initial capitalization, the following definitions shall be applicable: 

A. "Agreement" or "Contract" shall mean the Evoqua Form, the terms and conditions stated herein, Purchaser's purchase order, if any, (excluding 
any preprinted terms and condiUons on said purchase order and In any attachment or attachments to said purchase order) or other document 
evidencing acceptance of the Evoqua offer as set forth In the Form: or an Integrated agreement signed by Evoqua and Purchaser; for 
Monitoring Services. 

B. "Data" shall mean any process information, alarms, notifications, reports, and user commands, organized, transmitted and/or generated by the 
Purchaser's use of the monitoring service. 

C. "Device" shall mean the equipment used by the Purchaser to send/receive wireless transmissions on the Network, including any wireless 
modem, SIM (Subscriber Identity Module) Card, and any accessories or related equipment. 

D "Monitoring Services" shall mean the communications, data storage, notifications and Web based user interface provided by Evoqua and their 
Suppliers as further described in Evoquas Form. 

E. "Network" shall mean those Integrated mobile switching facilities, data routers, servers, cell sites, and any other related facilities or equipment 
used to provide Monitoring Services. 

F. "Professional Services" shall mean (I) technical information provided by Evoqua Including data interpretation and reports, (ii) advice and 
consultation given to Purchaser's personnel at Purchaser's facility or a an Evoqua facility by a Evoqua engineer or technician or sales person. 

G. "Purchaser" shall mean the entity purchasing Monitoring Services, as well as any other owners of the facility where the Monitoring Services are to 
be provided. 

H "Remote Monitoring Services Proposal & Information Form" (hereinafter the "Form• or "Offer'1 shall mean the I Evoqua Form for execution by 
Purchaser detailing the services purchased, the price and the effective date of the agreement 

I. "Evoqua" shall mean Evoqua Water Technologies Corp . or an affiUated company and their subsidiaries, successors and assigns. 

J. "Site" shall mean each of the Purchaser's facilities to be monitored. 

K. "Supplier" shall mean any subcontractor or supplier of any tier who supplies goods, facilities, and services to Evoqua In connection with the 
---obllgalionS'o Evoqua-undeMhe-Agreement~;-. ----------------------·--------------

L. 'Work" shall mean the Monitoring Services supplied by Evoqua under the Agreement. 

2. Scope 

Evoqua will furnish Monitoring Services as specified in the Form and pursuant to the Agreement. Equipment is sold under separate agreement and 
terms. 

3. Price 

The Evoqua offer and prices are ·firm for Monitoring Services which are scheduled to be performed for the year or years originally stated In the offer. 
The period of service begins upon the customer's request for activation of the Individual site. At the conclusion of the original agreement period of 
service, the Agreement shall renew automatically for subsequent additional (1) one year periods of service, unless canceled by written notice to 
Evoqua at least (60) sixty days prior to the explraUon of the then current period of service. At any time prior to renewal, Evoqua may upon 30 days 
written notice, establish new prices for Monitoring Services. 

4. Tenns of Payment 

A. Evoqua shall at the time of activation and subsequent renewals, invoice Purchaser for the full value of the services purchased as stated in the 
Agreement. 

B. Payments are due within forty-five (45) days from the date of the invoice. 

C. Any past due amounts shall, without prejudice to the right of t::.voqua to payment when due, bear Interest at a one and one-half per cent per 
month, payable each month or portion thereof that payment Is delayed. If payments are not made when due, then Evoqua may, upon fifteen 
(15) days written notice and at its option, suspend all further work hereunder. Resumption of work thereafter is contingent upon correction of the 
payments deficiency. The schedule for the resumed work will be established by Evoqua based on Its then current work load and the availability 
of other resources. All Evoqua expenses associated with any such suspension and resumption of services shall be for the account of 
Purchaser. 

D. If there exists a good faith dispute over lhe amounts to be paid and provided that Purchaser has notified Evoqua In writing that such dispute 
exists, then Purchaser shall pay the undisputed amount. Thereafter, the disputed portion may be held In abeyance until resolution of the matter 
with that portion, together with the interest charge specified above, due thirty (30) days after said resolution. 

110 
EWT Remote Monitoring Terms & Conditions 



5. Purchasers Representations 

A. Purchaser is responsible for the content of any and all data transmitted over the network. 

B. Purchaser understands that Purchaser, Evoqua or any other third party authorized and directed by the Purchaser may, through the website 
execute changes to Purchasers system configuration. The Purchaser shall be-solely responsible for changes executed by the Purchaser, Evoqua or 
any other third party. Evoqua shall not be responsible for or have any direct or lndlrectliablllty for any Incorrect or incomplete system configurallon, 
nor shall Evoqua be responsible for any direct or Indirect consequences resulting from the execution of such changes. 

C. Purchaser understands that Purchas e1 Evoqua or any other third party authorized and directed by Purchaser may, through the website execute 
a manual override to the operation or equipment or execute parameter changes affecting the operation of equipment on the Purchaser's site. The 
Purchaser shall be solely responsible for the execution of manual overrides or equipment parameter changes executed by Purchaser, Evoqua or 
third parlles authorized and directed by purchaser. Evoqua shall have no direct or lntlirect liabllny for the consequences of any manual override or 
equipment parameter changes executed by the city. 

D. Ownership of Numbers. Purchaser acknowledges that subject to FCC number portability rules, Purchaser shall not have or acquire any property 
right in any specific Subscrtber Identity Module (SIM) number provide by Evoqua 

E. Purchaser acknowledges that Evoqua will not with its own employees, respond to or take action related to those events for which Evoqua is 
providing monitoring and notifications Services. 

F. Purchaser understands they are responsible for ongoing, testing, pert odic maintenance, calibration and functionality of the equipment to be 
monitored, and should immediately notify Evoqua if any failures are identified. Evoqua shall use all reasonable efforts to assist the Purchaser in 
identification of any perceived failures, but in no case is Evoqua obligated to visit the Purchasers site to troubleshoot or provide remedy. 

G. Purchaser acknowledges that Evoqua reserves the rtght to suspend Monitoring Services on any Site that generates excessive data or false 
messages In any thirty day period. Evoqua may take the monitoring of a specific site out of service unlll Evoq~a and the Purchaser have made 
alternate arrangements or the Purchaser has corrected the cause of the false and excessive messages. In such event Evoqua shall make 
reasonable efforts to notify Purchaser. Evoqua shall not be responsible and shall have no direct or indirect liability for any false, incomplete or 
Incorrect messages. · 

H.N/A 

I. Purchaser ft.rther understands and agrees that Evoqua Monitoring Services are intended only to monitor and provide noHce to Purchaser of 
conditions relating to Purchaser's non-critical mechanical .t~d electrical equipment and are not intended to be used as a primary life-safety, security, 
fire detection and alarm system. 

J. N/A 

--------~b~l~ermlttedOu~ge~----------------------~==~~~----------------~~~=~------~--~~~~========~ 

Evoqua or its Supplier is not responsible for the following outages (hereinafter, the "Permitted Outages') 

A. Periods of scheduled maintenance (maintenance that may be performed between 10:00 p.m. and 12:00 a.m. Central Time} and emergency 
unscheduled maintenance (and Evoq.ua Supplier will provide to I Evo_qua prior written notice of the scheduled maintenance at least five (5) business 
days prior to such scheduled maintenance and emergency unscheduled maintenance as soon as is reasonably practicable under the 
circumstances); 

B. Periods the Monitortng Service is not available for the Purchaser's use due to (i) the inoperability of the Purchaser's Equipment. Purchaser's 
network connectivity, or (ii) the negligent actions or omission, willful misconduct of Purchaser, lts employees, consultants, or third party agents acting 
on behalf of the Purchaser; 

C. Periods the Monitoring Service is not available for Purchaser's use due to Network coverage limitations and outages and coverage gaps or other 
Monitoring Service interruptions attributable to other Supplier's or carriers and its network including scheduled Maintenance. 

D. Periods the Monitoring Service In not available for the Purchaser's use as a result of suspension of the Monitoring Services as a result of a breach 
of this Agreement by Purchaser, including non-payment of amounts owed or unlawful or improper use of the Monitoring Services. 

E. Periods the Monitoring Service is not available for Purchaser's use as a result of (i) widespread, common failure or failures of Devices that affects 
the Monitoring Service; or (il) hostile network attacks by any third party, including a customer of the Purchaser, that are directly (in whole or in part 
attributable to Device vulnerabilities. 

EWT Remote Monitoring Terms & Conditions 

111 



7. Warranties and Disclaimer 

Services Warranty 

THE MONITORING SERVICES PROVIDED UNDER THIS AGREEMENT ARE PROVIDED "AS IS" AND "AS AVAILABLE" ANDEvoqua 
DOES NOT MAKE ANY REPRESENTATION OR WARRANTY OF ANY KIND, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, 
ANY IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE OR NON-INFRINGEMENT. Evoqua 
MAKES NO REPRESENTATIONS OR WARRANTIES THAT THE MONITORING SERVICES ARE FREE OF RIGHTFUL CLAIMS OF ANY 
THIRD PARTY FOR INFRINGEMENT OF PROPRIETARY RIGHTS. THE ENTIRE RISK ASSOCIATED WITH THE USE OF THE MONITORING 
SERVICES SHALL BE BORNE SOLELY BY PURCHASER. 

Evoqua MAKES NO WARRANTY THAT THE MONITORING SERVICES WILL BE COMPLETELY SECURE, ERROR FREE, WITHOUT 
INTERRUPTIONS OR MEET PURCHASER'S REQUIREMENTS. 

Evoqua DOES NOT REPRESENT THE MONITORING SERVICES AS SUITABLE FOR AUTOMATED CONTROL OF ANY EXTERNAL 
EQUIPMENT. USE OF THE MONITORING SERVICES FOR THIS PURPOSE IS SOLELY AT PURCHASERS OWN RISK AND IS NOT 
RECOMMENDED BY Ev.cqua__ ... 

THE MONITORING SERVICES MAY BE USED TO MANUALLY EXECUTE CHANGES TO THE OPERATION OF EXTERNAL EQUIPMENT AT 
THE PURCHASER' SITE. EVOQUA STRONGLY RECOMENDS THAT PURCHASER MAKE ALTERNATE ELECTRICAL OR MECHANICAL 
PROVISIONS AT THE EQUIPMENT SITE THAT WILL MITIGATE, OR REDUCE THE RISK ASSOCIATED WITH THE MONITORING 
SYSTEM'S FAILURE TO EXECUTE SUCH CHANGES. E'LQQIJ.~.SHALL HAVE NO LIABILITY FOR A FAILURE OF EXTERNAL EQUIPMENT 
FOR ANY REASON WHATSOEVER UNDER ANY CIRCUMSTANCES WHATSOEVER. 

THE WARRANTIES PROVIDED BYEVOQUA AS SET FORTH IN THIS ARTICLE 7 ARE EXCLUSIVE AND ARE IN LIEU OF ALL OTHER 
WARRANTIES WHETHER STATUTORY, EXPRESS, OR IMPLIED (INCLUDING ALL WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS 
FORA PARTICULAR PURPOSE, AND ALLWARRANTIESARISING FROM COURSE OF DEALING OR USAGE OF TRADE). 

8. N/A 

9. N/A 

10. Force Majeure 
A. Evoqua will not be liable for failure to perform any obligation or delay In performance resulting from or contributed to by any cause beyond the 

reasonable control of Evoqua or Its Suppliers or from any act of God; act of civil or military authority; act of war whether declared or undeclared; 
act (including delay, failure to act, or priority) of any governmental authority or Purchaser; act of terrorism; civil disturbance; insurrection or riot; 
sabotage; fire; inclement weather conditions; earthquake; flood; strike; work stoppage or other labor difficulty; major equipment breakdown; or 

------f'allure-ordelay·beyond·Jts-reasunable·control:-. ----------------------- ------------

B. In the event of a delay In performance excusable under this Article 10 - Force Majeure, the date of performance of the Monitoring Services will be 
extended by a period of time reasonably necessary to overcome the effect of such delay. 

11. Termination 
Purchaser may, upon sixty (60) days prior written notice to Evoqua a1, terminate the . . _ 
Monitoring Services or any remaining portion thereof under the Agreement. Termination charges wlll Include a portion of the purchase price 
reflecting the amount of work performed at the date of termination. These charges will also include U1e expenses associated with the termination, 
Including, but not limited to, any additional expense incurred by reason of termination or cancellation of agreements between Evoqua and Its 
Suppliers, and any applicable cost allocated lh contemplation of pertormalice. Evoqua will make every reasonable effort to minimize such 
termination charges. All termination charges shall be due and payable thirty (30) days from the date of the Evoqua invoice. Evoqua shall have the 
right to terminate the Agreement immediately in the event of a material breach of the Agreement by the Purchaser. 

12. Suspension 
Purchaser may, upon sixty (60) days prior written notice to Evoqua and payment of reasonable and proper suspension and reactivation charges, 
suspend· the scheduled Monitoring Services or portions thereof under the Agreement for a defined period of service. Suspension charges will include 
any reactivation charges at the time services are resumed. All suspension charges shall be due and payable thirty (30) days from the date of the 
Evoqua Invoice. Should the suspension exceed a period of six (6) months, at the option of Evoqua, the Agreement or any portions thereof may be 
deemed to have been terminated by Purchaser. Such termination shall be subject to charges as stated in term 11 herein these terms. 

13. Intellectual Property 
A Evoqua will, at its own expense, defend or at Its option settle any suit or proceeding brought against Purchaser so far as based on an allegation 

that any Services, constitutes an Infringement of any United States patent, copyright or misappropriation of a third party's trade secret, if Evoqua 
is nolllied promptly In writing and given authority, information, and assistance In a timely manner for.the defense of said suit or proceeding. 
Evoqua will pay the damages and costs awarded in any suit or proceeding so defended. Evoqua will not be responsible for any settlement of 
such suit or proceeding made without its prior written consent. In cas·e the Services, or any part thereof, as a result of any suit or proceeding so 
defended is held to constitute infringement of any United States patent, copyright or misappropriation of a third party's trade secret, or its use by 

112 



Purchaser is enjoined, Evoqua will, at its option and its own expense, either: (a) procure for Purchaser the right to continue using the Services;; 
or (b) modify it so it becomes non-infringing. 

B. Evoqua will have no duty or obligation to Purchaser under this Article 13- Intellectual Properly to the extent that the Services are (a) supplied 
according to Purchaser's design or instructions wherein compliance therewith has caused Evoqua to deviate from its normal course of 
performance, (b) modified by Purchaser or its contractors after activation by Evoqua, or (c) combined by Purchaser or Us contractors with 
services not furnished hereunder. In addition, if by reason of such design, instruction, modification or combination, a sun, claim or proceeding is 
brought against Evoqua, Purchaser shall protect Evoqua in the same manner and to the same extent that Evoqua has agreed to protect 
Purchaser under the provisions of Paragraph A above. 

C. THIS ARTICLE IS AN EXCLUSIVE STATEMENT OF ALL THE DUTIES OF EVOQUA RELATING TO PATENTS, COPYRIGHTS OR TRADE 
SECRETS AND DIRECT OR CONTRIBUTORY INFRINGEMENT THEREOF AND OF ALL THE REMEDIES OF PURCHASER RELATING TO 
ANY CLAIMS, SUiTS, OR PROCEEDINGS iNVOLVING PATENTS, COPYRIGHTS OR TRADE SECRETS. Compliance with this Article 13-
Intellectual Property as provided herein shall constitute fulfillment of all liabilities of the parties under the Agreement with respect to patents, 
copyrights or trade secrets. 

14. Proprietary Information 
A. Evoqua may have a proprietary interest in information that may be furnished pursuant to the Agreement. Purchaser will keep In confidence and 

will not disclose any such Information which is specifically designated as being proprietary to Evoqua, other than to Purchaser's employees, 
without the prior written permission of Evoqua or use any such information for other than the purpose for which II is supplied. The provisions of 
this paragraph shall not apply to information, notwithstanding any confidential designation thereof, which is known to Purchaser without any 
restriction as to disclosure or use at the time it is furnished, which is or becomes generally available to the public without breach of any 
agreement, or which is received from a third party, including Purchaser's subsidiaries or affiliates, without limitation or restriction on said third 
party or Purchaser at the time of disclosure. 

B. Evoqua also has a proprietary Interest In (l) the Form, (II) the Agreement and (iii) the processes and procedures used by its personnel in 
performance of the Agreement. Accordingly, neither the Form, the Agreement or, such processes and procedures will be disclosed or viewed in 
whole or in part to third parties without the prior written permission of Evoqua. 

C.N/A 

D. When required by appropriate governmental authority, including governmental regulations, applicable law or regulation, by order of a court of 
competent jurisdiction or lawful subpoena (hereinafter collec!lvely referred to as "Governmental Authority'), Purchaser may disclose such 
proprietary information to such Governmental Authority; provided, however, that prior to making any such disclosure, Purchaser will: (a) provide 
Evoqua with timely advance written notice of the proprietary Information requested by such Governmental Authority and Purchaser's intent to so 
disclose; (b) minimize the amount of proprietary Information to be provided consonant with the Interests of Evoqua and Its Suppliers and the 
requirements of the Governmental Authority involved; and (c) make every reasonable effort (which shall include participation by Evoqua in 
discussions with the Governmental Authority involved) to secure confidential treatment and minimization of the proprietary information to be 
provided. In the event that efforts to secure confidential treatment are unsuccessful, Evoqua shall have the prior right to revise such Information to 
minimize the disclosure of such information in a manner consonant with its interests and the requirements of the Governmental Authority 
involved. 

E. All of the above is subject to MO sunshine laws. 

15. Ownersh p of Data 
All DATA generated pursuant to this Remote Monitoring Services Agreement Shall be the sole property of Evoqua and Evoqua shall have all rights 
and tille to such Data. Evoqua may use such Data for any purpose or transfer to sell such Data; provided, Evoqua will not transFer to sell 
Purchaser specific Data unless specifically agreed to by the Purchaser. Anything proprietary or know-how will remain Evoqua properly. 

16. Limitation of Liability 
PURCHASER EXPRESSLY AGREES THAT NEITHER EVOQUA NOR ITS SUPPLIERS WILL UNDER ANY CIRCUMSTANCES BE LIABLE 
UNDER ANY THEORY OF RECOVERY, WHETHER BASED IN CONTRACT, IN TORT (INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE AND STRICT LIABILITY), 
UNDER WARRANTY, OR OTHERWISE, FOR: ANY INDIRECT, SPECIAL, INCIDENTAL OR CONSEQUENTIAL LOSS OR DAMAGE OR 
PUNITIVE DAMAGES WHATSOEVER; DAMAGE TO OR LOSS OF PROPERTY OR EQUIPMENT; LOSS OF PROFITS OR REVENUE; 
LOSS OF USE OF EQUIPMENT, LOSS OF DATA; INCREASED COSTS OF ANY KIND. 

PURCHASER EXPRESSLY AGREES THAT THE REMEDIES PROVIDED IT HEREIN ARE EXCLUSIVE AND THAT UNDER NO 
CIRCUMSTANCES SHALL THE TOTAL AGGREGATE LIABILITY OF EVOQUA UNDER ANY THEORY OF RECOVERY, WHETHER BASED 
IN CONTRACT, IN TORT (INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE AND STRICT LIABILITY), UNDER WARRANTY, OR OTHERWISE, EXCEED THE 
TOTAL PRICE PAID TO EVOQUA UNDER THIS AGREEMENT. 
THE PROVISIONS OF THIS ARTICLE SHALL PREVAIL OVER ANY CONFLICTING OR INCONSISTENT PROVISIONS SET FORTH ELSEWHERE 
IN THIS AGREEMENT. 

EWT Remote Monitoring Terms & Conditions 

113 



0 9VOQUA 
WATE~ TECHNOLOGIES 

17. Compliance with Laws 

Quote Number: 2016-156091 

Account 10:0001078500 

In the performance of work under the Agreement, Evoqua and its Suppliers shall comply with all applicable laws and regulations governing the 
performance of the Work. The price for such work Is based on compliance by Evoqua wllh these laws and requirements as they are In effect on the 
date of the offer submitted by Evoqua (or the effective date of the Agreement if no offer is provided). 

18. Export Law Compliance 
Purchaser acknowledges that Evoqua is required to comply with applicable export laws and regulations relating to the sale, exportation, transfer, 
assignment, disposal and usage of the Monitoring Services, or one or more of them, provided under the Contract. including any export license 

requirements. Purchaser agrees that such Monitoring Services, or one or more of them, shall not at any time directly or indirectly be used, exported, 
sold, transferred, assigned in a manner which will result in non·compllance with such applicable export laws and regulations. It shall be a condition of 
the conUnulng performance by Evoqua of its obligations hereunder that compliance with such export laws and regulations be maintained at all 
times. 

19. Changes 
Purchaser may request changes within the scope of the Agreement and, if accepted by Evoqua, the price, performance, schedule and other 
pertinent provisions of the Agreement will be adjusted by mutual agreement of the parties prior to implementation of the change. 

Expenses incurred by Evoqua due to Q) delays, other than delays which are deemed to be within the reasonable control of Evoqua, and Oi) 
changes in applicable laws and requirements after the date of the offer submitted by Evoqua, as applicable, will be treated as changes to the scope of 
work and the Agreement will be adjusted as set forth in the previous paragraph. 

20. Miscellaneous Provisions 

A. Waivers: The failure of either party to enforce at any time any of the provisions of the Agreement or to require at any time performance by the 
other party of any of such provisions, shall in no way be construed to be a waiver of such provision, nor in any way to affect the validity of the 
Agreement or any parts thereof, or the right of e~her party thereafter to enforce each and every provision. 

B. Modification: No waiver, modification, or amendment of any of the provisioi)S of the Agreement shall be binding unless it is in writing and signed by 
duly authorized representatives of both parties. 

C. Headings: The headings used in the Agreement are not to be construed as modifying, limiting or expanding in any way the scope or extent of the 
provisions in the Agreement. 

D. Assignment: Neither oartv can ass ian without the other oartv's consent which shall not be unreasonablv withheld. 
Any purported assignment without such prior written consent shall be null and void. 

E. Govemin Law: The A reement will be construed and inter reted in accordance with the laws of the State of Missouri 

F. Integration: The Agreement contains the entire agreement and understanding between the parties as to the subject matter of the Agreement, and 
merges and supersedes all prior agreements, commitments, representations, writings, and discussions between them. Neither of the parties will 
be bound by any prior obligations, conditions, warranties, or representations with respect to the subject matter of the Agreement. 

G. Survival: The provisions entitled "Intellectual Property," "Proprietary Information," Ownership of Data," "Limitation of Liability," shall survive 
termination, expiration or cancellation of the Agreement. 

Page 6 8/19/2016 
114 



SECTION VIII 
M 

115 

.:. 



BILL NO. 2016-130 ORDINANCE NO. 2016-

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING THE PETITION TO AMEND THE FIRST AMENDED 
PETITION TO ESTABLISH THE GRAND HILL COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
GENERALLY LOCATED EAST OF THE SOUTH OUTER ROAD OF INTERSTATE 49 
ALONG GRAND STREET AND HILL STREET, ALL IN THE CITY OF BELTON, 
MISSOURI; AUTHORIZING COLLECTION OF SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS ON 
PROPERTIES LOCATED IN THE DISTRICT; AND DIRECTING THE CITY CLERK TO 
REPORT THE AMENDMENT AND AUTHORIZATION TO ASSESS A SPECIAL 
ASSESSMENT TO THE MISSOURI DEPARTMENT OF ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT. 

WHEREAS, on November 7, 2016, a Petition to Amend the First Amended Petition to 
Establish the Grand Hill Community Improvement District and to Authorize Special Assessments 
(the "Petition"), attached and incorporated in this Ordinance as Exhibit "A", was filed by more 
than 50% per capita of the owners of the District Land and District Land owners collectively 
owning more than fifty percent (50%) by assessed value of the District Land; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to R.S.Mo. § 67.1421.3, the City Clerk timely reviewed the Petition 
and, upon consultation with the City's attorney, determined that the Petition substantially complies 
with the requirements ofR.S.Mo. § 67.1421.2; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to and in accordance with R.S.Mo. § 67.1431, notice of a December 
13, 2016 public hearing to consider amendment of the District and special assessment was given 
as follows: 

1) the first and second publication notice of the public hearing was given by 
publication in a newspaper of general circulation within the City once a week 
for two consecutive weeks prior to the week of the public hearing, on December 

--------------------~,2016andirece~m~h~e~r~9~,~2.~~---------------------------------------
2) the notice of the public hearing was given not less than fifteen days prior to the 

public hearing on December 13, 20 16; by sending the notice via certified United 
States mail with a return receipt attached to the address of record of each owner 
of record of real property within the boundaries of the proposed District; and 

WHEREAS, on December 13, 2016, the City Council held a public hearing at which parties 
in interest, interested persons and citizens were afforded an opportunity to be heard; and 

WHEREAS, after closing said hearing on December 13, 2016, after two readings at 
separate meetings and due deliberation, the City Council finds that approving the Petition, 
amending the District and authorizing special assessments and would encourage and stimulate 
growth and development in the District Area and further the objectives of the Act by upgrading 
the sanitary sewer collection system. 

116 



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF BELTON, 
MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. That the Petition to Amend the First Amended Petition to Establish Grand 
Hill Community Improvement District and to Authorize Special Assessments, a copy of which is 
attached to this Ordinance as Exhibit "A", is hereby approved in its entirety. 

Section 2. That the District is hereby amended for the purposes set forth in the Petition, 
that the District shall have all the powers and authority authorized by the Petition to Amend the 
First Amended Petition to Establish Grand Hill Community Improvement District and to Authorize 
Special Assessments, the Act, and by law, and shall continue to exist and function for the term 
described in the Amended Petition following the effective date of this Ordinance. 

Section 3. That the District shall annually submit its proposed budget, report and 
copies of written resolutions passed by the District's board to the City pursuant to R.S.Mo. § 
67.1471. 

Section 4. That upon the effective date of this Ordinance, the City Clerk is hereby 
directed to report the amendment and special assessment authorization of the District to the 
Missouri Department of Economic Development pursuant to R.S.Mo. § 67.1421.6,- by sending a 
copy of this Ordinance to said Department. 

Section 5. All terms used in this Ordinance not otherwise defined herein shall be 
construed as defined in the Act. 

Section 6. That if any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion of this 
Ordinance is for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, 
such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct and independent provision and such holding shall 

. not affecUhe-validity . .ofthe_remaining _portio.ns...thereof. 

Section 7. That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this Ordinance 
are hereby repealed. 

Section 8. That this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after the date 
of its passage and approval. 

PUBLIC HEARING: December 13,2016 

FIRST READING: December 13, 2016 

READ FOR THE SECOND TIME AND PASSED: 

Mayor Jeff Davis 

Approved this __ day of __ , 2016. 

117 



Approved as to form and legality 

City Attorney 

ATTEST: 

Patricia Ledford, City Clerk 
City of Belton, Missouri 

STATE OF MISSOURI ) 
CITY OF BEL TON ) SS 
COUNTY OF CASS ) 

Mayor Jeff Davis 

I, Patricia A. Ledford, City Clerk, do hereby certify that I have been duly appointed City Clerk of 
the City of Belton and that the foregoing ordinance was regularly introduced for first reading at a 
meeting of the City Council held on the 13th day of December, 2016, and thereafter adopted as 
Ordinance No. 2016- of the City of Belton, Missouri, at a regular meeting ofthe City Council 
held on the __ day of 2016, after the second reading thereof by the following 
vote, to-wit: 

----------~y~s'~. ----eoUNe~MEM·~. ----------------------------------------------

NOES: COUNCILMEN: 

ABSENT: COUNCILMEN: 

118 

Patricia A. Ledford, City Clerk 
of the City of Belton, Missouri 



EXHIBIT 

PETITION TO AMEND THE FIRST AMENDED PETITION TO ESTABLISH 

GRAND HILL COMMUNITY IMPROVE:MENT DISTRICT 

AND TO AUTHORIZE SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS 

BELTON, CASS COUNTY, MISSOURI 

August12th,2016 

119 
{32724 I 67326; 713165.3 } 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

I. PETITIONERS ........................................................ ................................... ... ....... ... .... ........ 1 

II. OVERVIEW AND DESCRIPTION OF THE GRAND HILL COMMUNITY 
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT PROJECT .................................................. .... ..................... 1 

III. DESCRIPTION OF THE DISTRICT ........................................................................ .. ....... .2 

A. Legal Description ........................ ............... .................................. .................. ...... .... 2 

B. Boundary Map ............ .. ............................................. .. ............................................ 2 

C. Name ofDistrict .................... .......... .... .... ............................ .. ............... ... ................. 2 

D. Notice to Petitioners ................................... ..... ...... .......... ........ ..................... ......... ... 2 

N. FIVE-YEAR PLAN ................ .. ............. ..... .. ...... ... .............. .... .................. ........... ........... .... 2 

A. Purposes of the District ..................... ........................ .. ... ........... ........ ........... ... ......... 2 

B. Improveiilents and Services .......................... ................ .............................. .... ........ . 3 
1. Updates and Improveiilents to Water Treatment Facility ................................ 3 
2. Administration and Operations ................................................................... ..... 3 
3. Maintenance ....... ...... ... ....... ........ ... ............ .... ................ ............ .......... .. ........... 3 
4. Additional Improveiilents and Services ..... .... .. ... ......... ........... ................ .. ...... .4 

C. Estimate ofRevenues and Costs of Improvements and Services ....................... .... .4 

V. GOVERNANCE OF THE DISTRICT ....... ............ ................ .. .......................................... .4 

A. Type ofDistrict ........................................................... ....... ...................................... 4 

B. Board ofDirectors ................ ............ ...... .................................................................. 4 
1. Number .................. ............................... ........... ..... ... ...... ..... ...... ....... ........... ..... 4 
2. ualifications ................................................................................................... 5 
3. Initial Directors ........... ........ ...... ...... ........ ............... ... .......... .... ..... .................... 5 
4. Terms ......... ...... ................................................................................................ 5 
5. Successor Directors .......................................................................................... 6 
6. Termination ..... ..... ............... .. .................................. ............... ...... .................... 6 
7. Compensation .... ......... .......... ......... ....... .... ................... .......................... .......... 6 

VI. ASSESSED VALUE ............. ...... .. ......... ............... ....... ....................................................... 6 

VII. LIFE OF DISTRICT ......... .... ........................ .......... ...... ..... .............................. ............ ........ 6 

VIII. REAL PROPERTY TAXES AND BUSINESS LICENSE TAXES ................................... 6 

IX. SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS .. .. ........................................... .... ........... ....... ................. .......... 6 

X. SALES TAX ........................................................................................................................ 7 

XI. LIMITATIONS ON BORROWING CAPACITY, REVENUE GENERATION AND 
DISTRICT POWERS .............................. ........... ............. ........................................... ....... .. 7 

XII. REQUEST TO AMEND ORIGINAL PETITION ..................... ........... ....... .. .... ............... .. 7 

XIII. SEVERABILITY ............... ....................... .................. .. ...... ... ... .. ............ ....................... ..... 7 

1.!0 {32724 I 67326; 713165.3 } 



EXHIBITS 

EXHffiiT A DISTRICT LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

EXHffiiT B DISTRICT BOUNDARY MAP 

EXHffiiT C FIVE-YEAR PLAN'S ESTIMATE OF REVENUES AND COSTS OF 
IMPROVEMENTS AND SERVICES 

EXHffiiT D REAL PROPERTY SPECIAL ASSESS:MENT ROLL 

EXHffiiT E SPECIAL ASSESS:MENT PETITION 

liil {32724/67326; 713165.3} 



PETITION TO AMEND THE FIRST AMENDED PETITION TO ESTABLISH 
GRAND HILL COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT AND TO AUTHORIZE 

SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS 

This petition ("Petition") is submitted in accordance with Rev. Mo. Stat. § 67.1401, through 
§ 67.1571, otherwise known as the l\1issouri Community Improvement District Act (t~e "Act"), by 
those persons and entities whose signatures appear below (the "Petitioners"). The City Council (the 
"City Council") of the City of Belton, Cass County, Missouri (the "City") established the Grand Hill 
Community Improvement District (the "District") by and through its adoption of Ordinance No. 
2015-4162 dated December 22, 2015 (the "Ordinance") for the purposes stated in the First 
Amended Petition to Establish Grand Hill Community Improvement District (the "Original 
Petition"). The Petitioners request that the City Council amend the Original Petition by modifying 
certain provisions related to special assessments to be levied by the District in accordance with the 
Act, updating the Five-Year Plan, and by adding Exhibit D- Real Property Special Assessment 
Roll and Exhibit E - Special Assessment Petition. 

I. PETITIONERS 

The Petitioners represent more than fifty percent (50%) per capita of all owners of the 
District Land and District Land owners collectively owning more than fifty percent (50%) 
by assessed value of the District Land. 

II. OVERVIEW AND DESCRIPTION OF THE GRAND HILL COMMUNITY 
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT PROJECT 

The project is initiated as the result of a notice received from the Missouri Department of 
Natural Resources, informing the residences of the Grand Hill Addition that the sewage 
treatment plant servicing the property would no longer meet recently revised State of 

___ _ __Miss.o.urLstandards...fu :ftlue.n dis..~,_and____that under the new standards the existing ___ _ 
plant could not be modified to meet the new standards. The effect of the new standards 
would result in the shutdown of the sewage treatment plan, and render the 19 residences 
existing in the addition uninhabitable and result in the loss of investment value of all 
property owners in the Grand Hill Addition. 

The Grand Hill Community Improvement District Project will rectify the current deficiency 
in sanitary sewer service by installing a sewage collection reservoir and self-contained 
pumping station within the Grand Hill Addition property upon a common area of the 
addition. The pumping station will then connect via a 1 W' HDPE pipe to the existing City 
of Belton sewer line on 175th Street. The pipe will run northward along an existing water 
main right of way approximately 2,100 feet to the connection with the City system. The 
planned improvements have been engineered to specifications that meet all existing 
construction regulations and State statutes. The costs of the planned improvements and 
future maintenance and repair will be completely funded through special assessments upon 
the subject real property in a pro rata proportion, as agreed by the owners of the Grand Hill 
Addition properties, as set forth in Exhibit D attached to this Petition. 

{32724 I 67326; 713165.3 } 1 122 



ill. DESCRIPTION OF THE DISTRICT 

A. Legal Description 

The District includes all of the real property (the "District Land") legally described 
· in Exhibit A (the "District Legal Description") attached to this Petition. 

B. Boundary Map 

A map illustrating the general boundaries of the District is attached to this Petition as 
Exhibit B (the "District Boundary Map"). 

C. Name of District 

The name of the District shall be the Grand Hill Community Improvement District. 

D. Notice to Petitioners 

The signatures of Petitioners signing this Petition may not be withdrawn later than 
seven days after this Petition is filed with the City Clerk. 

IV. FIVE-YEAR PLAN 

A. Purposes of the District 

The District shall serve the following purposes (the "District Purposes"): 

{32724/67326; 713165.3 } 

(a) facilitating development of the water treatment facility that services 
_ !be Di~j;tiqt ("Wate~Treatment Facility'') by pr_9~ding, or causing to 

e prov1 , certam nnprovements an services (co ectively, the 
"Eligible Services") described in Paragraph B of this Article for the 
benefit of the District; 

(b) issuing obligations, ("Bonds"), or obtaining any other sort of 
financing allowed under the Act to finance: (1) the costs of the 
Eligible Services, (2) other costs incurred by the District to carry out 
the District Purposes, and (3) costs of financing, including but not 
limited to: (i) costs of issuance, (ii) capitalized interest, and (iii) debt 
service reserves; 

(c) 

(d) 

coordinating with public and private entities to plan and implement 
the Eligible Services; and 

imposing and collecting a special assessment, fees, and charges 
authorized pursuant to this Petition and the Act. 

2 123 



B. Improvements and Services ("Eligible Services") 

The Eligible Services shall include, but are not necessarily limited to, the following: 

1. Updates and Improvements to Water Treatment Facility 

The District may construct, reconstruct, install, repair, maintain, and equip 
(or cause such services to be undertaken) any updates and improvements 
necessary to bring the Water Treatment Facility into compliance with the 
Missouri Clean Water Law ("MCWL") including, but not limited to: 
connecting the wastewater flow from the District to the City of Belton's 
central wastewater treatment and collection system, and any other useful, 
necessary or desired improvement authorized under the Act. 

2. Administration and Operations 

The District may provide and/or contract for managerial, engineering, legal, 
technical, clerical, accounting, financial consulting, and other assistance 
deemed necessary or desirable by the District to meet the District Purposes, 
including, but not necessarily limited to, the following: 

(a) financing the costs of creating and operating the District; 

(b) investigating and assessing future updates and improvements 
necessary for the Water Treatment Facility to remain compliant with 
theMCWL; 

(c) financing the costs of updating the Water Treatment Facility so that it 
.emams..oompliant-with-the-MG-v:v-;~~----

(d) contracting for legal counsel on matters pertaining to the District and 
to the Water Treatment Facility; 

(e) imposing and collecting a special assessment and/or a charge and/or 
a fee as authorized pursuant to this Petition and the Act; 

(f) coordinating meetings and the dissemination of additional 
information necessary or desirable to meet the District Purposes. 

3. Maintenance 

{32724 I 67326; 713165.3 } 

The District may contract for and provide maintenance and cleaning services 
to the Water Treatment Facility, and to improve the efficiency of the Water 
Treatment Facility, to ensure the Water Treatment Facility remains 
compliant with the MCWL. Such services may include, but are not 
necessarily limited to: 

3 124 



_____ Y-

(a) contracting for legal services to provide annual review of the 
MCWL; 

(b) contracting for engineering and/or any other services necessary to 
provide annual review and assessment of the Water Treatment 
Facility to ensure compliance with the MCWL; 

(c) monitoring of City services, if any; and 

(d) providing, maintenance, and other services to the Water Treatment 
facility and surrounding property. 

4. Additional Improvements and Services 

The District shall be authorized to provide for any and all desired services 
and improvements, and shall have all rights needed to provide those desired 
services and improvements, up to and including any desired service and 
improvement right not specifically limited, or prevented, by this Petition or 
the Act. 

C. Estimate of Revenues and Costs of Improvements and Services 

The commencement ·of the Eligible Services and the levy and collection of the 
Special Assessment are anticipated to occur within the first year of the District's 
existence. The Five-Year Plan's estimate of revenues from the collection of the 
Special Assessment, and estimated costs related to the provision of the Eligible 
Services are shown on Exhibit C attached to this Petition. 

GO..¥ERN.ANSE_OF THE DISIRIC.T=-=-.:.:-::._ _ ____ =c___::.=--------==-==-= 

A. Type of District 

The District shall be a separate not-for-profit corporation named Grand Hill, LLC, 
and shall have all of the powers granted to and/or exercisable by a community 
improvement district according to the Act. The District shall comply with all state 
statutory requirements of a not-for-profit corporation including, but not limited to: 
(1) compliance with the requirements outlined in Rev. Mo. Stat. § 355.001, eta!.; 
and (2) annual comprehensive financial audit, if required by lender. 

B. Board of Directors 

1. Number 

The District shall initially be governed by a Board of Directors (the "Board") 
consisting of five (5) members. As the term of each initial director ("Initial 
Directors") expires, successor directors shall qualify and be appointed 
elected in accordance with Paragraph 5 of this Article. 

{32724 I 67326; 713165.3 } 4125 



2. Qualifications 

The Initial Directors of the Board shall be comprised of those individuals 
listed in Paragraph 3 of this Article. Successor directors ("Successor 
Directors") shall be elected in accordance with Paragraph 5 of this Article. 
Each Initial Director and Successor Director shall meet the following 
requirements: 

(a) be at least 18 years of age; 

(b) be a Missouri resident, as long as required by the Missouri 
Constitution or by state statute; 

(c) be either an owner of real property ("Owner") within the District, or 
such Owner's representative, an owner of a business (''Operator") 
operating within the District, or such Operator's representative, or a 
registered voter, owning and occupying a residence within the 
District ("Resident"); and 

(d) except for the Initial Directors named in this Petition, be nominated 
by a Board Member according to the nominating procedures set out 
below. 

3. Initial Directors 

In accordance with the District's articles or bylaws and by Rev. Mo. Stat. 
§ 355.001, et al., the Initial Directors to serve on the Board, and their 
respective terms, will be: 

----- ---- -------- -----------

4. 

{32724 I 67326; 713165.3 } 

NAME TERM _(in _years) 
David Panek 6 

Mary Beth Panek 5 
James G. Panek 4 
Tina M Watters 4 

Lucena E Pinf3k Tr~t 4 

Terms 

Each Initial Director named above shall serve for the term set forth opposite 
his/her name or until his/her successor is appointed in accordance with this 
Petition. Each Successor Director shall serve a four-year term or until 
his/her successor is appointed in accordance with this Petition. If, for any 
reason, a director is not able to serve his/her full term, the remaining 
directors shall elect an interim director to fill the vacancy of the unexpired 
term. 

5126 



Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, any Initial Director's or Successor 
Director's (collectively, "Director") failure to continually meet the 
qualification requirements set forth in Paragraph 2 of this Article, either in a 
Director's individual capacity or in a Director's representative capacity, shall 
constitute cause for the Board to take appropriate action to remove said 
Director. 

5. Successor Directors 

Successor Directors shall be nominated by a Board Member and elected by a 
majority vote of the Board. Such elections shall be subject to each and every 
qualification stated in this Petition. 

6. Ternrlnation 

Any Director may be removed for cause by a two-thirds affirmative vote of 
the Board. Written notice of the proposed removal shall be given to all 
Directors prior to action thereon. 

7. Compensation 

No Director shall receive compensation for performing their official duties 
as a member of the Board, except that the District may reimburse Directors 
for reasonable and actual expenses incurred in the performance of their 
official duties as may be permitted in the Act. 

VI. ASSESSED VALUE 

The total assessed value of all of the real property within the District is $167,820.20. 

VII. LIFE OF DISTRICT 

The life of the District shall be for a minimum of thirty (30) years following the effective 
date of the Ordinance establishing the District, after which, the District shall continue in 
perpetual existence unless and until terminated in accordance with the Act. 

VIII. REAL PROPERTY TAXES AND BUSINESS LICENSE TAXES 

The District will not levy a real property tax and is not authorized to levy a business license 
tax. 

IX. SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS 

The District may, by resolution of the Board, and in accordance with the Act, impose a 
District-wide special assessment not to exceed the amounts as set forth in Exhibit D upon all 
developed and improved lots in the District, excluding streets and public right-of-way. By 

{32724 I 67326; 713165.3 } 6 127 



signing this Petition, the Petitioners are simultaneously approving the Special Assessment 
Petition attached as Exhibit E authorizing the District to levy a special assessment as 
provided in this Petition and the Special Assessment Petition by resolution duly adopted by 
the District's Board ofDirectors. 

X. SALESTAX 

The District is not authorized to levy a sales tax. 

XI. LIMITATIONS ON BORROWING CAPACITY, REVENUE GENERATION AND 
DISTRICT POWERS 

There shall be no limitations on the District's borrowing capacity, revenue generation, or 
powers; however, the District shall have no power to acquire property by eminent domain. 

XII. REQUEST TO AMEND ORIGINAL PETITION 

By execution and submission of this Petition, the Petitioners request that the City Council 
amend the Original Petition by modifying certain provisions related to special assessments, 
updating the Five-Year Plan, and by adding Exhibit D - Real Property Special Assessment 
Roll and Exhibit E - Special Assessment Petition as set out in this Petition. 

XIII. SEVERABILITY 

If any provision of this Petition shall be held or determined to be invalid, inoperative or 
unenforceable as applied in any particular case, or in all cases, because it conflicts with any 
other provision or provisions of this Petition or for any other reason, such circumstances 
shall not have the effect of rendering the provision in question inoperative or unenforceable 

_i!t an . other case or circumstance, or of renderin an other rovision contained in this 
Petition invalid, inoperative or unenforceable to any extent whatsoever. 

{32724 I 67326; 713165.3 } 



EXHIBIT A 

DISTRICT LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

Lots 1 through 16, GRAND HILL ADDITION, in Belton, Cass County, Missouri, and all public or 
private streets that run appurtenant, inclusive of all public or private rights-of-way, identified in the 
plat attached hereto as Exhibit B. 

fu addition, the following public easements and right-of-way for a total of 1,808 feet are included 
within the District boundaries for purpose of connecting the new Water Treatment Facility to the 
City of Belton public sewer: 

Tract A: 

The South Twenty (20) feet of the North One Thousand and Eighty (1080.0) feet of theE 1/2 of the 
W 112 of the W 112 of Lot 2, of the NW 114 of Section 1, Township 46, Range 33 in the City of 
Belton, Cass County, Missouri. 

Tract B: 

The South Twenty (20) feet of the North One Thousand and Eighty (1080.0) feet of the E 112 of 
theW 1/2 of Lot 2, of the NW 114 of Section 1, Township 46, Range 33, in the City of 
Belton, Cass County, Missouri. 

Tract C: 

From the eastern termination of Tract B thence east 825 feet within the public right-of-way of I 57th 
---~-£tn~e in-the.-:S.unseU:IiJ:l~ddition:subdivJsio~to.:lhe.City_affielten...p.ub.lie...sewer..coon.e.ction=-=-~=-----

{32724/67326;713165.3} 



EXHIBITB 
DISTRICT BOUNDARY MAP 

GRAND HILL AOO 
BELTON. MO. 

-·-

This Is II subdivision of the South 418 ft.et of th• V.at htlf of tho Y"t half of the Vut half of 
Lot 2 of tho lkll'tllwoat ~er of Soctian I, r....,.hip 48, Rena• as, lllttton, Cut County, lllesourl, 

manno~h:, ~= ~~·t~r:~~Y ~~: :'1:f~~~T.g'!~b:t~!1a ~~·~0: r at~:'/1 tl:: .. ::n~0b~\1~~i:!dtd In the 

"GRAll! HILL ADDITION" 

All thorouqhfll'to sh"""' an this plat and nat h.,.etaforo dRCiicatod ta public u.o aro tw.reby so dtdicatod, 

An tal~mqnt or lloanso Is h!roby at:ontad to lloltcn , 141UQIIrl to locoto, ~otruct end 111alntalr> or to 
~~horl~ tht lao~lon, cantt,~tlon ond \:Int.,..,.• of car>dultt{ ••tor, QU -.r;, ,_.. llnts4 polo~ wiras 
lllltJf?ii~E:~:~t"':" any of ~~~""en t 11 anoas outllnad on ~to plilt and. ulgnatod by ho wa a 

ln.tettl-.y wh•rv.ot_mAIIII . .HIUS O£Y.aOPII:Iif COif'~, INC. has elk!!! lid thoso preuntJ to bo olonod by Ita 
Pruldant and ottutod by fta Sttrota.ry this~ dey of --J14:1,Y~L -• A,D,. IS.JoA:.., 

:h~ . {.) ~ ~~~ld!.Nf(Jrc. 
-U(~~fy ,?/ .m~ 

State of llh~oul"llu 
COWitY of CO» ) ' 

On this .,:ti!!day of 

.J-1:~~·.~~.,~-~!'o .. 

$tat, of 141 socon-llss 
Coun1y of Cus ) • 

Tl1i• ~l"'tl 
~i-thln ... ~l•t of 
AOOtTiuN 
ond clUJ 
... !; .. 
~~h 

{32724/67326; 713165.3} 



- ~ -· . . 
Pt:I,AWIO 

I • •. • 

I 
f 

. · 

{( 
~~-, 
• 

J 

i . 

{32724/67326; 713165.3} 



Notes: 

I( A) 

ll(A) 

IT (B) 

ll(C) 

* 

EXHIBITC 
FIVE-YEAR PLAN 

ESTIMATED COSTS OF IMPROVEMENTS AND SERVICES* 

I. Revenue 

A. Estimated Special 

Assessment Revenue 

IT. Expenditures 

A. Updates and 

Improvements 

B. Debt Service 

C. Administration 

Yearl 

2016 

$12,900.00 

$(125,000.00) 

Year2 

2017 

Year3 
2018 

Year4 

2019 

$12,900.00 $ 12,900.00 $12,900.00 

$ $ $ 

Year5 

2020 

$12,900.00 

$ 

$ (10,900.00) $(10,900.00) $(10,900.00) $(10,900.00) $(10,900.00) 

$ (2,000.00) $ (2,000.00) $ (2,000.00) $ (2,000.00) $ (2,000.00) 

$ $ $ $ $ 

A special assessment may only be levied upon receipt of a petition signed in accordance with the CID 
Act. By resolution, and in accordance with the CID Act, the Board may levy a special assessment rate 
lower than the ceiling rate set forth in the table above. Each special assessment due and owing shall 
constitute a perpetual lien against each tract, as outlined in Section 67.1521 of the CID Act. The 
Special Assessment estimate is calculated based on the amounts set forth in Exlnbit D .. 

The Updates and Improvements allocation will be used to connect the wastewater flow from the District 
to the City of Belton's central wastewater treatment and collection system, which will require the 
construction of a connection pipe, and will be used to demolish the Water Treatment Facility. 

The District shall fund initial expenditures through debt capital. The District shall repay any debt over a 
term of 20 or more years using funds collected from the special assessment levied in accordance with 
the CID Act. The estimate for Debt Service was calculated using a 20-year term loan with the initial 
loan amount of$125,000, and an interest rate of3.2%. 

Administration funds will be utilized for the daily, monthly and yearly operations costs and of the 
District Fees are as follows: ..$600.00 for Yearly City Inspection/Maintenance, -$300.00 Yearly 
Electricity Expense, -$200.00 Yearly Insurance Expense. +$900.00 Secured as saving for future 
Maintenance. 

To the extent the actual revenue and costs of improvements and services are in variance of with this 
five-year plan. the District's budget will be modified by the Board on an annual basis. 

132 C-1 
{32724/ 67326; 713165.3} 



Grand H·m Sewer Project Bidder: -----------------

Grand Hill Sewer Construction 

Item No. Unit Quantity Item DescrtPtlon: Unit Extension 
" 

1 LS 1 Pump Station PackaQe 1 27,699.82 

2 LS 1. Installation of DUmp statipn 1 10.000.00 
3 EA 2100 Excavation and install of 11/4 HPED pipe 10 21,000.00 

4. . LS 1 · CQncrete for base of pt.Jrnp manhole 500 500.00 . -
5 LS 1 .Electrician work - 350 ' 350.00 

6 LN 1 Attorneys Fee 35000 35000.00 ' 

7 LS 1 Engineering Fee 8000 ' 8,000.00 -
8 LS 1 314 Cl~n Gr.wet 1000 I 1000.00 

9 LS 1 Demo of existing ,pump house, 1200 1.200.00 

10 LS 1 Install 6' Fence enclosure with a six gate 750 750.00 .. - - -
11 ~ LS 1 Estimation of posslbht rock breakage 15000 15 000.00 

. . . -· ... 

- -

TOTAL UNIT PRICES $120 499.82 . -
Note: May b8 printed. for mama IAI-in, or1111ed In on e/eclrnnic e>ceel spraadsheet Y!ll'llfon. 

00412 Unit Prices 050113 f KaMas City Contract Guidebook 

133 C-2 
{32724 I 67326; 713165.3 } 



Grand H.ill Sewer Project Bidder: ---------------

Grand Hlfl Sewer Construction Bidders 

Item No . Item Da!lcrlPlion: Contractor 
1 PumQ-Sta!ionPaCkage Havnes Eaulornent.Co, Inc. Written Pro.oosal 

2 \nsranauon ofJ)UITij). station 8 & D Excavations VeJbat wallln~ on CIO 
3 Excavation and lnstsll of 11f4 HPED pp& Crystal ExcavaHon Written Prooosal .. 
4 C.oncmte fot" base of Jltll11l) manhole Amerlcan Coocrele Mar!let cost 

5 · Ele~an Wot'k Perl<ins Eledr1c Wrttten ProllOSSl 
6 Alta'rifllia Faa BIU Moore/David Rauzl Wrltteh. Propo!lal 

7 . lenanee~ng Fee Dillion Engineering Written ProDO!al 

8 314 Clean Gravel Not chosen Market cost 

9 Demo of~.pump;hou.sa. B & 0 Excavations Verbal walling on CID 

10 Install 6' Fence enclosure wUh a sue gate Broski F.enclna Written PI'OilO$al -
11 Estlmaffon otoosslble rock braa~<aga B & D Excavations l;~maUon 

' 
. 

' . 

-

; 

-----------------------------------------------------------------------------

m..s~? 1 lnll c.r ....... ru::nH') 

134 C-3 
{32724/67326; 713165.3} 



EXHIBITD 
REAL PROPERTY SPECIAL ASSESSMENT ROLL 

Annual Flat 
Assessed Amount 

Progertv Address Legal Descrigtion Parcel Numbers Value Special 
Assessment 

301 Hill & 303 Hill, Belton, Grand Hill Lot 1 05-01-01-000-000- $10,640.00 $ 900.00 
M064012 091.000 

305 Hill, Belton, MO 64012 Grand Hill Lot 2 05-01-01-000-000- $10,780.00 $ 900.00 
090.000 

309 Hill, Belton, MO 64102 Grand Hill Lot 3 05-01-01-000-000- $10,990.00 $ 900.00 
089.000 

313 Hill & 315 Hill, Grand Hill Lot 4 05-01-01-000-000- $10,780.00 $ 900.00 
BeltonMO 64012 088.000 

308 & 308A Hill & 310 Hill, Grand Hill Lot 5 05-01-01-000-000- $16,790.00 $1,140.00 
Belton, MO 64012 087.000 

304 Hill & 304A Hill & 306 Grand Hill Lot 6 05-01-01-000-000- $16,770.00 $1,140.00 
Hill, Belton, MO 644012 086.000 

300· Hill & 300A Hill & 302 Grand Hill Lot 7 05-01-01-000-000- $16,770.00 $1,140.00 
Hill, Belton, MO 64012 085.000 

301 Grand, Belton, MO Grand Hill Lot 8 05-01-01-000-000- $13,070.00 $1,140.00 
64012 083.00 

305 Grand & 307 Grand, Grand Hill Lot 9 05-01-01-000-000- $11,450.00 $ 900.00 
Belton, MO 64012 082.000 

309 Grand, Belton, MO Grand Hill Lot 10, 05-01-01-000-000- $14,760.00 $1,140.00 
64012 3257/819 081.000 

308 Grand & 310 Grand, Grand Hill Lot 13 05-01-01-000-000- $10,950.00 $ 900.00 
Belton, MO 64012 078.000 

304 Grand & 306 Grand, Grand Hill Lot 14 05-01-01-000-000- $11,210.00 $ 900.00 
Belton, MO 64012 077.000 

300 Grand, Belton, MO Grand Hill Lot 15 05-01-01-000-000- $10,820.00 $ 900.00 
64012 076.000 

135 

{32724 I 67326; 713165.3 } 



EXHIBITE 
SPECIAL ASSESSMENT PETITION 

GRAND HILL 
COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 

Petition for the Levy of Special Assessments 

The Grand Hill Community hnprovement District ("District") shall be authorized to levy 
special assessments ("CID Special Assessments") against real property benefited within the District 
for the purpose of providing revenue for the District Purposes, as described on the attached Exhibit 
A, such CID Special Assessments shall be levied against each developed and improved tract, lot or 
parcel listed below within the District, excluding streets and public right-of-way, which receives 
special benefit as a result of the District Purposes, the cost of which shall be allocated among the 
property that is subject to the CID Special Assessment in an amount not to exceed the annual flat 
amount for each such tract, lot or parcel as listed below. A map of the lots subject to the CID 
Special Assessment, as listed below, is attached as Exhibit B. Capitalized terms not expressly 
defined herein shall have the same meaning ascribed to them in the Petition to Amend the First 
Amended Petition to Establish Grand Hill Community Improvement District ("Petition''). 

Authorization to levy the· CID Special Assessments shall not expire until the District 
Purposes are fully funded, which shall be for a minimum of twenty (20) years following the effective 
date of the Ordinance, after which period the CID Special Assessments shall remain in effect until the 
District is tenninated in accordance with Section 67.1481, RSMo, of the Act. The general street 
addresses as stated by the Cass County, Missouri Collector's Office, and the legal descriptions of 
the real property which will receive special benefit from the District Purposes are as follows: 

Annual Flat 
Assessed Amount 

Pronegy Address Legal Descri.l2tion Parcel Numbers Value Special 
Assessment 

301 Hill & 303 Hill, Belton, Grand Hill Lot 1 05-01-01-000-000- $10,640.00 $ 900.00 
M064012 091.000 

305 Hill, Belton, MO 64012 Grand Hill Lot 2 05-01-01-000-000- $10,780.00 $ 900.00 
090.000 

309 Hill, Belton, MO 64102 Grand Hill Lot 3 05-01-01-000-000- $10,990.00 $ 900.00 
089.000 

313 Hill & 315 Hill, Grand Hill Lot 4 05-01-0 1-000-000- $10,780.00 $ 900.00 
Belton MO 64012 088.000 

308 & 308A Hill & 310 Hill, Grand Hill Lot 5 05-01-01-000-000- $16,790.00 $1,140.00 
Belton, MO 64012 087.000 

304 Hill & 304A Hill & 306 Grand Hill Lot 6 05-01-01-000-000- $16,770.00 $1,140.00 
Hill, Belton, MO 644012 086.000 

136 

{32724 I 67326; 713165.3 } 



300 Hill & 300A Hill & 302 Grand Hill Lot 7 05-0 1-01-000-000- $16,770.00 $1,140.00 
Hill, Belton, MO 64012 085.000 

301 Grand, Belton, MO Grand Hill Lot 8 05-0 1-01-000-000- $13,070.00 $1,140.00 
64012 083.00 

305 Grand & 307 Grand, Grand Hill Lot 9 05-0 1-01-000-000- $11,450.00 $ 900.00 
Belton, MO 64012 082.000 

309 Grand, Belton, MO Grand Hill Lot 10, 05-01-01-000-000- $14,760.00 $1,140.00 
64012 3257/819 081.000 

308 Grand & 310 Grand, Grand Hill Lot 13 05-01-01-000-000- $10,950.00 $ 900.00 
Belton, MO 64012 078.000 

304 Grand & 306 Grand, Grand Hill Lot 14 05-01-01-000-000- $11,210.00 $ 900.00 
Belton, MO 64012 077.000 

300 Grand, Belton, MO Grand Hill Lot 15 05-01-01-000-000- $10,820.00 $ 900.00 
64012 076.000 

. 
- -- r 

137 

{32724/67326; 713165.3} 



Exhibit A (to Special Assessment Petition) 
Description of District Purposes 

A. The District shall serve the following purposes (the "District Purposes"): 

(i) facilitating development of the water treatment facility that services the 
District ("Water Trea1ment Facility") by providing, or causing to be 
provided, certain improvements and services (collectively, the "Eligible 
Services") described in Paragraph B of this Article for the benefit of the 
District; 

(ii) issuing obligations, ("Bonds"), or obtaining any other sort of fmancing 
allowed under the Act to finance: (1) the costs of the Eligible Services, (2) 
other costs incurred by the District to carry out the District Purposes, and (3) 
costs of financing, including but not limited to: (i) costs of issuance, (ii) 
capitalized interest, and (iii) debt service reserves; 

(iii) coordinating with public and private entities to plan and implement the 
Eligible Services; and 

(iv) imposing and collecting a special assessment, fees, and charges authorized 
pursuant to this Petition and the Act. 

B. hnprovements and Services 

The Eligible Services shall include, but are not necessarily limited to, the following: 

1. Updates and hnprovements to Water Treatment Facility 

The District may construct, reconstruct, install, repair, maintain, and equip 
(or cause such services to be undertaken) any updates and improvements 
necessary to bring the Water Treatment Facility into compliance with the 
Missouri Clean Water Law ("MCWL") including, but not limited to: 
connecting the wastewater flow from the District to the City of Belton's 
central wastewater treatment and collection system, and any other useful, 
necessary or desired improvement authorized under the Act. 

2. Administration and Operations 

The District may provide and/or contract for managerial, engineering, legal, 
technical, clerical, accounting, financial consulting, and other assistance 
deemed necessary or desirable by the District to meet the District Purposes, 
including, but not necessarily limited to, the following: 

(a) financing the costs of creating and operating the District; 

138 

{32724/67326; 713165.3} 



(b) . investigating and assessing future updates and improvements 
necessary for the Water Treatment Facility to remain compliant with 
theMCWL; 

(c) financing the costs of updating the Water Treatment Facility so that it 
remains compliant with the MCWL; 

(d) contracting for legal counsel on matters pertaining to the District and 
to the Water Treatment Facility; 

(e) imposing and collecting a special assessment and/or a charge and/or 
a fee as authorized pursuant to this Petition and the Act; 

(f) coordinating meetings and the dissemination of additional 
information necessary or desirable to meet the District Purposes. 

3. Maintenance 

The District may contract for and provide maintenance and cleaning services 
to the Water Treatment Facility, and to improve the efficiency of the Water 
Treatment Facility, to ensure the Water Treatment Facility remains 
compliant with the MCWL. Such services may include, but are not 
necessarily limited to: 

(a) 

(b) 

contracting for legal services to provide annual review of the 
MCWL; 

contracting for engineering and/or any other services necessary to 
----------------=--=--_ -~pr.o.ri.d_e_annuaLr.eview=an · - assessm.en.t=.o e-:_Water----Iteatmen~.--__ _ 

(c) 

(d) 

Facility to ensure compliance with the MCWL; 

monitoring of City services, if any; and 

providing, maintenance, and other services to the Water Treatment 
facility and surrounding property. 

4. Additional Improv~ents and Services 

The District shall be authorized to provide for any and all desired services 
and improvements, and shall have all rights needed to provide those desired 
services and improvements, up to and inclqding any desired service and 
improvement right not specifically limited, or prevented, by this Petition or 
the Act. 

139 

{32724 I 67326; 713165.3 } 



Exhibit B (to Special Assessment Petition) 

Map 

GRAND HILL AbO/ 
SE l. TON, MO. 

Thla 11 ~ subdlvlsidft q1' the South 478 f11t of tho llut llelf of tho v .. _ t hoff of the Vut half of 
Lot r. of the lfal'tltwut ~er of Section I, T..,shlp 48, Rq- as, Belton, Oua Oaunty, Mlltotlrl, 

The undersigned proprietor of the sbovt d .. cl'ibed tr-eet hsa CIIUStd tht 111114 to ba subdlvidtd in tho 
mannor a show! on the acc:GIIIIanyino plsf, which subdivision ond ptri shall t.re•ft411" bt kiloton as 

"GIWID HILL ADDITION" 

All thorOUQhfaru shown on this plat end not hratofort clt<lic&ttd to IJUblic 111e art hereby &a dedlcahd. 

~ oast111011t or I ic<Mo Is hor•by Qrenhd to llottton, WissQYrl to loc•t•, con&truct ond nalntsfn or to 

~horln 1h• Location , conatr<J~Uon llid ~JIIntananc• of ~ondullal ••t•rlrto"' end ~- ""'"! poln, wiros 
li\Cilora end 111 ,or •IIY of t~oro upon thost 1/"tos outlined on ~11 pi and dutonated by he .. ,.., 
lllilu huor•nt'. • 
ln.tMtJ~Y 'OII.oro.of.IIIAHQ.llli.LS O£llaGPIE81' ac»>'AMY, 1110. hn c•.tt<l then pres41)tt to b•,•to~ed bY Its 

PruldOiflt and attutod by IU So.crotery thh ...ll.. day of~~_, A,D., l$ 

:t~--: (,) ~ ~LS ~~'P.JI]!Nff;,,'"o . 
..!f~~on ~~ 

140 

St••• of Ill SI.O'JI" n.s . 
oounty ef Cou ) 

{32724/67326; 713165.3} 



Owner Name The Lucena E. Panek Declaration of Trust Dated August 18, 1997 
Owner Address 12157 Charlotte St., Kansas City, MO, 64146 
Owner's Telephone Number 
Married I Single 

Property Addresses I...egaJ Descriptions 
I. 301 Hill & 303 Hill, Belton, MO, 64012 1. Grand Hill Lot I 
2. 313 Hill & 315 Hill, Belton, MO 64012 2. Grand Hill Lot 4 
3. 304 Hill & 304A Hill & 306 Hill, Belton, MO 64012 3. Grand Hill Lot 6 
4. 300 Hill & JOOA Hill & 302 Hill, Belton. MO 64012 4. Grand Hill Lot 7 
5. No address assigned. Grand, Belton, MO 64012 5. Grand Hill Lot 12 

Parcel Numbers Assessed Values 
1 . 5-0 1-0 1-000-000-09l. 000 1. $10,640 
2. 5-01..01-000-000-088.000 2. $10,780 
3. 5-01..01-000-000-086.000 3. $16,770 
4. 5-0 1-01-000-000-085.000 4. $16,770 
5. 5-01..01-000-000-179.000 5. $380 

By executing this signature page, the undersigned represents and warrants that he/she has received a 
copy of the Petition and its exhibits, has read the Petition and its exhibits, is authorized to execute this signature 
page on behalf of the owner of the properties named immediately above, and authorizes this signature page to 
be attached to the original of the Petition to be filed in the Office of the City of Belton, Missouri Clerk. The 
undersigned also acknowledges that his/her signature may not be withdrawn later than seven days after this 
Petition is filed with the clerk of the City. 

State of Missouri 
County of Jackson 

) 
) ss: 

_ j)B_ 

Before me personally appeared David S. Rauzi, Successor Trustee as named in the Lucena E. Panek 
Declaration of rust dated August 18, 1997, to me personally known to be the individual(s) described in and 
who executed the preceding Petition on behalf of said company/owner and acknowledged to me that he or she 
executed the same for the purposes therein stated as the free act and deed of said company/owner. 

Witness my hand and offiCial seal this First day ofNovember, 2016. 

My Commission Expires: ________ _ 

JAMMY RAUZl 
Notary Pu~llc, Nofory Stal 

State of Mluourl 
Jaekaon County 

Commlulon I I '923396 
My commlaslon hplle• Octacer23. 2011 

141 (32724/67326; 713165.3! 



I-' 
,J:>, 
N 

1 -j 
-.I 
t: 

! -

~ 
bl r.o 

o3 z% 

r~u 
;: ~~~ 
~t ~~n 
li1-a .~~~ 

f 

tt aft;; 

. ~'"I 

.-S:> -
~· 

~ 
~ c 
~ 
() 

COl I ~ti!i·~ !HJ~ 
-~,., .. ---.- ~,......, roo.,. R'· ~~ K ""'''lliit. I ~ 1 I 

i i !il ~; ~~ ~ h'U! If fJ lth~ ~~~ ~~=~~ H 
• =· U 

1!1 -
;;;a • ... 

-K~ ; , ~i~i1 ~i w i , r· luu u 
.Wf! t' ' I 6&! i~ if 

rll' r 'u: tJ iEI 

~ lit r 1 i rf , i ~ ·~ It -=! f l ~ .. g -

f.~ r ill b[ii 1lll [Ui 1• 
~ ' If rJ If J I :If ' 

I ~~~~r EI""R. Iii t . l r~h a. 1 til r .. Is~ 



Signature Page for Petition to Amend the First Amended Petition to Establish the 
Grand Bill Community Improvement District and Authorize Special Assessments 

I request that the City Council of the City of Belton, Missouri amend the First Amended Petition to 
Establish Grand Hill Community Improvement District according to the preceding Petition to Amend the 
First Amended Petition to Establish the Grand Hill Community Improvement District (the ''Petition") and I 
authorize the Grand Hill Community Improvement District to levy the special assessments as described in the 
Special Assessment Petition attached as Exhibit E to the Petition. 

Owner Names David M. Panek 
Owner Address 9304 Valley Garden Dr., Kansas City, MO 64139 
Owner's Telephone Number 
Married I Single 

Property Addresses 
1. 308 Grand & 310 Grand, Belton, MO 64012 
2. No address assigned, S. Outer Rd., Belton, 

MO 64012 

Parcel Numbers 
1. 5-01-01-000-000-078.000 
2. 5-01-01-000-000-084.000 

Legal Descriptions 
1. Grand Hill Lot 13 
2. Grand Hill Lot 16 

Assessed Values 
1. $10,950 
2. $1,030 

By executing this signature page, the undersigned represents and warrants that he/she has received a 
copy of the Petition and its exhibits, has read the Petition and its exhibits, is authorized to execute this 
signatme page on behalf of the owners of the properties named immediately above, and authorizes this 
signature page to be attached to the original of the Petition to be filed in the Office of the City of Belton, 
Missouri Clerk. The undersigned also acknowledges that his/her signature may not be withdrawn later than 
seven days after this Petition is filed with the clerk ofthe City. 

p......._ >- Y'--~ \0 .- ~I,... .l. o1 'f 
---------Signmm~-------------------------D~-~m;=============~====~----~~=-==~----

State ofMissouri ) 
County of Cass ) ss: 

Before me personally appeared j;;laV!dliire.J:;:and to me personally known to 
be the individual(s) described in and who executed the preceding Petition on behalf of said company/owners 
and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same for the purposes therein stated as the free act and 
deed of said company/owners. 

Witness my hand and official seal this otf;ayof0da/;J4h ,2016. 

My Commission Expires: ~/J. 3/:J,/J / q 

143 

Po~~~ 
REBE.CCA HADJIAN • 

~ot!lry P~J.lc • ~ota~ Seal • 
State of "fl4sou:i'i. Jac~sor1 County 

Con:iJ)tlsslon i>15~661l90 
My Corrirtlis.s.iDn Exp.lfes ~n 1_3. 2019 • 

--- - --- --

{32724 I 67326; 713165.3 } 



Signature Page for Petition to Amend the First Amended Petition to Establish the 
Gnad HiD Community Improvement District and Authorize Special Assessments 

I reqt]est that the City Council of the City of Belton, Missouri amend the First Amended Petition to 
Establish Grand Hill Community Improvement District according to the preceding Petition to Amend the 
First Amended Petition to Establish the Grand Hill Community Improvement District (the "Petition") and I 
authorize the Grand Hill Community Jm.provep1ent District to levy the special assessments as desm"bed in the 
Special Assessment Petition attached as Exhlbit E to the Petition. 

Owner Names David M. Panek 
Owner Address 9304 Valley Garden Dr., Kansas City, MO 64139 
Owner's Telephone Number 
Married I Single 

Property Addresses 
1. 308 Grand & 310 Grand, Belton, MO 64012 
2. No address assigned, S. Outer Rd., Belton, 

M064012 

Parcel Numbers 
1. 5~1-01-000-000-078.000 
2. 5-01-01-000-000-084.000 

Legal Descriptions 
. 1. Grand Hill Lot 13 
2. Grand Hill Lot 16 

Assessed Values 
1. $10,950 
2. $1,030 

By executing this signature page, the undersigned represents and warrants that he/she has received a 
e~ Jif th~~. · .. ~Jla.'!·. ~· ~ · ~ e~~ja~orized to ~ this 
signafuie page -on f)e'liMf of ttleowners of the properties nam.ed immediately above, and authoriZes this 
signature page to be attached to the original of the Petition to be filed in the Office of the City of Belton, 
Missouri Clerk. The undersigned also acknowledges that his/her signature may not be withdrawn later than 
seven days after this Petition is filed with the clerk of the City. 

State of Missouri ) 
County of Cass ) ss: 

Before_m~ ~ersonally appeare? ~V;JE.re.J;:and to me personally known to 
be the mdivtdual(s) descnbed m and who executed the preceding Petition on behalf of said company/owners 
and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same for the ptuposes therein stated as the free act and 
deed of said company/owners. 

Witness my hand and official seal this ~y of 0~ , 2016. 

My Commission Expires: tj;J/P..a / q 

144 

· REBECCA tf~OJ.f~N I' 
Rotacy·P~J.tc - li,ota~~ Seal 

State )I ~~10~\..JIG~Od C.ounly 
q:OmlJII~IO'I! .«:~1 ~~661$90 

'My cqmlt)I~I,Dn Expires .Y.n 13, 2019 



Sfpature Pate for Pedtioa to Amead the Flnt Ammded Peddoa to Ettablftb the 
Gnnd BDI Comm.Wifty IJD.prowmeJrt Dlltrkt uul ADthorlle Spedal Aa1cAme11t1 

I IeqtJett that the City CouDci1 of tbe City of Belton, Millouri IIDXDi the Fint Ame:ndM Petition to 
Eltablilb. the GDDd Hill Community lmproYement DistrU:t eccxmling to the pm:crting Petition to Amend the 
Fint Amezldcd Petition to Establish the Grand Hill Community Improvement District (tbe "Petition") and I 
authorize the Gmld Hill Community Improvem.cnt District 1D levy"the special aacammrts 81 dacnlx:d in the 
Special.AJic:Mn art Petition attacbod 11 Exhibit E to the Petition. 

OwDer Name 1IIJDIC8 G. P1IDtk 
OwDa' ~ 1602 Tyler Dr., Raymore, MO 64083 
Owwer't Tlieploae Namber 
Married I SfDale 

Plope:ty Addretta Lepl DacriptloDI 
1. 301 Grad & 303 Gnmd. Belton. MO 64012 1. Orand Hill La; 8 
2. No add.ress assigned, Grand. BeltDn, MO 64012 2. Grand Hill Lot 11 

Pared NlliD.ben Allaled Vduet 
1. S-01-01-000-000-083.000 1. $13,070 
2. 5..01-01..()()()..()()(80.000 2. $420 

s· nate 

State ofMilsouri ) 
County of~ ) ss; 
~K~ -r D 

Befcn me ~ appeared <.JAM u 1 AN~ , to me pcnonally known to be the individual(&) 
desai.bed in and who exa:uted tbe p~ing Petition on behalf of raid company/OWDCr aDd ~~eknowlldpi to 
me that he or a a:ecuted the IIIDJC for the purpoleS tbmein stated as tbr: fi= act IIDd deed of said 
company/owna". gf 

Wimas my hand and official seal tlUs Ol day of 

My ColDlllission Expi.res:.___;0=-...3~/ D__;;;_3+/-=::>o;......;;;.._,_/......jGJ'---_ 
I I I 

145 

GRACE ARMSTRONG 
Notary Public • Notary Seal 

STATE OF MISSOURI 
Jackson County 

My Commission Expires: March 3, 2019 
Commission fl 16633662 



r--- ·--- . "' . 

8tpature Pl&e for Peftb tD Alllmcl die F!nt Amaded PtdJoa 1D EdabUih tile 
Gru.dBDI CommUIIMy lmptowSHIItDfltrkt ad Aatllo.dze Spedal.A.amlua 

I~ that the City CouDci1 of the City .of Beltml, MiaoQri tmmd tim Fint Am=dcd htitim to 
Estahliah 1he Gnmd Hill eammumty Impmveme:at District ICCOI'diDI to the PftCCdini PditiOn to .A.mald 1be 
First Ammdcxl Petitioo. to &mhliah the Grmd Hill Community Imprawment ~ (b ~j md I 
ll11thofim tbe Orand Rill Commu.nity lmprowmem Dimict tD levy the ipecisl888CSsments as dclcribed in the 
Special AaSC""'Cnt Petition attacbed aa Exhibit E to the P«ilion. 

OwDel' Nama hu1 4 Maxtba J. Westbrook 
Owller Addlwl721 Darby, Raymore. MO 64083 
Owurtt Teleplloae Naaber 
Manied./.stqle 

Property A.ddft,l 
305 Gnmd & 307 Grmd, Beb. MO 64012 

State ofMiJIIOUri ) 
Couaty of Cui ) ss: 

AlleRedVIII.u 
$11.450 

Before me persomlly appeared fa41 ML9s i hr6a t. and ~nqrt14\vbSt 1®kto me peiiODII1ly mown to 
be the individual( a} ~ in and who exa:utcd the pm:cdjng Petition on behalf of said company/OWM'S 
and acb.owiedgoed to me that he/she/they executed the sam.e fur the pwposes ttienlin ltBtcd aa 1bc he at;:t 8IId 
deed of said oompmy/owuers. 

WimessmybandiDdofiiciallealtbia J_g dayili~&bt-r .2016. 

My Ccminiaaion Expizes: () 3 ·ll· :M [<g 

146 

LORI M. EASTON 
Notaly PubliC - Notary 9ell 

STATE OF MUJSOlJRf 
CaasColny 

My Comrnis81on ElcplreS: 3/.12r.!018 
COmmlsalon 111485.7044 

{3271A 1673216; 71316!.3 } 



SECTION IX 
A 

- ----==-----=---===-------== 

147 



R2016-40 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE MIDWEST PUBLIC RISK OF MISSOURI 2016 
BYLAW REVISIONS. 

Whereas, the current Midwest Public Risk of Missouri bylaws were last amended in 2009; 

and 

Whereas, Midwest Public Risk of Missouri has completed an extensive review of the bylaws 

and revised said bylaws; and 

Whereas, all of the governmental entities which are party to these bylaws desire to become 

members of Midwest Public Risk of Missouri (MPR Missouri) and intend that these bylaws shall 

constitute a contract among them. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BELTON, 

MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. That the Midwest Public Risk of Missouri 2016 bylaw revisions are hereby 

approved and the Mayor is authorized and directed to execute on behalf of the City. 

Section 2. That this resolution shall be in full force and effect after passage and approval. 

Duly read and passed this 13th day of December, 2016. 

ATTEST: 

Patricia A. Ledford, City Clerk 
of the City of Belton, Missouri 

STATE OF MISSOURI ) 
COUNTY OF CASS ) SS. 
CITYOFBELTON ) 

Mayor Jeff Davis 

I, Patricia A. Ledford, City Clerk, do hereby certify that I have been duly appointed City 
Clerk of the City of Belton, Missowi, and that the foregoing Resolution was regularly introduced 
at a regular meeting of the City Council held on the 13th day of December, 2016, and adopted at a 

148 



AYES: COUNCILMEN: 

NOES: COUNCILMEN: 

ABSENT: COUNCILMEN: 

' 

Patricia A. Ledford, City Clerk 
of the City of Belton, Missouri 

149 



CITY OF BELTON 
CITY COUNCIL INFORMATION FORM 

Agenda Date December 13, 2016 Division/Department Administration 

Council ~ Regular Meeting D Work Session D Special Session 

Approvals 
D City Manager 0 Department Director D Attorney 0 Finance Director 0 Engineer 

Ordinance ~ Resolution Consent Item Change Order D Motion 
Agreement D Discussion FYI/Update Presentation D Both Readings 

Issue/Recommendation 
Acknowledge and agree to Bylaw revisions set by Midwest Public Risk. Majority of revisions are for the 
purpose of clarifying and providing additional detail(s) as to such things as: 

• Definitions 
• New Member Eligibility 
• Annual Meetings (outline) 
• Quorum Voting Rights 
• Member Termination (requirement to have at least one program with MPR) 
• Board of Directors (voting requirements; election of officers; Board powers; committee 

nominations; quorum framework) 

Bac.kground 
MPR recently completed extensive review of Bylaws. (Bylaws have not been revised since 2009) 

Impact/Analysis: N/A 
... •-IN-AN€1-:Ah--IMP-AG-1'-

Contractor 
Amount of Request/Contract 
Amount Budgeted $ 
Funding Source 
Additional Funds $ 
Ftmding Source 
Encumbered $ 
Funds Remaining $ 

Staff Recommendation, Action, and Date 
Acknowledge and agree to Bylaw revisions set by Midwest Public Risk. 

List of reference documents attached: 
Bylaw with Track Change Document 
Signature Document Page 

150 



ARTICLE 1 

ARTICLE2 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
BYLAWS: OF MIDWEST PUBLIC RlSK OF MISSOURI_ 

DEFJNITfONS . ....,,.,t&..,""" .. 1'"""~fll<.,.,._.,.,.,.,., ............. ,,,., • ..,_.-.., •• ., •••• .,. •• >f.,•ol .. _.•••• ••••'•fl••• •#••• ••,....,._,.-._,. ,._totMr o!oo l/ 

NAME; I"RJJ.'!I,r:CrPAL. OFFICE ......................................................... ~-~--· ~J. 

Section 2.1 Name; Pitine~l'a~ Office ..................................... ..... ......... _,.¥A..... __ :2-.:J 

ARTICLE 3 INTEN'F~ Nfffi' SUSINESS OF INSURANCE ................ ........... __ ...... ~l 

Section 3.1 

Section 3.2 Net Business Of Insurance ............................................ ~.. ... . ... . .•.•. -· l 

Section 3.3 Nnt-w•l?tl!>;fit Organization ................ "" ............................. ".k~···.,-·~-·1 

ARTICLE 4 MPR WS'SOtLilRl POWERS .......................... " ........................... , .. _....__ ... - ..... 3\ 

Section 4.1 MPR. Misso.uri Powers ............................. ·· ~ ·· .................. ~ ............... - .... ) 

ARTICLES MEIYmERS._ ........ - ..................................................... , ..................... ~···~~·-~-- 4~ 

Section 5.1 MemberEJlgill»il!Dty and Admission ................................. ,. ......... - ...... ~.- 4~ 

Section 5.2 Memllletr Rigllts ....................................................................... ~ ............... §5 

Section 5.3 Mem11her <Db ligations .......................... _ ......................... : ........... _ ............ ~6 

Section 5.4 I.ir:tMtabiCES: on Member Liability ................................................. ~-··~· 97. 

Section 5.5 All1'flli3l1 MemJ)er Meeting ........................ -~-· ................................. ~ ...... e 7 
Section 5.6 Specta·E Membership Meeting .................................................... -.. -~,... 1 

Section 5.7 Qt:Kll'tlmr; Voting Rights ......................................................... ~····~-- +S 
s-eetton 5;8 WilffiftfaiW31. .......................................... :-.... , .................................. -:. .•. +~- ··· 
Section 5.9 Termfu.ati(}tll·., ................................................ ..................... - ........ _._._.,. -82 
Section 5.10 Appli~m- ofSections 355.231 to 355.306 of the Act ......• ·-·-~~--~~ l® 

ARTJCI.E 6 BOARD OF IDili.REC'IORS ....... ................................. - ....... ; ............................ 11.@ 

Section 6.1 

Section 6.2 

Section6.3 

Section 6.4 

Section 6.5 

Sedion6.6 

Section 6.7 

Section6.8 

Powers~ El'eenon; Vacancies ................................................. -~--~·---· 10 

Directnr Qelifications.; ....... , ......... _ ... , ...................... _. ...... u ••••• ~ •• , ••••• ~- J.~ 

Director C'a.mpensation and Expenses ..................................... - ... ,... . .,. ~ J 

Beard Officers., ..................... _ ............... ,_ ................................ _ ............... E.~ 

Boardl Pnwelis: ....................................................................................... ++ U 
Comm.iit~ecs ................................................................. ~ ....... -............... _ +* U 
MP'Et Miss0wri Policies and Procedures ............................... _ ..•• _._ -8 14 

151 



ARTICLE 7 PRESIDENT/CEO ........... - .................................................................... +M-4 15 

Section 7.1 PresidentJCEO; Appomtment; Authority ................................... ~ J -1--t .J 5 

ARTICLES COVERAGEOOCUl\imNTS; NDERWRITrNG CONTIUBUTIONS 
..................................................... .. ...................... ~ .. ~· .. .. ;. ......... ~ ........ .................................. .,.. .. .,. ....... , ..... ..-~ .............................. +4 D. 

Section 8.1 Coverage Doeummts ..................................................................... +4 1_5 

Section 8.2 Modification of C&verag~ Documents and Conflicts .................... -14 I 5 

Section 8.3 Coverage Qu~1ions; Appeals and Other Disputes ............... ..... 14 .L' 
Section 8.4 Acceptance and W~awal of Coverages ..................... .. ............. 1-:l i 1j 

Section 8.5 Contn.l>utions: ............................................................................... i 'l l:fl l ·.i 

Section 8.6 Underwriting .................................................................................. -l.fT 17 

Section 8.7 General md Separate Funds .................................. ... ........... ........... H~ I 7 

Section 8.8 Comminglmg ofPr0gram Funds Prohibited ................ ...... ... ......... -l-4 1 7 

Section 8;9 Member Ptivilege .......................... ...... ..... .. ............... ... .... ...... ....... . 1{1 17 

ARTICLE 9 MPR MISSOURI ASSETS .................................. ............ ............. ...... .. I ~~ · I -1 J, 

Section 9.1 

Section 9.2 

Section 9.3 

MPR Missouri Assets ............. .-.............................. .................... l<\ I i I~ 

Excess or Surplus Distn"butions .............. _ ....................................... ++ l R 

Special Assessments ............................... ... .................................... -1718 

ARTICLE 10 STANDARD OF CARE; BOND; INDEMNIFICATION .................... J J.-1 1.2 
Section 10.1 

Section 10.2 

Standard of Care ........................................................................ 17-1 >: 19 

Bond ................................................................................................ -t-81 9 

Section l0£3 Indemnification ............... -·~········ .. ~· .. ..-...~·~··· .. ·"~- · .. ····--• ........... ~ ......... +-g I~ 

ARTICLE t 1 DISSOLUTION AND DlSTRffiUTlON ... ... ..... .... ............... .................... +S 19 

Section 11.1 Dissolution ............................................. .. ......... .. ................ ... ........ l~ I 9 

Section 11.2 Distribution of Assets ..... -................... ............................................ ~?O 

ARTICLE 12 MISCELLANEOUS ...... ........... .. .............. ..................................... .... .... .... +-Q20 

Section 1 2.1 

Section 12.2 

Section 12.3 

Section 12.4 

Section 12.5 

Section 12.6 

Section 12.7 

<IJQ.4-~ll J -1-j;l;IPJ I I • 1\o•O .rJ 5 
AlHl-llliJ7 .21. :!Ul )Q 

!hti}UI-\W!l-1 i 

Intergovernmental Contract ........................................................... ~.Q20 

Governing Law ........... .............. ....... .......... ................................. ... ~.J.)~ Q 

Binding Efi:'ect ................................................................................. .f-1)20. 

Disputes ...................... ....... ., ........................ _ ......................... .......... W20 

Severability ......................... ... .. ... ....................................... .. ....... ... ~20 

Amendment. ................. ..... _ .... ...... ...... ....... ...................................... ll>~1 

Repeal of Prior By~aws: ................................................................ -.. ,t+J.2J 

152 



I 

MIDWEST PUBLIC RISK OF MISSOURI 

BYLAWS 

Date of Adoptiou: --------

Effective Date: July 1, 20~ lQ 

---WHEREAS, it is in the mutuan intetl'~ of the parties hereto to join together to 
establish and to operate a cooperative program of foss conb'o:l and risk managemen~ and to provide 
risk services and risk coverages and other pmgram~ wnt(:h are designed to meet the unique needs 
of governmental entities; and 

---WHEREAS, RSMo. Section 537.620r as amended, authorizes three or more 
Missouri political subdivisions to fonn a not for profiil 'business entity to provide liability and all 
other risk coverages for its members; and 

- --WHEREAS, RSMo. Section 537.6a~ 'further authorizes qualifying govenunental 
entities in Missouri and any other state to join such enlity; and 

- - WHEREAS, aU of the governmental~ entities which are party to these Bylaws 
desire to become members of Midwest Public Risk ofMtssouri ("MPR Missouri") and intend that 
these Bylaws shall constitute a contract among them; 

--- .NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual advantages to be derived 
heretrom and by the execution of these Bylaws as a oomtract, all of the parties hereto agree as 
follows: 

ARTICLE I 
DEFINJttONs-

Unless the context requires otherwise,. the f0ll0rw.ing terms shall have lhe following 
meanings: 

"Act" shall mean RSMo. Chapter 355, the Missowi Nonprofit Corporation Act. 

"Contribution(s)" shall mean any payment ~eqllilredl by MPR Missouri to be paid for the 
receipt by a Member of any MPR Missouri Program M Service, or to satisfy any other Member 
obligations under these By1aws. 

"Coverage Document(s)" shall mean the wrie'!m doeurnents approved by MPR Missouri 
and which are either issued by MPR Missouri o-r pl!ll'ehased through commercial insurance 
companies, which set forth the tenns and conditions of my Program. 

4112<h'l91 J .j,Q~ r 1 
Mltttlfl~~2iJ09 
I,Jiocu~.mhl 

~W,~. 

1 

153 



.. Member(s)" shall mean any governmental entity which is authorized by the statutes or 
other appljcable law of the State of MillSouri to enter int() contracts or other arrangements for the 
purpose of pooling resources for liability and other risk coverages and related services and which 
qualifies as a political subdivision, public governmental body, or quasi-public governmental body 
as specified in RSMo. Section 537.620. The constiruent individual participants in any Member 
entity whose purpose or function is to administer or sponsor such participants as a collective body 
shall not be deemed to be Members ofMPR Missouri, and only such administering or sponsoring 
Member entity shall be entitled to single Member status upon such tenns and conditions as the 
Board of Directors shall determine. 

"Member Representative(s)" shall mean the individual, who shall be either an elected 
official or a full-time employee of a Member, who has been duly appointed by a Member to 
represent tb.e Member's intere.st in MPR Missouri and to carry out the obligations of a Member 
Representative under these Bylaws. 

,, 

"Policy(ies) or Procedure(s)" shall mean any rules or guidelines which may be 
promulgated from time to time by the MPR Missouri Board of Directors or President/CEO which 
are not Coverage Documents and which shall be necessary to carry out the purposes of MPR 
Missouri. 

"Program(s)" shall mean any coverages which are provided through MPR Missouri to its 
Members from time to time including, but not limited to, property and liability, workers' 
compensation, and employee benefits. 

"Resolution(s)" shall mean any ordinance, resolution or other edict or means by which the 
governing body of a Member takes official action on behalf of, or takes official action which is 
intended to be binding upon, the Member. 

"Service(s)" shall mean those services which are provided through MPR Missouri to its 
Members from time to time which are not Programs and which include, but shall not be limited to, 
loss control, risk management, administration, claims adjusting, legal defense, and education. 

2 
~lSl-1 lli l i-4>1J~Jj. l' 
J1lllliAF)- - 1{11 111 

I • unhlfll-il 

154 



ARTICLEl 
NAME; PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Seetion 2.1 Name; Principal Office 

The not for profit business entity that has heretofore been organized and operated as 
MARCIT shalJ hereafter be named Midwest Public Risk ofMissouri ("MPR Missouri~). 

The Board of Directors shaU establish, at a location within the State of Missouri, MPR 
Missouri's principal office. 

ARTICLE3 
INTENT; NOT BUSINESS OF INSURANCE 

Section 3.1 Intent 

It is the intent of the Members that MPR Missouri shall provide comprehensive and 
cooperative Programs and Services to its Members and that the Members shall pay for the costs 
and other obligations of MPR Missouri through Contributions and the utilization of deductibles, 
retentions, purchase of reinsurance, excess insurance, insurance, or other provisions for the 
payment of Member losses and expenses. 

Seetion 3.2 Not Business Of Insurance 

The provision of Programs and Services by MPR Missouri to its Members is not, and shaJJ 
not be deemed to constitute, the transaction of an insurance business, and MPR Missouri is not, 
and shall not be deemed to be, an insurance company or insurer under the laws of any state. 

Section 3.3 Not-for-Profit Organization 

--- MPR . Missouri sbaD be organized aiiO operated as a ·nof.:for-profif corporation 
under Missouri law. No part ofMPR Misso'Url's assets or net income shall inure to the benefit of 
any individual including any director, officer, employee, or Member, except as may be authorized 
in these Bylaws and allowed by Jaw; provided, however, that MPR Missouri shall be authorized to 
pay aU expenses incurred in furtherance of the purposes set forth in these Bylaws, including 
reimbursement to directors, officers, employees, Members or others acting on behalf of MPR 
Missouri. 

ARTICLE4 
MPR MISSOURI POWERS 

Section 4.1 MPR Missouri Powers 

MPR Missouri shall have the following powers to carry out the purposes set forth in these 
Bylaws: 

3 

' U il~ll-\! 

~_2lll4!.8 ~ ~ 

155 



(a) to establish and implement educational, technical assistaiWe and other activities 
relating to risk management and loss control; 

(b) to establish reasonable and necessary loss control policies~ procedures and 
programsto befo1lowed by Members; 

(c) to establish underwriting and claims adjusting standards and procedures; such 
services may be perfonned by MPR Missouri staff or MPR Missouri may contract with others for 
such services, including lega·l defense; 

(d) to retain staff, agents and independent contractOis and to provide for an employee 
benefits program for MPR Missouri employees; 

(e) to acquire, lease, hold or dispose of real or personal property; 

(f) to invest funds as authorized by Jaw; 

(g) to collect and administer funds as needed and, wiithin prudent reserving and 
actuarial standards, to set aside sufficient cash reserves for the paymem of claims and expenses; 

(h) to emblisb rules for the calculation and payment ofConttibufions by Members or 
Member employees, in tuding p.enruties for late payments; 

(i) to assume, cede and sell risk; 

(j) to sue and be sued; 

(k) to enter into contracts, including, but not limited to contracts with state pools 
located in other states which assist MPR Missouri in carrying out its powers hereunder; 

(I) to eStablish rules for the reimbursement of members~ of' the Board of Directors, 
officers, committee members and otbers fur reasonable and necessary expenses while tending to 
official business on behalf of MPR Missomi; 

(m) to determine deductible and retention levels til· c -t'und d g and tlle 
amount of risk to be retained by MPR Missouri or Members and the amount of risk to be 
transferred to others; 

(n) to borrow money or issue bonds or other financial obligations to ftmd MPR 
Missouri Programs and Services; 

(o) to purchase or provide fidelity bond coverage or other risk coverage for officers, 
Directors and employees of MPR Missouri; 

(p) to be subrogated to the rights of its Members and to seek recovery in the name of its 
Members from any person or entity responsible for a claim or loss; 

(q) to declare and pay dividends and refunds as allowed by law; 

4,<!1>1-:!~ I I ..(}\}J\1 I I 
hH!\1\lf!' ·*-2 .lil\>1< 
Jil(k•mRllllhl 

~J.2&W::OJ~ 

4 

156 



(r) to determine Coverage Documents and Policies and Procedures which are 
necessary, desirable or expedient to provide the Services and Programs authorized by these 
Bylaws; 

(s) to perform such other activities which are necessary, expedient, implied or 
desirable to carry out the purposes of MPR Missouri; and 

{t) to perform any such other acts which are allowed by law to be perfonned under the 
Act. 

ARTICLES 
MEMBERS 

Section 5.1 Member Eligibility and AdmJssion 

---Subject to the payment of appropriate Contributions and under such terms and 
conditions as the Board of Directors may estab]is~ new Members may be admitted with the 
approval of the majority of the total membership of the Board of Directors. Only those 
governmental entities which meet the Member definition in these Bylaws-tuHi4l'l¥ ~ · e:; • · ct~l t 
fl e I I i · 0 I ll I i U. ri ' UU TO 

e · · 1 1 b · ~ ~ h · · 1 • • J these Bylaws (or have otherwise 
assured MPR Missouri of their obligation to comply with these Bylaws) may be accepted for 
membership. A governmental entity located in any state of the United States other than the State 
of Missouri that is eligible to become a member of a governmental pool that is located in the 
governmental entity's own state and that is party to a Risk Sharing Agreement with MPR Missouri 
shall not be eligible to become a Member of MPR Missouri. The Board of Directors of MPR 
Missouri may delegate authority to review and accept or reject applications for membership by 
written agreement to such persons or entity and in such manner as it may detennine to be 
consistent with the best interests of MPR Missouri. 

Section 5.2 Member Rights 

---The rights of Members, which shall be exercised by the Member Representative of 
each Member, shall be as follows: 

(a) to vote on all matters which shalJ be presented to Members for a vote at any 
Member meeting; 

(b) to elect, in accordance with the procedures described in these Bylaws, eligible 
candidates to the Board of Directors; 

(c) to apply for and receive and participate in Programs and Services for which the 
Member is qua1ified upon such tenns and conditions as the Board of Directors shall detennine; and 

(d) to exercise all other rights and privileges as are described in these Bylaws and as are 
allowed under the Act. 

4 '-1~14~Qa9.-l-l 
Jaltl!lti)'~OlW 

&tK>Umu•t~-a 
-l ) • z 11.0,.2.~ 

5 

157 



Section 5.3 Member Obligations 

- The obligations of Members shalJ be as follows: 

(a) to continuously maintain participation in no less than one MPR Missouri Program 
.t·•r-:tt-•: ra;eJ.\J~-iil -lt!a'ii ·HHt< -\4Pl{ -.\-ll<i~Htt:"'-'_· '·~·~: 

(b) to designate in writing, by the chief administrative officer of the Member, a 
Member Representative. MPR Missouri shall not be required to contact any other individual 
except the Member Representative for any action or notification whiCh may be required by these 
Bylaws or MPR Missomi rules. All notices to or agreements with the Member Representative shall 
~ binding upon the Member. A Member may change the Member Representative by giving 
written notice to MPR Missouri; 

(c) to pron ptly ake all C nrributions and other payments whicn are due to MPR 
Missouri at such times and in such amounts as shall be required by MPR Missouri; 

(d) with reasonable notice and during nonnal work hours,. to permit MPR Missouri and 
its agents, officers and employees access to all facilities and records of the Member, including but 
not limited to financial records, as they relate to the operations of MPR Missouri; 

(e) to report immediately to MPR Missouri, as required by relevant Program Coverage 
Documents and Policies and Procedures, all occurrences which could reasonably be expected to 
result in a claim against the Member, its agents, officers or employees or for losses to Member 
property, within the scope of the Programs provided by MPR Missouri; 

(f) to cooperate fully with MPR Missouri claims adjustors, agents, employees and 
attorneys in the investigation and settlement of any claim or lawsuit within the scope of Programs 
or Services provided by MPR Missouri, and to acknowledge that MPR Missouri has the final 
authority to -select legal defense counsel for any lawsuit brought under the Progfams provided h.y 
MPR Missouri to the Member; 

(g) to implement, as finances and circumstances permit, MPR Missouri recommended 
risk management and loss control policies and procedures, and also to permit Member officials and 
employees to participate in MPR Missouri sponsored conferences and seminars; 

(h) to report to MPR Missouri, as required by MPR Missouri Program Coverage 
Documents or Policies and Procedures, the addition of new servic~ programs or facilities, the 
reduction or expansion of existing operations and facilities, or other facts that could reasonably be 
expected to a..ffect the Member's Joss experiences or create potential risks; 

(i) to provide MPR Missouri as promptly as possible with all requested information 
needed for determining Member loss exposures and Contributions; 

(j) to take an active role in the business of MPR Missouri. including assignment of 
personnel to serve on various MPR Missouri committees; and 

4,q4 -2!1 II {l921.J, I I 
Jitn<JII~)' 2~ 3\){19 
Dlluunwttl 2 
4Jil2-:llm.Q.IIQ9.~ 

6 

158 



(k) to comply with aU tenns and conditions of these Bylaws,. Coverage Documents and 
Policies and Procedures .. 

---Except as expressly set forth to the contrary in these Bylaws or MPR Missouri's 
Articles of IncorporalioD~ the rights and obligations of Members shall be identical in all respects. 

Sedion 5.4 LimJtations on Member Liability 

---Except as specifically required by MPR Missouri's Articles of Incorporation, 
Bylaws, or by law, no Member shall be responsible for any claim in tort or contract made against 
any other MembeT solely on account of a Member's participation in MPR Missouri. By executing 
these Bylaws, the Members have not created between or among themselves any relationship or 
partnership, suretyship, indemnification or responsibility fur debts or claims against any other 
Member. These Bylaws shah oot relieve any Member of any obligation or responsibility imposed 
upon it by law, except to the extent that actua1 and timely perfonnance by MPR Missouri satisfies 
such obligation or respoosi'bility in whole or in part. 

Section 5.5 Annual Me.mber Meeting 

--- There shall be one annual membership meeting of MPR Missouri tH4llfHIHt,trt.~ (•>Jl 
w,, ~ Jis-t ~\\ ·~h dn .1 r ... I ,r, 1 c each year at M l K- ~l ~ un-: Fitl~a'H~ ~ . . tf h 
t:f!il . · time and place H. 1. fl be designated by the Board of Directors. Notice of 511ch meeting 
shall be sent by first class mail to Member Representatives at least ten (1 0) days in advance of the 
meeting. Failure of any Member Representative to receive such notice shall not nullify any action 
taken at an annual membership meeting. Notice of such meeting may also be given by electronic 
means. 

--- The President/CEO shall prepare the agenda for the annual membership meeting 
and sbaJl include on such agenda any item requested by five (5) or more Member Representatives 

-at -ieast-tweaty (20) days priel"-to the-meeting. Any subjeet-relatfng te MPR Missouri-may be 
discussed at the annual membership meeting. 

- - - .At the annual meeting, the President/CEO and chief financial officer of MPR 
Missouri shall report to the Members on the activities and financial condition ofMPR Missouri. 

Section 5.6 Special Membership Meeting 

---A special Membership meeting may be called by a majority of the total 
membership of the Board of Directors or upon the petition of one-third (1/3) of the Members 
acting through their Member Representatives. A special membership meeting must be held within 
sixty (60) calendar days after receipt of a valid petition; provided, however, that if the annual 
membership meeting is scheduled to occur within sixty(60) days after receiptoftberequest for the 
special membership meeting,. then no separate speciaJ membership meeting shall be held. If a 
valid petition is received within sixty ( 60) calendar days prior to the annual membership meeting, 
the topic or topics contained in the- petition shall be placed on the agenda for that meeting. 

4324~1-Hi02Q,.I I 
Jo~UHII"'.;!,'I, ·20M 

'"" l'l 01~ 
48lSHJ9.l.I!.:U~ 

7 

159 



- - - - -Notice of a special membership meeting shall be mailed. by first class mail, to each 
Member Representative at least ten ( 1 0) days in advance of the meeting date. Failure of any 
Member Representative to receive such notice shall not nullify any action taken at a special 
membership meeting. 

- - -- Only those matters which are within the purpose or purposes described in the 
meeting notice may be considered at a special membership meeting. The Board of Directors shall 
establish the time and place for all special membership meetings. 

Section 5. 7 Quorum; Voting Rights 

A quorum of at lea ... ·r el ~ ., u- H-11 l'..l pc ·ct ? " Member 
Representatives shall be required to conduct business at a special or annual membership meeting. 
No absentee or proxy voting shall be allowed at any membership meeting. Each Member shall be 
entitled to one vote that must be cast by the Member Representative _ ~!-, •r t~tl • 

Minutes 11{1/ltt meeting slmllrecord /row manv members q[MPR MO exis1at the time o(tlte 
meeting and howmam (iu wltole number,,.) cou:,·tilutetl (/te req11iretl twentv perce11t. 

- -The Chair ofthe Board of Directors shall preside at all membership meetings and, if 
the Chair is attending the me-eting in the capacity of Member Representative, shall be entitled to 
vote on all matters coming before the meeting. 

Section 5.8 Withdrawal 

A Member may withdraw from membership in MPR Mi owi as of the end of 
MPR Missoud's fiscal year provided that such Member has given MPR Missouri at least ninety 
(90) days' prior written notice of its intention to withdraw and provided further that such Member 
ceases participation in all MPR Missouri Programs and Services as of the date of withdrawal. 
Except for withdrawing Members which have retained rights pursuant to a written agreement with 

- the Board ofDirectors at the·time ofwithdrawal, a withdrawing Member shall forfeit ali rights to 
any refwtds, dividends, or claims upon MPR Missouri 's assets upon dissolution of MPR Missouri 
which may be declared or determined subsequent to the date of the Member's withdrawal. 

- ---A notice of Member withdrawal shall be accompanied by a Resolution adopted by 
the governing body of the Member which authorizes the withdrawal of the Member from MPR 
Missouri. Such notice shall be final and binding. No notice of Member withdrawal shall be 
effective unless it is accompanied by such governing body Resolution. 

-----A withdrawing Member shall continue to be responsible for all obligations after the 
date of withdrawal that relate to the term of membership including, but not limited to, obligations 
for special assessments. The withdrawing Member shall be subject to all MPR Missouri Policies 
and Procedures pertaining to any obligation, claim or lawsuit covered by MPR Missouri. 

- ----- Any Member who withdraws from MPR Missouri without complying with the 
foregoing obligations shall be obligated to pay to MPR Missouri liquidated damages equal to 25% 
of the Member's annual Contributions paid by such Member in its final full year of participation in 
MPR Missouri. Member agrees to pay such liquidated damages within twenty (20) calendar days 

•I !hi I ll 411J,?U~I I 

JIIIIII!IP..~(IJil,l 

Dnt>Wti~Jll l 
"-!! ' :ll22!!;!180<J. <; 

8 

160 



following receipt of the computation of the amount due. MPR Missouri and M~mber agree that 
the failure of Member to withdraw from MPR Missouri in accordance with the foregoing 
procedures shalJ cause damage to MPR Missouri in amounts which it is oot possible calculate at 
this time and that these liquidated damages are a good faith estimate ofthe damages as to which the 
Member shall be obJigated to MPR Missouri. 

Section 5.9 Termination 

(a) Termination 

~--- - ·A Member may be terminated from membership in MPR Missouri tor cause upon a 
majority vote of the· total membership of the Board of Directors. The effective date of such 
tennination shall be as determined by the Board of Directors, except that such termination shall 
take effect no later than ninety (90) days following the Board's decision to terminate. For 
purposes of this Section, cause shall be deemed to include the fo11owing: 

( 1) fa.ilure to maintain at least one Program with MPR Missouri-t f · nu:a ·· r.; w 
~~~ ~ rpH un_ ~i $-ffOO·l-M~-Mi~ Ufi ; 

(2) failure to make any Contribution due to MPR Missouri in accordance with 
the directives of the MPR Missouri Board of Directors; 

(3) failure to undertake or to continue risk management or loss control 
measures recommended by MPR Missouri; 

(4) failure to allow MPR Missouri and its agents reasonable access to all 
facilities and records of the Member which are necessary for the proper administration of 
MPR Missouri; 

(5:) failure ~to cooperate fully with MPR Missouri officerS; ccempl~ees, 
attorneys, claims adjusters or other agents; 

(6) failure to file required reports with MPR Missouri or the filing of a false 
claim or report or any conduct which impairs the ability of MPR Missouri to carry out its 
purposes; 

(7) adverse loss experience with respect to the property and liability Program or 
the workers• compensation Program, as determined by the Board ofDirectors; 

(8) breach of any of Member's obligations under these Bylaws, MPR Missouri 
Coverage Documents, or MPR Missouri Policies and Procedures; 

(9) failure of a Member, the elected governing body of the Member, or of other 
personnel of the Member to exercise the Member's powers or fulflll the Member's duties 
in accordance with the constitution or statutes of the state which has enabled the creation of 
the Member and which has prescribed the Member's classification as a governmental 
entity; er 

;fll-?•1 9 t H t969, 1 I 
JUitOOF}I~ 1)(111 

~)ilt:IHI~ 

4&39· 8?:!8-11.1!.0!!.~ 

9 

161 



(10) a Member becomes ineligible for MPR Missouri Membership pursuant to§ 
5.1 of these Bylaws; provided that such Member may not be terminated during the Program 
year if sucb Member s ineligibility is established after the first day of a Program yea, .. 

(b) Notification; Hearin& Obligations 

- A Me1nher shaH be terminated immediately and without fUrther n tice upon the 
failure of a Member to maintain at least one Program or receive any Services from MPR Missouri. 
A Member shall be tenninated with nol Jess than thirty (30) days written notice upon the 
determination by the Board of Directors that such Member has adverse loss experience. In all 
other cases, a Member may be terminated only after written notice sent by certified or first class 
mail from the President/CEO of MPR Misso~ri stating the reasons for termination. Such notice 
shall provide the Member thirty (30) calendar days to cure the grounds for termination. The 
Member may request a hearing before the Board of Directors prior to the final termination of the 
Member's membership in MPR Missouri. The President/CEO ofMPR Missowi shall present the 
case for termination to the Board of Directors, and the Member shall have reasonable opportunity 
to prese)lt its case to the Board of Directors. 

--The decision by a majority of the total members of the Board of Directors to 
tenninate a Member after notice and hearing or after the failure ofthe Member to cure the grOtmds 
given for termination shall be final and shall not be subject to appeal in any forum. The 
tennination shall take effect thirty (30) calendar days after the decision to terminate is approved by 
the Board of Directors. 

--A terminated Member shall forfeit all rights to any MPR Missouri refunds, 
dividends, or distribution of assets upon dissolution atter the effective date of tennioation. Any 
tenniilated Member shall continue to be bound to those same continuing obligationS as to which a 
withdrawing Member is obligated in accordance with Section 5.8 of these Bylaws. 

Section S.HJ Application of Sections 355.231 to 355.306 of the Act 

The provisions of Sections 355.231 to 355.306 of the Act shall apply to MPR Missouri 
except to the extent the provisions of such Sections are inconsistent with the Articles of 
Incorporation of MPR Missouri or these Bylaws, provided, however, that no Section allowing 
proxy voting shall apply to MPR Missouri. 

ARTICLE6 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Section 6.1 Powers; Election; Vacancies 

---The Board of Directors shall consist of eleven (l l) members. The Board of 
Directors shall adopt rules for the election of Directors by the Member Representatives and for 

4g24 ?Q II -{>1,124 j l 
Jlil\ua~ n,-,;wn~,~ 

JO 

162 



appointment to fiJI Director vacancies by the Board of Directors, provided that the following 
conditions are :fu)filled: 

(a) at least two mem}lets of the Board of DiEectors shall be from the h n · · largest 
Missouri Members as measured by total contributions paid in MPR Missouri's most recent fiscal 
year; 

(b) each Member Representative shall be entitled to one vote for each Director position 
to be filled; 

(c) Directors shaJJ serve three year, staggered tenns provided that no Director may 
serve more than two consecutive three-year tenns or a -totaJ oi six consecutive yeaTs. Board service 
by individuals appointed to fil l the remainder of an unexpired term shall not be considered for 
purposes of these limitations; 

(d) Directors shall assume office at the end of the annual membership meeting 
foHowing election; 

(e) by majority vote of the total number of serving Directors, the Board of Directors 
shall appoint quaJified individuals to fill vacancies on the Board of Directors for the remainder of 
any unexpired term; 

(g) the Board of Directors shall adopt rules for the nomination of qualified candidates 
to run for election to the Board ofDirec.tors. 

Section 6.2 Director_Q_ualifications 

AU Directors shall be fu11 time employees of a Member. Any Director who fails to 
meet this requirement or whose Member entity withdraws or whose membership in MPR Missouri 
is tenninated as provided io these Bylaws shall immediately forfeit the Director's position. All 
directors shall meet the requirements of the Act. 

Section 6.3 Director Compensation and Expenses 

---Directors shalt serve without compensation. Directors' reasonable and necessary 
expenses related to service on the Board of Directors shall be paid or reimbursed by MPR 
Missouri. 

Section 6.4 Board Officen 

, , !! ; -<~ uH1tit>l I 
Jauumy -n,~w 

flnlliJIHillll-2 

m r:ll9; ·' ~~ 

11 

163 



- -----The Chair shall preside at all Board of Directors meetings and shall be entitled to 
vote on aU matters brought before the meeting. The Chair shall also, with the approva1 of the 
Board, appoint all committee members. The Board may also authorize the Chair to represent the 
interests ofMPR Missouri before such organizations as the Board sba11 designate. The Vice Cba"r 
shall act in the Chair's absence. 

The Secretary shall prepare, or cause to be prepared, the official minutes of aU 
meetings ofthe Board ofDirectors and of the Members, and shall authenticate all MPR Missouri 
official records. 

The Treasurer shall prepare or cause to be prepared an accurate accounting of all 
MPR Missouri assets and liabilities and all receipts and disbursements. The Treasurer shall 
perfonn the duties generally incident to the office of Treasurer. 

In the case of a vacancy in any office, the Board of Directors shall, at the Board of 
Directors' next regular meeting, appoint a qualified Director to fill the unexpired term. No 
individual may serve more than three c-Onsecutive one year terms in the same office position. 

Section 6.5 Board Powers 

Except as otherwise required by law, MPR Missouri's Articles oflncorporation. or 
these Bylaws, all corporate powers of MPR Missouri shall be exercised by or under the authority 
of, and the affairs of MPR Missouri shall be managed under the direction of, the Board of 
Directors. The Board of Directors shall have the authority and power to take all steps and actions 
necessary, desirable or expedient to fulfill the obligations and objectives contained in these 
Bylaws. The enumeration of any specific duty or power is not to be construed as a limitation upon 
the right to exercise any other powers or duties. 

Subject to any applicable laws, and upon such terms as the Board of Directors shaJl 
establish in accordance with Section 9.2 of these Bylaws, the Board ofDirectors may, but shall not 
be required to, declare refunds or dividends to Members~ t ·d Jty 

4li' ·J ciJl H>•IZ~ ll 
Janul>f7 ;!.;)., lli\19 
[),..,,.,~,1 ·2 

1K.l'H2ZI!~80'J.~ 

( · ~ · Ltb ·i tl ' 

12 

164 



~I ·I rc_ r~tl-11 , :.~ll iclc lih!. ... t(! M t ·rs. Except for withdrawing Members which have retained 
rights pursuant to a written agreement with the Board of Directors at the time of withdrawal, any 
Member which withdraws prior to the declaration of any refund or dividend from the Program as 
to which the refund or dividend is based shaU surrender aH rights to such refund or dividend. Any 
dividend or refund allocable to a Member shall first be used to offset and reduce the amounts, if 
any, which may be due and unpaid to MPR Missouri fiom such Member. 

_t l'll~ • tff' IH~ -!ilur~t · :>HI -1~ · '1-!aFiH . •f mun ~'H 
fl.uhl it:c_·R-isk--t-tf:+-,aH~H'>.-h)li~-_tt ~\~>1 -·>w, ·<'·1\rpt•m~ i t~lH ::MP-K·-h·Lin!-lAr:;:.r,.-1-f~t-he sharing--of-fi-sJ... !i-•r; 
her h·l ' t+l4-fli.ffiffif- Y~\\!fli ~ t'l-W n 1 f 1 h~R' uft---ttn VlPR K<~n:-t :. tml -;lwll thl lill c+t~ ,-) ' ·l!-o 

nhligt-tttnm-HHHler the Jh-Tk 5.;h;tnll.~ -\~!-h'efltt:•ni-. - 1 .-hc:~ -~i~HrdTIJL~ B · I ofD. '1.:!;1\~~ shall approve 
and execute a management and administration agreement with Midwest Public Risk ("MPR") for 
implementation of the Risk Sharing Agreement 

The Board t~LQjr~c Cll;,ltmay entcrinto -siHHL-Jr intedocal agreements ,.,_.id1 :\:IPl~ l,an-.cts .for 
other types of coverage risks, and may enter into .!> ttllllm interlocal agreements with other 
appropriate entities, subject to applicable Jaw, at the discretion ofthe Board of Directors. 

- - -- - -The Board of Directors shaJI select a qualified public accounting firm to audit, on 
an annual basis, MPR Missouri's financial records in conformance with generally accepted 
accounting principles, relevant laws and these Bylaws. A copy of the audit shall be distributed as 
required by law. 

--- - -The Board of Directors shall adopt an annual budget in a form and manner 
detennined by the Board of Directors. 

-- --The Board of Directors shall adopt rules governing the conduct of Directors and 
Director meetings, including, but not Hmited to, an attendance policy. Directors may only be 
removed by the majority vote of a quorum of a meeting of the Members. 

Section 6.6 Committees 

---The Board of Directors may create advisory and technical committees as deemed 
necessary or expedient. The Board of Directors shall determine committee duties, number of 
members and members_hip qualifications and tenns. .eAfl-sh~;~r~~ .. ye<w. ·nM ·haU · tlY 
intl~vit.ftrftl-·sel"\'e -Hmr'e lhHn,~~' t{)H'i •H$~'Hft~'t'--)"ii<H~t~r1-~ ·hc ~<-ttllt'--~1-mtmillee:-The Chair shall, with 
the approval of the Board of Directors, appoint all committee members and committee chairs~ 
lht• -t'f.iSt'-t il :"'01\\lll~lttlt' v' Ht.-"-Utlloi~s . I ~1tL appt·>H)h11~H"..;l-Hi ll-he--~~1f ·thl:' -t'~lll i1 i I 1Jer-t li ;.ll · t~ -\~W~pi+t'f-~-+~lln, 

13 
'IS -.1<11-l ut , t-1 
lill llt!ll , . OIW 

I '<' II 1c111,l 
4·K < ·892 • C)ti(I'J,~ 

165 



tt · .l • 1 n 1 . At least one Member of the Board of Directors 
No committee shall possess or exercise the authority or power of 

Section 6.7 'MP.R Missouri Polides and Procedures 

The Board of Directors shall adopt Policies and Procedures, not in conflict with 
these Bylaws, that are necessary or expedient or desirable for the operation and ·functioning of 
MPR Miss()uri. All Members, Directors, officers, employees and other service providers shall be 
subject to and adhere to such Policies and Procedures. 

Section 6.8 Meetings 

-The Annual Meeting of the Board of Directors shall be held immediately following 
the annual Member meeting for the purpose of eJecting MPR Missouri officers and transacting 
sucb other business as may properly be brought before the meeting. In addition to such Annual 
Meeting,. the Board of Directors shall hold regular meetings on the first Wednesday of February, 
April, June and Dec~nb.er of each year at I 0:00 a. m. or at such other time and place as may be 
designated by the Board of Directors. Special Board of Directors' meetings may be called by the 
Chair or by 113 of the Directors. Any topic may be discussed at a regular meetin~ only topics on 
the agenda may be discussed at a special meeting. Directors and Member Representatives shall 
receive at least five (5) days' written notice of all Board of Directors meetings, which notice may 
be electronic. 

-- All Board of Directors meetings, except those permitted by law to be closed, shall 
be open to the public, and all votes shall be public except as otherwise permitted or required by law 
or these Bylaws. Unless notice is provided to the contrary, all meetings of the Board of Directors 
shall be held at MPR Missouri's principal office. 

---Except as required by law or these Bylaws, a majority vote of the Directors present 
at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall be required to approve aU motions or other actions 
of the Board. 

4/G4-P!-I·I-!>IlJ<! -II 

Juntlf\1')' 12. :.liJI)l) 
Dnulllneul '? 
4839-11928.,08(1<} -~ 

14 

166 



ARTICLE7 
PRES.IDENT/CEO 

Section 7.1 President/CEO; AppoiBtment; Authority 

- - - There is hereby continued the position of President/Chief Executive Officer 
("President/CEO,)- who shall be appointed and may be removed by a majority of the total 
membership of the Board of Directors. The President/CEO shall be an officer of MP.R Missouri. 

---The PresidenfiCEO shall be responsible to the Board of Directors for the proper 
administration and conduct of all Programs and Services offered by MPR Missouri. All agents, 
employees and independent contractors shall report to the Board of Directors through the 
President/CEO and shall be supervised by the President/CEO. 

--Subject to any limitations adopted by the Board of Directors, the President/CEO is 
authorized to settle all claims or cases involving the Programs provided by MPR Missouri. 

-·--The President/CEO shall prepare and submit to the Board of Directors, for 
consideration prior to the start of each fiscal year, a recoromended budget for the forthcoming year. 
The Presjdent/CEO shall attest to all official records, sign contracts, select appoint and supervi,se 
aJI employees, implement the adopted annual budget, and do all other things customary to this 
position. 

---The President/CEO shall be a member of aU standing and special committees and 
shall be entitled to attend all Board of Directors and committee meetings with a right to speak but 
not to vote on issues. The President/CEO may be excused from Board or committee meetings 
pertaining to the President/CEO's employment or job perfonnance. 

ARTICLES 
- COVERAGE:DOCUMENT-S;-UNDERWRITING-CONTRIBUTIONS 

Seedon 8.1 Coverage Documents 

---MPR Missouri Programs shall be descn'bed in separate Coverage Documents. 
MPR Missouri may add, delete, or modify the Coverage Documents for such Programs as the 
Board of Directors may detennine. All MPR Missouri Programs shall be considered excess only 
and not primary or contributory when the Member has a valid and collectable insurance policy or 
other similar protection against a loss covered by MPR Missouri . 

Section 8.2 Modification of Coverage Documents and Confticts 

---Coverage Documents may be modified by the President/CEO to meet specific 
Member or MPR Missouri needs and shall be provided to the Member. Such Coverage 
Documents shall be subject to all of the te.nns and conditions of these Bylaws and MPR Missouri 
Policies and Procedures. In case of any conflict between the Coverage Documents and these 
Bylaws, these Bylaws shall be controlling. 

48-M-:!IJ.H ,1.1 II. I 
JmlU&I~~~~ 

•.IJ11 '0 1 )1 111• 1 ll~ 

ID' . '1!ll ·O o• ..s 

15 

167 



Section 8.3 Cover age Questions; Appeals and Otber Disputes 

-The President/CEO shall decide all questions of coverage in specific cases. A 
Member may appeal the PresidenUCEO' s decision to the Board of Directors. Notification of such 
appeal must be taken no later than sixty (60) calendar days after the date of the President/CEO's 
deci.sion. The Member shall have the appartunity·to app.enr and present evidence to the Board of 
Directors. The Board of Directors' decision, by a majority of the total membership ofthe Board of 
Directors, shaH be final and not subject to appeal in any fonnn. 

----- The Board of Directors shall decide all other disputes between MPR Missouri and 
any Member involving these Bylaws, Coverage Documents or Policies and Procedures. The 
Board of Directors' decision, by a majority of the total membership of the Board of Directors, shall 
be final and not subject to appeal in any forum. 

Section 8.4 Acceptance and Withdrawal of Coverages 

---No Member shall receive any Program or Services unless the Member's request for 
such Program or Services is accompanied by <: h rtl c f th i Jl s c IIJJCO(il t~ n1s'U · 

) · r a Resolution adopted by its governing body expressing the governing body's intention to 
secure the Program or Service from MPR Missouri . 

. ·- Any Member may withdraw from, and cease participation in, any MPR Missouri 
Program or Service at the end of any contract year by giving at least ninety (90) days' notice, in 
writing, of its intention to withdraw. In the case of any such withdrawal from a Program, except 
for withdrawing Members which have retained rights pursuant to a written agreement with the 
Board of Directors at the time of withdrawal, the withdrawing Member shall forfeit all rights to 
any refunds, dividends or payments in dissolution which may be declared subsequent to the date of 
withdrawal with respect to the Member's past participation in the Program. A Member's request 
for withdrawal shall specifically state which Program or Service the Member desires to withdraw 
from and must be accompanied by a Resolution adopted by its governing body which expresses the 
governing body's intention to withdraw. Such notice shall be final and binding. Failure to submit 
such a governing body Resolution shall have the effect of voiding the notice of withdrawal as 
though such notice were not given. 

A withdrawing Member from any Program shall continue to be responsible for all 
obligations after the date of withdrawal that relate to the prior coverage under the Program, 
including, but not Jimited to, the obligation to satisfy any special assessments. The withdrawing 
Member shall also be subject to all MPR Missouri rules pertaining to any obligation, claim or 
lawsuit covered by MPR Missouri. 

-- ·----Any Member which withdraws from any Program or Service and fails to provide 
the required ninety (90) days' notice of intention to withdraw shaH pay liquidated damages equal 

16 
4lt2ol 1"11-HW"' I I 
Jnnmn~-?.~. Jf~l\1 

168 



to 25% of the Program' s annual premium contribution paid by the Member in the prior year, 
except for withdrawing Members which have retained their rights pursuant to a written agreement 
with the Hoard of Oilre-ctors at the time of withdrawal. The Member agrees to pay such liquidated 
damages within twenty (20) calendar days after receipt of a bill. MPR Missouri and the Member 
agree that it is not possibJ.e to calculate the damage to MPR Missouri which may be caused by the 
breach of this condi tion and that the foregoing percentage constitutes liquidated damages which 
are a good faith estimate by MPR Missouri and the Member. The Board of Directors, at its 
discretion, may shorten 'the ninety (90) days' notice period as it deems appropriate, provided that it 
shall have previously given written notice of such change to all of the Members. 

Section 8.5 Contributions 

- --MPR Missouri Programs and Services shall be funded by Contn"butions from its 
Members and Member employees for those Pmgrams and Services in which Members desire to 
participate. The Board of Directors shaH determine when Contributions are due and may impose 
charges for late payments:. Each Member's account shall be reviewed on an annual basis. 

Seetion 8.6 Underwriting 

- -----'"'--- cContributions fur Programs and Services paid by Members and their employees 
shaiJ be determined in accordance -with underwriting guidelines approved by the Board of 
Djrectors. Underwriting guidelines may be based upon any factor or combination of factors which 
relate to potential losses and which will produce sufficient income to pay losses and related 
administrative expenses. Underwriting guidelines shall be reviewed periodicaiJy to insure that 
they meet the stated objectives. 

Section 8. 7 GeneraJ and Separate Funds 

---Contributions from Members shall be paid into a general fund. Monies shall be 
- -:. -paid out of the general fund to s\leh separate Progr-am ftmfl~Fas •tne Board of E>freefors =shall 

determine. Each separate Program shall have its own separate fund. 

Section 8.8 Commingling of Program Funds Prohibited 

---'Contributions paid and any assets attributable thereto by Members for any MPR 
Missouri Program shan not be used or devoted to any pwpose other than to pay losses and 
expenses reJated to the specific Program, including any Program Fund established pursuant to any 
risk sharing agreement, for which the Contributions were paid. 

Section 8.9 Member Privilege 

---The Board of Directors shall establish rules which shall govern and determine the 
settlement of claims or lawsuits covered by MPR Missouri Programs, provided that the Member 
may reject recommended settlements. If a Member exercises this privilege to reject a 
recommended settlement, the Member shall thereafter be responsible for all damages, expenses 
and costs, of every kind and description~ without limitation, that exceed the rejected settJ.ement and 
accrued loss adjustment expenses through the date of rejection by the Member. 

~loi?•I -~III • L·h"'l'M ~ 

J.\UUil~:-'~-2-, }11(11) 

~"'<illlt'llt-2 
~.332:_~9ZI! · IJ_§QQ,5 

17 

169 



ARTJCL:E9 
MPR MISSOURI ASSETS 

Section 9.1 MPR Missouri Assets 

- -·-All Contributions7 momes., andl other assets, including interest or other investment 
earnings thereon paid by Members to MPR Mis-souri, and any other assets obtained in any other 
manner by MPR Missouri, shall lYe the property of 'MPR Missouri. No Member shall have any 
right or claim to such MPR Missouri assets indudin& but not limited to, any excess or surplus 
ftmds held by MPR Missouri, except slllch that are authorized specifically by MPR Missouri' s 
Articles of Incorporation, these Bylaws-, CYr by resolution of the Board of Directors. All assets of 
MPR Missouri, including but not limited to, any excess or surplus funds held by MPR Missouri, 
may be used for MPR Missouri purposes in such manner as the Board of Directors deems 
appropriate. 

Section 9.:Z Excess or Surplus Distributions 

Provided that all statutory and regulatory requirements are complied with, including but 
not limited to prior approval from the Mrssouri Division of Workers' Compensation in the event of 
a refund from th Workers Compen ation Pr gram to its Members. the 13oard of Directors 11 r 
'it~lt>· i~~lft>lwn may determine to make distributions of excess or surplus · ds from any Program 
to suc11 Program's Members- ·,,, -.uFh nwtnlt.·F ns Jhe Ht-lYinl .shall ·t.kJ t:>rmi 1 

I I Lb ri Y, d c nin · > • ll lu 
t su > > •r m: em i ll en nl id osL u ic · k a s ud 

11 n · · )J > Such distributions shall be limited to (a) Members which were active 
participants in good standing in such Program throughout the period for which a distribution was 
declared and which remain- active participants in such Program at the time a distribution is paid, 
and (b) any former Members which have retained the right to excess or surplus distributions 

_ pursyant to a writtc.m agreem~t with the Board of Directors. 

As described ill "SectioJJ 6.5 Board Powers" the Board of Directors, hv writtett 
agreement, mar delegate tire amltol'irv to dedn,. reftmd. · or dividends to numbel's to the MPR 
Executive Commillee. 

Section 9.3 Special Assessments 

If, at any time, in the opinion of the Board of Directors, MPR Missouri's assets are 
insufficient to meet anticipated obligations for any Program or Service offered by MPR Missouri, 
the Board of Directors shall develop a financia~ plan to restore MPR Missouri's financial integrity. 
The Board may direct Members to pay a special assessment to eliminate such insufficiency 
provided that the Member was a participant at any time during the MPR Missouri fiscal year in the 
Program or Service which incurred the insofficiency. Each Member sball be assessed its pro rata 
share of the insufficiency based upon its relative percentage of the total Contributions or fees paid 
by all Members for the Program or Service as to which the insufficiency has arisen. 

4-!84· ~tJ 1 · 1-I>V~) , fl 

JUHU'dl)' ,}.;! •• ,211(JQ 

llf•I' UIII~HI2 

A,1132·~2tOll.!l? s 

lR 

170 



As required by law, workers' compensation Program insufficiencies shaH be the joint and 
several obligation of each Member which participated in the workers• compensation Program 
during the period of the insufficiency. 

A Member shall be and remain liable for any special assessment whether or not the 
Member was a MPR Missouri Member at the time of the levying of the special assessment. 

ARTICLE tO 
STANDARD OF CARE; BOND; INDEMNIFICATION 

Section 10.1 Standard of Care 

----Directors, officers and employees of MPR Missouri shall use ordinary care and 
reasonable diligence in the exercise of their powers and in the performance of their duties on 
behalf of MPR Missouri. Such Directors, officers, and employees shall not be liable for any 
mistake of judgment or other action made, taken or committed by them in good faith nor for any 
action taken or omitted by any agent, employee or independent contractor who was selected with 
reasonable care. No Director shall be liable for any actions taken or not taken by any other 
Director. 

Section 10.% Bond 

---.MPR Missouri may provide for a bond or other security to guarantee the faithful 
performance ofthe obligations ofits Directors, officers and employees. 

Section 10.3 Indemnification 

MPR Missouri shall hold harmless and defend and indemnify all present and past 
Directors, officers and employees for actions taken by any such person in good faith within the 
scope ofhis or her authority or duties for MPR Missowi ..:This duty shall apply to. any direct or 
derivative action involving the Director, officer or employee. To the extent pennitted by law, the 
Board of Directors may enter into written indemnification agreements with individual Directors, 
officers and employees. MPR Missouri may also purchase liability insurance providing similar 
coverage for Directors, officers and employees. 

Section 11.1 Dissolution 

ARTICLEll 
DISSOLUTION AND DISTRIBUTION 

MPR Missouri may be dissolve4 as of the last day of any MPR Missouri fiscal year upon a 
vote oftwo-thirds {2/3) of all Member Representatives. 

Upon the dissolution of MPR Missouri, the then current Board of Directors shall take all 
actions which shall be necessary for the orderly winding down of MPR Missouri's Programs and 
Services and for the completion ofMPR Missouri's dissolution and liquidation subject to the Act. 

~); •J•2Q1 l·MI:J9. 11 
1.1 111aa-r ;:. lli!Q 
11 'wuoli~ nl-i! 

4JJII .. '2~,;!t8Q.g,;'i 

19 

171 



Section 11.2 Distribution of Asseb 

Al1 net assets shall be distributed pro rata to the Members, in good standing, of the 
respective programs as of the last day ofMPR Missouri~s last full fiscal year prior to the decision 
to dissolve and to any former Members which may have retained the right to distribution of assets 
pursuant to a written agreement of witbdl'aWaJ prior to the date of the decisiotl to dissolve. Such 
net assets shall be distributed, separately by Program, by calculating the relative percentage of the 
total Program premium contributions for each Program paid by each Member during MPR 
Missouri's last full fiscal year prior 'to dissohrtion and multiplying the net assets by that 
percentage. 

Distribution of the remaining Workers' Compensation Program assets shall be determined, 
as provided by law, by the Missouri Division of Workers• Compensation. 

ARTICLE 11 
.MISCELLANEOUS 

Section 12.1 Intergovernmental Contract 

These Bylaws shall constitute an itntergovemmeutal C(1ntra<;t amot g the Members 
and MPR Missouri. Nothing in these Bylaws shall be inconsistent with, or cause any Member to 
violate, any constitutional or statutory provision which prohibits political subdivisions from 
becoming indebted in an amount exceeding in any one year the income and revenue provided for 
such year plus any unencumbered balmces from previous years. 

Section 12.2 Governing Law 

--These Bylaws shaJl be subject to, and governed by, the Jaws of the State of 
Missouri, including specifically the Act. 

Seetion 12.3 Binding Effect 

Tbese Bylaws shall be bindmg upon, and shall inure to the benefit of, the parties 
hereto and their respective successors or assigns, provided, however, that a Member may not 
assign its rights or delegate its duties without MPR Missouri's prior written consent. 

Section 12.4 Disputes 

- - In the event of any dispute hereunder which results in litigation, the prevailing 
party in such litigation shall be entitled to its reasonable attorney~' fees and expenses of such 
litigation. Any action against MPR Missouri by a Member shall be brought only in the county in 
which MPR Missouri's principal office is located. 

Sedion 12.5 Severability 

--- These Bylaws are expressly declared to be severable, and in the event that any 
article, provision, clause or other part of these Bylaws is declared invalid or unenforceable by a 

4,1;24....JJ,ljj-<oiiJ\lcl-1 

Januaf)' ~;>.., 1!\lll'l 
UoH' Ufli!!tll ·2 

im ')1jj.(}~01'J.~ 

20 

172 



court of competent jurisdiction, such action or nlllen-fureeamlity shall not affect the validity or 
enforceability of any other article, provision or clause. 

Seetfon 12.6 Amendment 

--These Bylaws may be amended by approval of the vote of two-thirds (2/3) of the 
Member Representatives present at any annual membership meeting or special membership 
meeting called for that purpose. Only ap~endments recommended by the Board of Directors shaH 
be considered for adoption. 

- - - .A copy and an explanation of all recmmnended amendments stating the reasons 
and impact of each proposed amendment shall be sene to aU Member Representatives, by certified 
mail, no later than ten (1 0) days prior to the meenng da!e. 

--- .Any amendment to these Bylaws shaH take- e-ffect immediately or at the time 
specified in the amendment. Such amendments shall be binding upon all Members without further 
action by MPR Missouri or the Members. 

Section 12.7 Repeal of Prior Bylaws 

--- Effective July 1, 2009, and contingent upon the commencement of operations of 
Midwest Public Risk of Kansas, a Kansas not for profit corporation ("MPR Kansas"), and the 
implementation of a Risk Sharing Agreement between MPR Missouri and MPR Kansas, these 
Bylaws shalJ repeal and replace aU previous amendments or editions of these Bylaws including, 
but not limited to, the "MARCJT Bylaws" effective November 3, 2006. 

If MPR Kansas fnils to commence operations on or before the close of business on 
June 30, 2009, these amended Bylaws shaiJ be null and void and the November 3, 2006 "MARCIT 
Bylaws" shaH remain in fulJ force and effect. 

4&24~H-4>~~~11d-t 

JlulttiUY n. ~gg9 
1 ~ llmllnl ·2 
'J.B.J.2·~~.9J 

21 

173 



AGREEMENT AND EXECUTION 

The Member acknowledges that it has read and agrees to be bound by all tenns and 
conditions of these Bylaws as a contract among MPR Missouri and its Members. By the execution 
of these Bylaws by the Member, the individual so executing acknowledges that these Bylaws have 
been duly accepted and authorized by all necessary and appropriate action of the governing body 
of the Member. The Member's participation as a Member ofMPR Missouri shall not be effective 
unless and until either a copy of the minutes documenting a majority vote or Resolution of the 
governing body of the Member granting authority to execute these Bylaws is delivered to MPR 
Missouri and is attached hereto. 

Accepted: 
C :+;j of- P->e-lt-on, Mo 

.. (+) e.Jl._(\_ Ote \+D{\_ 
Member 

Signed 

~· -~ '-r'l M<AQ lt _~ 
Title 

Date 

MPR Missouri 

~ 
Signed: 

fY'\ P R M o c...bo.t r 
Title 

. 1-l-l~ 
Date ·· 

[AGREEMENT AND EXECUTION PAGE TO BYLAWS] 

MPR Missouri Bylaws 
July 1, 2016 

22 

174 



SECTION IX 
B 

175 



R2016-41 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A PLEDGE OF SUPPORT FOR THE SHOW-ME HEROES 
PROGRAM ADMINISTERED BY THE MISSOURI DEPARTMENT OF ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT, DIVISION OF WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT. 

WHEREAS, on December 6th, 2016, Wayne Woodsworth, Veterans Representative from 
the Department of Economic Development, Division of Workforce Development presented the 
Show-Me Heroes program to the Belton City Council; and 

WHEREAS, Mr. Woodsworth requested the City of Belton support the program by 
signing a Pledge of Support, herein attached and incorporated as Exhibit "A" to this Resolution; 
and 

WHEREAS, the City Council believes in supporting veterans in the community and 
through workforce development and employment. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

BELTON, MISSOURI AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. That a Pledge of Support with the Show-Me Heroes Program is hereby 
approved and the Mayor is authorized and directed to execute the pledge on behalf of the City. 

Section 2. That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage 
and approval. 

Duly read and passed this 13th day of December, 2016. 

ATTEST: 

Patricia A. Ledford, City Clerk 
of the City of Belton, Missouri 

STATE OF MISSOURI ) 
COUNTY OF CASS ) SS. 
CITY OF BELTON ) 

Mayor Jeff Davis 

I, Patricia A. Ledford, City Clerk, do hereby certify that I have been duly appointed City 
Clerk of the City of Belton, Missouri, and that the foregoing Resolution was regularly introduced 
at a regular meeting of the City Council held on the 13111 day of December, 2016, and adopted at 
a regular meeting of the City Council held the 13th day of December, 2016 by the following vote, 
to-wit: 

176 



AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSENT: 

COUNCILMEN: 

COUNCILMEN: 

COUNCILMEN: 

Patricia A. Ledford, City Clerk 
of the City of Belton, Missouri 

177 



CITY OF BELTON 
CITY COUNCIL INFORMATION FORM 

MEETING DATE: December 13, 2016 
ASSIGNED STAFF: Jay C. Leipzig, AICP- Director- Community and Economic Development 

D Ordinance rzl Resolution Consent Item 0 Change Order 
0 Agreement [ ] Discussion FYI/Update [ ] Public Hearing 

ISSUE 
Wayne Woodworth, Veterans' Representative with the Missouri Department of Economic 
Development, Division of Workforce Development would like to present the Show-Me Heroes 
program. This program promotes the hiring of Veterans and offers incentives to employers who 
do so. He would like to request that the City of Belton sign the pledge to hire Veterans as well as 
provide a link on the City's Economic Development website for the purpose of marketing the 
program to local employers. 

REQUESTED COUNCIL ACTION 
Pass the Resolution to sign the pledge and become a Show-Me Heroes supporting employer. 

BACKGROUND 
· Show-Me Heroes was started by Governor Nixon in 201 0 and is a cooperative effort between the 
Missouri National Guard and the Missouri Division of Workforce Development. The mission of 
this program is to connect Missouri's businesses, both public and private, with highly qualified 
'ob seekers with milit ex erience and to romote the benefits ofhirin Veterans and National 
Guard and Reserve Service Members. The following are incentives available: 

Show-Me Heroes On-the-Job Training (OJT) is designed to offset the costs associated with 
onboarding. If an organization qualifies, 50% of the wages for the new employee (up to 1040 
hours) is reimbursable. 

Work Opportunity Tax Credits (WOTC) is a Federal tax credit available to employers for hiring 
individuals from certain target groups who have consistently faced significant barriers to 
employment. There are several degrees of eligibility offering maximum credits of $1,200 to 
$9,600. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Pass the Resolution and sign the pledge to hire Veterans. 

ATTACHMENTS 
Resolution 
Show-Me Heroes Pledge 

178 



Take the Pledge! 
- .. --.s 'PJMgool...,...,~ 

--r-=n o Mlssourfs ~nsan<! ~lliiii,.-.,IG!nml-Re9efw. 'llnlle PI• not reqwre<Hil' ~laVe Job l'liU!ltles'c 
pa<! lll_,...Nixonlseatllngonoiiiii-""'910'J"~>~MI>Iil>il'l!~-coi'Sidef!IUrnlftitary\Menlnslol your!lii)IQO<!IItls. ~ ... ~ 
O<u>)OU ~ llle tlelds belllW a --OUO.acl1 S!le<tiliM .,....,._ll'<l, .tllt>n1oolim and·<oot.actyooloamtnge • !llr.ef<--nttft\! 
·~~~ rertillcale 

Orpnizatlon Information 

t -.sName: 

• !llispfarName: 
T~OIIlw!fness: 

5pu ~ "lJ>t or Business: 
~Tul<le~NUmber: 

*~or Sial• cnatter 
NUmbef: 

* P!e<lglng as. 

~~~ - · ..... _ -~ 
S!J. ol&>wn 

:~.~moo~~t~ 

,'.wrooo~i7~~· 

(9 ~...X ni.moer use<! tir l"l>><llll!I!Na9" :tala! 
!N'ane -- - -- --_, 
oon~ mow yoor SOSChlt1e< ....,_, Cit•
,!BiJ$tneS$ ----- -- -----;· 

• \lM: ar ~h L~auon: : ._tail L~ation 
~ bl:.,.lntne State of lii!Ssourl 

,_,litMiesslogo ~_jj;J~tras~Sl>areDi c.oll'J.I9!11 
<t Adllress 1: IIO&::::::.;;~;.;'•:;;In;,;SI:;:..~-~p 

Address 2 

WZipCOde: 

Website: 
ru1we lti"ng Pians; 

Contact Jnformatloo 

• satutatton: 
* Fir.!! Name: 

'A' ust.Name: 

* Title: 

* state: 
* Zip COde: 

* l'lloneNUmbet: 

It l'lloOe TVJN!: 

• emalt 
-. eon~EmaJt: 

w RelerrO>d by; 

Specil)' RererrO>d by: 

Pie!. Q)Oiact Melhod: 

comments: 

Pelon 
~-~ 

' MISSOIAfl 
Wllyl>fttW-

s;2 

Tnanl:yw lllr ooreeilcl (0 11ll<c I!ID pli!fiOO· ancJ :l:lrl)t(Of"V<gltSh;mol.lo - ~ .,.P'O'ftr 8y CDcl:ing 011 the 'S<JI>IIlr DUIICIIDeiOW, 
yooeamllle<IJIIIIIOIIaVeyouro'll~• -~ecl...,l!lestams- Homes website 

When ,.,.,_Ule sttow-Me Heroes l)leCOe. the Go...,.. ar>d ~.....,_,.<>f l.~~ system also make a commilment 1o support 
yOilUlfOUllnoulllllsprotessiO OOialn lhe l>eSl r:>C5I UOI::<!<I~tl>r)._tc'Q~ n-tr.youiOibelng I sftow•MO Heroi!SSupportM 

1>1rJ Missoudemp!:lyer. registered wtrn llle,__a.tarv 111518_ .,_.~II> flleSiloW-Me Heroes program 

s.. ... Ar lloo 

179 




	I.	CALL PUBLIC HEARING TO ORDER
	A.	A public hearing to receive public input on the proposed amendments to the Grand Hill Community Improvement District and authorization for special assessments. 
	II.	ADJOURN PUBLIC HEARING
	III.	CALL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER
	VI.	CONSENT AGENDA
	A.	Motion approving the minutes of the November 22, 2016, City Council regular meeting.
	Paperwork

	B.	Motion to cancel the December 27 regular City Council meeting.
	VIII.	ORDINANCES
	A.	Motion approving final reading of Bill No. 2016-117:AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING A CLINICAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE JUNIOR COLLEGE DISTRICT OF METROPOLITAN KANSAS CITY, MISSOURI, AKA METROPOLITAN COMMUNITY COLLEGE, AND CITY OF BELTON, THROUGH ITS FIRE DEPARTMENT, TO PROVIDE PROTOCOLS AND REQUIREMENTS DIRECTING THE EMERGENCY MEDICAL TECHNICIAN AND PARAMEDIC STUDENT CLINICAL EDUCATION EXPERIENCE.
	B.	Motion approving final reading of Bill No. 2016-119:AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BELTON, MISSOURI, CALLING FOR AND ESTABLISHING THE DATE OF THE GENERAL CITY ELECTION FOR MUNICIPAL OFFICERS TO BE HELD ON APRIL 4, 2017. 
	C.	Motion approving final reading of Bill No. 2016-120:AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BELTON, MISSOURI AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING THE CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING CONTRACT WITH WILSON & COMPANY, INC., ENGINEERS & ARCHITECTS FOR CONSTRUCTION RELATED SERVICES FOR THE 155TH STREET WIDENING PROJECT IN THE NOT-TO-EXCEED AMOUNT OF $44,000.
	D.	Motion approving final reading of Bill No. 2016-121:AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BELTON, MISSOURI AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING THE CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING CONTRACT WITH TERRACON CONSULTANTS, INC. FOR CONSTRUCTION RELATED SERVICES FOR THE 155TH STREET WIDENING PROJECT IN THE NOT-TO-EXCEED AMOUNT OF 40,000.
	E.	Motion approving first reading of Bill No. 2016-122:AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BELTON, MISSOURI AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING AN AGREEMENT AWARD TO VF ANDERSON BUILDERS, LLC FOR THE STP 3322 (409) 155TH STREET WIDENING PROJECT IN THE AMOUNT OF $2,933,388.35.
	Paperwork

	F.	Motion approving first reading of Bill No. 2016-123:AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BELTON, MISSOURI AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING AN AGREEMENT AWARD TO A & B CONSTRUCTION, LTD., FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF THE STORAGE FABRIC BUILDING FOR COMPOSTING OPERATION IN A NOT-TO-EXCEED AMOUNT OF $23,717.00.
	Paperwork

	G.	Motion approving both readings of Bill No. 2016-124:AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A RENTAL AGREEMENT WITH BERRY COMPANIES, INC., D/B/A KC BOBCAT OF OLATHE, KANSAS TO LEASE A BOBCAT S590 LOADER WITH 68 INCH LP SMOOTH BUCKET FOR USE IN AND AROUND THE BELTON PARKS SYSTEM AND PROVIDING ACCESS TO INSURANCE COVERAGE THROUGH THE CITY’S EQUIPMENT POLICY.
	Paperwork

	H.	Motion approving first reading of Bill No. 2016-125:AN ORDINANCE APPROVING AN AGREEMENT FOR SIGNING INSTALLED AND MAINTAINED BY BELTON PARKS AND RECREATION FOR THE TREE CITY USA SIGN ON MISSOURI DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION RIGHT-OF –WAY.
	Paperwork

	I.	Motion approving first reading of Bill No. 2016-126:AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A SECOND AMENDMENT TO THE INTERGOVERNMENTAL COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF BELTON, MISSOURI AND THE BELTON-CASS REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT.
	Paperwork

	J.	Motion approving first reading of Bill No. 2016-127:AN ORDINANCE TO ENABLE BELTON, MISSOURI TO JOIN SHOW ME PACE, PURSUANT TO SECTIONS §67.2800 TO §67.2835, RSMO, THE “PROPERTY ASSESSMENT CLEAN ENERGY ACT,” AND STATING THE TERMS UNDER WHICH THE CITY WILL CONDUCT ACTIVITIES AS A MEMBER OF SUCH DISTRICT.
	Paperwork

	K.	Motion approving both readings of Bill No. 2016-128:AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING A COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT AND MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN THE CITY OF BELTON, MISSOURI AND THE CITY OF RAYMORE, MISSOURI TO SUPPORT CONVEYANCE OF CERTAIN RIGHTS OF CONTROL TO THE NORTH SIDE OF HIGHWAY 58 BETWEEN THE CENTERLINE OF CLINT DRIVE AND DEAN AVENUE AND THE CENTERLINE OF KENTUCKY ROAD FROM THE MISSOURI DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION TO THE CITY OF RAYMORE, MISSOURI.
	Paperwork

	L.	Motion approving first reading of Bill No. 2016-129:AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BELTON, MISSOURI AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING A PROPOSAL WITH EVOQUA WATER TECHNOLOGIES CORP. FOR REMOTE MONITORING AND ALARM SYSTEM SERVICES AT THE WASTEWATER TREATMENT FACILITY.
	Paperwork

	M.	Motion approving first reading of Bill No. 2016-130:AN ORDINANCE APPROVING THE PETITION TO AMEND THE FIRST AMENDED PETITION TO ESTABLISH THE GRAND HILL COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT GENERALLY LOCATED EAST OF THE SOUTH OUTER ROAD OF INTERSTATE 49 ALONG GRAND STREET AND HILL STREET, ALL IN THE CITY OF BELTON, MISSOURI; AUTHORIZING COLLECTION OF SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS ON PROPERTIES LOCATED IN THE DISTRICT; AND DIRECTING THE CITY CLERK TO REPORT THE AMENDMENT AND AUTHORIZATION TO ASSESS A SPECIAL ASSESSMENT TO THE MISSOURI DEPARTMENT OF ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT.
	Paperwork

	IX.	RESOLUTIONS
	A.	Motion approving Resolution R2016-40:A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE MIDWEST PUBLIC RISK OF MISSOURI 2016 BYLAW REVISIONS.
	Paperwork

	B.	Motion approving Resolution R2016-41:A RESOLUTION APPROVING A PLEDGE OF SUPPORT FOR THE SHOW-ME HEROES PROGRAM ADMINISTERED BY THE MISSOURI DEPARTMENT OF ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, DIVISION OF WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT.
	Paperwork

	XIV. OTHER BUSINESS
	A. Solid Waste RFP / Ballot? 
	XV.	Motion to enter Executive Session to discuss matters pertaining to Legal Actions, according to Missouri Statute 610.021.1, and that the record be closed.
	XVI.	ADJOURN

